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Further Information

 
For further information regarding this annual report please contact the General Manager, Business and 
Governance at the principal office during business hours.

Principal Office: 93 Main Street, Kapunda, SA 5373

Mailing Address: PO Box 72, Kapunda, SA 5373

Telephone: 08 8525 3200

Facsimile: 08 8566 3262

Email: light@light.sa.gov.au

Web: www.light.sa.gov.au

 
 

 
Disclaimer

 
Every effort has been made to ensure the information in this annual report is accurate. No responsibility 
or liability can be accepted by Light Regional Council or the publishers for any inaccuracies or 
omissions. Please advise Light Regional Council of any corrections on 08 8525 3200 or email 
light@light.sa.gov.au.
 
 

 
©  Copyright 2014 Light Regional Council

 
The copyright of this annual report is the property of Light Regional Council. Apart from any fair dealing 
for the purpose of community use, study, research or review, as permitted under the Copyright Act, no 
part may be reproduced by any process without the written permission of Light Regional Council.
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The Year in Review 
This 2013/2014 annual report is the final report 
of the current council elected at the November 
2010 local government elections.  On viewing 
this report the reader will gain an insight into the 
wide variety of tasks and functions that occur for 
the benefit of the community; and the 
collaborative approach that Council adopts 
through its representation and involvement in 
the many regional, governance and resource 
sharing opportunities. Council has many roles in 
the provision of service to its local communities 
and to the wider Barossa and Lower North 
regions.
 

Representation and Council 
elections 
The next local government election is scheduled 
to conclude in November 2014.  At the time of 
writing this report the voters’ roll has already 
closed and the candidate nomination process 
concluded on Tuesday, 16 September 2014.  
The formal election process will ensue with 
voters being sent ballot papers for the respective 
elections (mayoral, ward or both) in October.  All 
elections are held by postal voting.  The polls 
will be declared early November.  Good luck to 
all those people who put themselves forward, 
the role that you will play will help to guide the 
future direction of the organisation for the 
betterment of the region.

The constituents of the Council will not alter, 
being a Mayor elected by the people of the 
region, and ten councillors representing 4 wards.  
We encourage all electors to make the effort to 
become involved in the governance of your 
region.

These elected representatives now preside over 
a resident population of 14,459 people (ABS 30 
June 2013 estimate).  Population growth in the 
Light region continues to exceed the State’s 
average population growth.
 

Organisational Reform 
Council’s approach continues to be engaging 
effectively with the community. This includes 
collaboration with neighbouring councils and the 
other levels of Government.

When formulating our strategic and annual 
plans, we advocate for growth in both social 
and developmental contexts; reform of the 
organisation through policy and procedure, 
aiming for improved operational efficiencies and 
effective outcomes; and maintaining discipline
to contain costs and meet our projected financial 
obligations.  The goal is to achieve financial 
sustainability of the organisation while providing 
quality infrastructure at affordable costs.  

During the year Council undertook a minor 
restructure of its organisation reviewing its 
committee structures and departmental 
portfolios.  A key focus was placed on the ability 
of the organisation to pursue economic 
development opportunities to enhance growth 
and provide alternative fiscal and community 
outcomes.  A new Economic Development 
Panel has been established.  The Panel’s 
charter is to guide, foster and promote economic 
development activity throughout the
region. Stakeholder collaboration to facilitate 
and drive deliverables and projects will be key to 
its activities.

Strategic Planning 
Council’s Strategic Plan for 2013 to 2017 is 
structured around a set of Inward and Outward 
Looking strategies.  Seven key policy areas 
guide the organisation;

Responsible management of growth,
Preserving agricultural land and diverse 
cultural heritage,
Defining brand or identity (across region 
or by township),
Regional interconnection and 
partnerships,
To enhance the quality of assets and 
services appropriately throughout the 
region,
Fostering local opportunities, and,
Promoting our strengths.
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Development Plan Amendments 
(DPA) and social planning 
Throughout the year Council has continued to 
work on creating appropriate policy for the 
physical development of the region.  The 
Heritage Policy Review Working Party was 
established to review the manner in which 
heritage and historic conservation zone areas 
and council policy interact with residents’ ability 
to carry out development opportunities to 
property.  The preparation of the Rural Living 
DPA draft was released for public exhibition, 
while the Roseworthy Town Expansion project 
drew much discussion. This has led to the 
proposed preparation of the Roseworthy
Township Expansion DPA which will occur in the 
2014/2015 financial year.  The DPA will provide 
policy guidelines for the proposed development 
of approximately 2,500 residential allotments 
together with employment lands to the south of 
the existing Roseworthy township in the area of 
land bounded by the Thiele Highway, Horrocks 
Highway and Twartz Road, Roseworthy.  
Consultation also occurred on the Gawler Rivers 
Flood Prone Area DPA and several other key 
planning review documents including the 
Nuriootpa West (Industry (BVR) Zone) DPA.

Council also considered various social planning 
opportunities throughout the year.  Council is 
facilitating the relocation of the Kapunda Bowling 
Club to the Dutton Park Recreation Ground in 
Kapunda.  The move will concentrate the town’s 
sporting facilities at the site.  The former site will 
be taken up by Council and it is proposed to 
develop retirement living opportunities at the 
Club’s Oldham and White Streets site. This will 
provide an exciting prospect for the development 
of aged accommodation in the town.

A draft concept plan for the Hewett Recreation 
Precinct was also considered.  The proposed 
area will include playground and public facilities, 
grassed areas, shelters and adult fitness 
equipment.  A separate dog-friendly park area 
would be provided for off lead dog exercise.  
Further consultation is to occur on this project 
with the community to shape the concept.

Along with other Councils in the Barossa RDA 
region, Council received a draft of the Barossa, 
Light and Lower North Region Public Health and 
Wellbeing Plan.  Council supported the release 
of the plan for public consultation.  The plan has 
been prepared as a response to requirements of 
the Public Health Act.  Councils are responsible 
for leading public health planning in their 
communities.  The broad priorities from 
establishing these plans are to provide for 
stronger and healthier communities for all 
generations; increase opportunities for healthy 

living, healthy eating and being active; take 
account of potential climate change; and for 
sustaining and improving public and 
environmental health protection.  

Water 
As reported in the 2013 Annual Report, Council 
submitted, on behalf of the Wakefield Group of 
Council’s, a grant application to the “Water for 
the Future, National Urban Water and 
Desalination Plan: Stormwater Harvesting and 
Re-Use Projects” funding program.  The project 
titled: “Gawler Water Re-Use Project” was 
successful in attaining a grant of $10.7m, which 
the Council accepted.

After 8 months of due diligence, the Regional 
Steering Committees preferred commercial 
partners were not able to continue and withdrew 
from the project.  This precipitated the 
discontinuance of the Regional structure 
requiring Council, the grant recipient, to 
reposition the project.  With Federal Government 
support, the project is now progressing in 
partnership with Seppeltsfield Wines Pty Ltd.  A 
final discussion to proceed with the project in its 
revised form will be made by the new Council 
during 2014/2015 financial year.

Council partnered the NRM Board and the 
Developer of Ridley Mill Estate in Wasleys to 
design and construct the Wasleys Stormwater 
Harvesting and Reuse Scheme. The project 
captures and treats stormwater runoff from the 
subdivision, the water is then transferred it to an
irrigation storage basin constructed at the 
Wasleys Oval recreation precinct.  Irrigation 
infrastructure has been installed to the Wasleys 
Oval to utilise the harvested stormwater for 
watering the oval. The project provides flood 
mitigation, environmental and community 
recreational benefits.

Growth and development activity 
The number of new property assessments 
continues to grow within Council’s area.  This 
year assessments increased by approximately 
0.5%.  This growth factor is influenced by the 
residential and other development occurring 
throughout Council’s region.  Development 
statistics show an improvement on the 
2012/2013 financial year with 104 new 
residential applications received from across all 
areas.  This is positive activity for the 
community.  The capital valuation for our region 
is now in excess of $3.0bn.  The main active 
residential subdivisions include ‘The Aviary’ at
Hewett, ‘The Pines’ at Freeling, the Laucke 
subdivision at Greenock, and the Ridley Mill 
estate at Wasleys.
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Financial sustainability and trends 
Council is conscious of delivering projects with 
real outcomes that prove to be beneficial for its 
community, but which provide the community 
with value for money.  

Council in adopting its Long Term Financial Plan 
aims to achieve financial sustainability overtime 
utilising cost containment; prioritisation of capital 
renewal works balanced against new asset 
investment; reviewing the effect of annual 
depreciation on its balance sheet backed up by 
sound reasoning and factual data; holding the 
level of employee resources, effectively doing 
more with less; all this being balanced by 
reducing funding through loan borrowings and 
maintaining a level of rate increases based 
around annual CPI and estimated new 
assessment growth.  The Council at this point 
has chosen to take a wider mid-term view to 
attain sustainability as opposed to the short-term 
slash and burn approach.  Severe financial 
austerity measures might balance the operating 
statement with significant detrimental effects on 
Council’s road network.  It is pleasing to report 
that Council has reduced its operating deficit 
again this year, positive trends are reported with 
Council’s primary financial indicators in 
comparison to the previous financial year.

For the first time in many years Council chose to 
implement a program of selling properties for the 
non-payment of council rates.  The Local 
Government Act 1999 provides that this action 
can occur where rates are unpaid for three or 
more years.  Where possible Council looks to 
negotiate mutually convenient outcomes with 
ratepayers before any statutory process is 
implemented.  Some success with the program 
was achieved however negotiations around 
several assessments are still occurring for which 
we anticipate positive outcomes for all 
concerned.

Disappointingly, following the election of the 
Federal coalition government, Council’s annual 
grants funding has been reduced by the axing of 
the Supplementary Local Roads Funding 
Program for South Australian Councils and 
capping the amounts paid under the Grants 
Commission Grants at 2013/2014 levels for the 
next 3 financial years.  This will reduce the 
amount of grants to Council by over $600,000. 
The Supplementary Local Roads Funding 
Program for South Australian Councils 
recognised the road funding inequity between 
the states which traditionally penalised South 
Australian council grant funding opportunities.

Conclusion 
The above are some of the matters considered 
by the Council over the course of the last twelve 
months.

In closing we would like to thank the Elected
Members and independent members of the 
community who serve on committees and 
volunteer for the Council.  We also thank 
council’s staff for their dedication and efforts to 
advance the Council and realise its objectives 
over the last twelve months.  We are proud to 
lead an organisation that aims for continual 
improvement and enhance its service delivery to 
the community.

Bill O’Brien Brian Carr
Mayor Chief Executive Officer
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Assessment of 2013/2014 Financial Year Objectives 
 
The Annual Business Plan detailed the goals 
and objectives that Council planned to achieve 
in the 2013/2014 financial year. In essence the 
goals and objectives are a direct link back to 
Council’s Strategic Management Plan.

The Business Plan includes financial and non-
financial measures that Council can use to 
assess its performance against its objectives. 
For the 2013/2014 financial year the 
measurement of Council’s activities was based 
on the goals and actions described in the 
Strategic Plan of the Council.  The Strategic 
Plan is for the period 2013 to 2017 and is due 

for review following the election of the new 
Council in November 2014.

To that end 55 activities have been performance 
measured. Some of the strategies and goals 
were a continuation of projects commenced in 
the previous financial year, or will continue into 
the next financial year.  

This assessment is a summation of that 
published with the Annual Business Plan 
adopted for the 2014/2015 financial year.

 
Annual Statement, Performance Report 2013/2014 Financial Year

Count of 
Performance 
Target Results

No. of 
Projects 

Measured

Performance in actioning 2013/2014
targets

Performance on items actioned

Reviewed & 
Cancelled 
(score 0)

Reviewed & 
Deferred to 
2014/2015

Year (score 1)

Actioned Commenced 
(score 2)

Substantially 
Completed 
(score 3)

Completed 
as Planned 
(score 4)

Exceeded 
Target 

(score 5)

Specific Goal Area Performance
Business & 
Corporate 
Governance

19 - 2 17 11 - 6 -

Development & 
Regulatory Services 6 - 1 5 3 - 2 -

Infrastructure & 
Works 4 - - 4 2 1 1 -

Strategy, Projects & 
Engineering 26 - 2 24 14 3 7 -

Total 55 - 5 50 30 4 16 -
Specific Goal Area Performance

Business & 
Corporate 
Governance

35% - 10% 90% 65% - 35% -

Development & 
Regulatory Services 11% - 17% 83% 60% - 40% -

Infrastructure & 
Works 7% - - 100% 50% 25% 25% -

Strategy, Projects & 
Engineering 47% - 8% 92% 58% 13% 29% -

Total 100% - 9% 91% 60% 8% 32% -

Definition of Performance Targets
Reviewed & 
Cancelled Score 0 Determined as not being required to be completed following budget review or in preparation of the 

2013/2014 Annual Budget due to other emerging priorities.
Reviewed & 
Deferred to 
2014/2015 Year (or 
later)

Score 1 Determined to be an approved carried forward project – a project not expected to be completed during the 
target year due to resourcing constraints or other emerging priorities.

Commenced Score 2 Project has commenced and reached a stage of development with Council or appropriate policy committee.
Substantially 
Completed Score 3 Project has commenced and reached a stage of substantial development (>75%) with Council or 

appropriate policy committee.
Completed as 
Planned Score 4 Project has reached defined objective.

Exceeded Target Score 5 Project exceeds target set.
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Operational Area STATUS update at 30 June, 2014
Strategic Management 
Plan (SMP) Reference Measureable Outcome 2013/2014

Department Objective

SMP 
Category 
Item (3.3)

SMP 
Focus 

Item (3.4) Financial Non-Financial
Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Review and 
develop a 
community 
communications 
strategy

COMMENCED. 
Draft prepared by Council’s Principal 
Project Planner for discussion, refinement
and presentation to the Elected Body.

3.3.6 3.4.4/3.4.7 Delivered within 
budget

An Light 
Regional Council 
Community 
Communication 
Plan outlining a 
variety of 
community 
engagement 
methods

Business & 
Governance

Develop and 
implement a 
schedule of 
review for 
Council's 
policies, 
procedures and 
by-laws

COMPLETED. 
Process implemented.  Review Teams 
developed following a staged process with 
set review timeframes.  Policies feeding 
through to Council meetings.
Measureable outcome being achieved.

3.3.6 2.4A i) Delivered within 
budget

Up to date 
policies, 
procedures and 
by-laws

Business & 
Governance

Develop and 
implement ICT 
Strategy

COMMENCED.  
Short term strategy developed (12 months 
plan) and being implemented.  Mid-term 
and long term strategies to be developed 
with detailed amendments being made to 
or added to Council’s Long Term Financial 
Plan.  System improvements occurring.

3.3.2/3.3.6 2.4A ii)/ 
3.4.1

Delivered within 
budget

Delivery of 
effective IT 
systems across 
Council

Business & 
Governance

Complete the 
implementation 
of the EDRMS, 
InfoXpert across 
Council

COMPLETED.  
Core EDRMS implemented, future 
enhancements to the InfoXpert system will 
be regarded as operational and not form 
part of ABP and Strategic documents 
unless significant projects are identified.
Measureable outcome being achieved.

3.3.6 2.4A i) 
/2.4A ii)/ 
3.4.1/3.4.5

Delivered within 
budget

An effective 
electronic 
records 
management 
system for 
efficient access 
to Council 
records

Business & 
Governance

Undertake IT 
Network 
Hardening and 
establish a 
disaster recovery 
plan 

COMMENCED.  Strategy being 
implemented in line with 2013/2014.  
System improvements and redundancy 
measures occurring.

3.3.6 2.4A 
ii)/3.4.1

Delivered within 
budget

Light Regional 
Council Disaster 
Recovery Plan

Development
& Regulatory 
Services

Develop 
additional on line 
systems to offer 
additional 
services to the 
community

COMMENCED, ONGOING
While the on line electronic lodgement of 
DAs has been deferred pending the 
outcome of the Expert Panel on Planning 
Reform’s recommendations, other 
initiatives have commenced.
The Development Application Register is 
now complete and is a valuable online 
tool.
Council has also endorsed the Access to 
DA documentation Policy which may be 
viewed and accessed on line.
Fire permits – people seeking to notify of 
their intent to burn may now do so via our 
internet site.
Immunisation – staff have back-scanned 
records to 2009 and this now makes it 
more efficient to access records for 
families and medical practitioners seeking 
clarity on immunisation history.

3.3.6 3.4.4/3.4.5 Delivered within 
budget 

Improved 
productivity and  
expanded on line 
service delivery 
for the 
community

Establishment of 
electronic 
Development 
Application (eDA) 
Process.

Reduction of DA 
Processing 
Timeframes

All 
Departments

Implement QA 
Framework

DEFERRED.
For future consideration, envisaged as 
part of CAMMS rollout across the 
organisation.  However Council 
employees have commenced reviewing 
procurement activities in accordance with 
ARC BLUE project being developed in 
conjunction with LG Procurement.

3.3.6 3.4.1/3.4.5
/3.4.6

Programmes are 
carried out 
within the 
existing budget 
allocations.

A relevant 
programme plan 
is developed and 
implemented in 
line with LG 
Excellence 
Programs.
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Operational Area
STATUS update at 30 June, 2014

Strategic Management 
Plan (SMP) Reference

Measureable Outcome 2013/2014

Department Objective SMP 
Category 
Item (3.3)

SMP 
Focus 

Item (3.4)

Financial Non-Financial

Business & 
Governance; 
Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering; 
and
Infrastructure 
& Works 
Departments

Asset Delivery at 
Reduced Life 
Cycle Cost

COMMENCED, ONGOING.
Asset lifetime and depreciation review 
reports considered by Internal IAMP 
committee and Council’s Audit Committee 
at March 2014. 

3.3.6 3.4.1/3.4.5 Services and 
programs 
offered are 
carried out 
within adopted 
budget.

Whole of Life 
Operational and 
Maintenance 
Costs calculated 
for every asset 
acquired and 
input into 
Council’s Long 
Term Financial 
Plan review.

Business & 
Governance

Develop and 
implement an 
annual Library 
Services' 
programme plan 
which is relevant 
to the 
community. 

DEFERRED.  
LINK Partnership future regional approach 
resource sharing arrangements following 
One Card Library System implementation 
yet to be reviewed as no appropriate 
projects yet to hand.

COMMENCED.
Review of the adopted Library Business 
Plan has been updated, yet to be 
considered by management group prior to 
reporting to council.

COMMENCED.  
E-resource component of library service 
will be discussed as part of the Library 
Service Business Plan review.  Strategy 
for implementing additional e-resources 
will follow after adoption of the revised 
Business Plan.

3.3.6 and 
3.3.7

3.4.6 Programmes are 
undertaken 
within adopted 
budget. 

Expand the LINK 
partnership 
beyond sharing a 
library 
management 
system and other 
resources has 
been developed 
and
implemented.

Progress 
Adopted Library 
Services 
Management 
Plan within 
adopted 
timeframe.

Increase in 
usage of library 
e-resources and 
expansion of 
access to 
resources state-
wide.

Business & 
Governance

Implementation 
of Library service 
literacy services 
that reflect the 
demographic of 
the Light 
Regional 
Council. 

COMPLETED.  
Customer survey undertaken across 
Council’s region.  Data has been collated; 
outcomes are to be integrated into 
Business plan discussed above.  
Outcomes reported to Council at its April 
2014 meeting.

3.3.6 3.4.4 The system is 
implemented 
within budget 
allocation.

Improved 
communities 
access to library 
resources state-
wide

Business & 
Governance

Implementation 
of the state wide 
One Card 
Library 
Management 
System

COMPLETED
Workforce plan for library service 
developed aligning to corporate 
guidelines.

COMMENCED 
Refer Library Service Business Plan 
comment.

COMMENCED - ONGOING.
Licencing issues around reporting 
features of One Card Library System 
apply.  Reporting formats are available, 
additional council reporting to be 
developed.  Future operational matter 
which will not be shown in the ABP 
document.

3.3.2/3.3.3 
and 3.3.6

2.4(A) ii, 
iii, v / 3.3.6 
and 3.4.1

Improved 
financial 
efficiencies 
through 
decreased 
service support 
costs

Engage staff 
where there are 
identified gaps 
and within 
budget 
expectation 

Prepare 
workforce plans 
for aligned to 
corporate plans 

Develop and 
implement an e-
Resources 
program for 
library users

Ability to 
measure 
productivity gains 
and improved 
reporting ability
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Operational Area STATUS update at 30 June, 2014
Strategic Management 
Plan (SMP) Reference Measureable Outcome 2013/2014

Department Objective

SMP 
Category 
Item (3.3)

SMP 
Focus 

Item (3.4) Financial Non-Financial
Business & 
Governance

Undertake and 
implement a 
workforce plan 
utilising the LGA 
workforce 
planning project 
framework -
explore resource 
sharing 
opportunities

COMPLETED.
Resource sharing opportunities being 
further explored with neighbouring 
councils.

3.3.2 2.4A iii) Measured staff 
increases 
aligned to 
requirements 
and available 
funding.

Service costs 
maintained or 
decreased. 

Where relevant 
and viable 
implement 
resource sharing 
arrangements 
across service 
areas and 
Council areas.

Effective 
management of 
labour resources

Business & 
Governance

Implement and 
utilise CAMMS 
performance 
management 
system 

COMMENCED.
Planning and implementation phase of 
CAMMS project currently occurring, LRC 
strategic direction input, further refinement 
requirement prior to implementation of live 
product in 2014/2015.  Concentrating on 
Inter-Plan product incorporating Council’s 
strategic plan and objectives, WHS Plan, 
etc.

3.3.6 2.4A ii)
Delivered within 
budget

Monitoring and 
review of 
established KPI's 
to facilitate 
continuous 
improvement

Improved 
efficiency in 
delivering 
Council’s 
objectives

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Improved Asset 
Reporting 
including linking 
relevant CRMs , 
information in 
InfoXpert, 
financial costings 
to asset groups

COMPLETED.
Steady system and process improvement 
occurred throughout the financial year.

3.3 3.4.5 Improved ability 
to accurately 
cost assets and 
associated 
depreciation

Improved 
maintenance 
programs and 
asset 
management 
rating

Business & 
Governance 
and Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering 
Departments 

Develop Asset 
and Financial 
Model

COMPLETED.
Model finalised and released across local 
government sector by LGA.

3.3 3.4.5 Update LTFP 
estimated 
budgetary 
allocation

Improve 
Council’s Asset 
Sustainability 
Ratio forecast

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering 
and
Infrastructure 
& Works 
Departments 

Complete CapEx 
Program for 4 & 
8 Year Periods

COMPLETED.
Multiple scenarios across 4, 8, and 20 
years modelled through IAMP analysis.

3.3.4 3.4.5 Update LTFP 
estimated 
budgetary 
allocation

Improve 
Council’s Asset 
Sustainability 
Ratio forecast.

Establish project 
plans for future 
works programs 
and budgets

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Develop IAMP 
(Version 3)

SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLETED.
Version 3 set for public consultation in the 
near future,

3.3.2 & 
3.3.6

3.4.5 & 
3.4.1

Update LTFP 
estimated 
budgetary 
allocation

Improvement to 
asset data and 
planning.

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering 
and
Infrastructure 
& Works 
Departments

Refine standards 
(infrastructure) 
schedule and 
review against 
LG Finance + 
Economic Model

COMPLETED.
Standards reviewed by staff every 2 to 3 
years.  Most recent update gave 
consideration to LG Financial model.

3.3.6 2.4Ai)/ 
2.4Aii)/ 
3.4.1

Improve and 
collate standard 
procedures to 
capture 
corporate 
knowledge and 
ensure 
compliancy with 
industry 
standards and 
best practice.
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Operational Area
STATUS update at 30 June, 2014

Strategic Management 
Plan (SMP) Reference

Measureable Outcome 2013/2014

Department Objective SMP 
Category 
Item (3.3)

SMP 
Focus 

Item (3.4)

Financial Non-Financial

Business & 
Governance 
and Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Review 
Population 
Projections & 
adjust Financial 
Model

COMMENCED, internal financial reports 
being developed, LTFP assumptions 
drafted and ready for internal review.  
Population projections yet to be reviewed.

3.3.6 2.4Aii) Update LTFP 
estimated 
budgetary 
allocation

Improve 
Financial 
Reporting.

Update LTFP 
Assumptions for 
future accuracy 
of the plan and 
budgets.

Business & 
Governance

Implement 
Deloitte internal 
control system

COMMENCED
Significant Long Term Rates debtor 
project being undertaken with positive 
outcomes being achieved, various reports 
already submitted to Council.

COMPLETED.
Deloitte/LGA Internal Controls project 
overviewed with operational training for 
the HR & Governance Manager and 
Finance Manager completed.

COMMENCED.
Schedule of  compliancy commitments 
developed commencing with assessment 
of core functions across finance,
procurement and asset management.

3.3.2 2.4Av) Reduced 
amount of non-
recoverable debt 
recorded on 
Council's 
balance sheet

Improved debt 
recovery 
procedures 

Ensure internal 
control systems 
achieve external 
audit 
compliance.

Develop and 
implement a 
schedule of 
Council's annual 
legislative 
commitments to 
facilitate 
systematic 
integration 
across Council to 
ensure external 
review and 
compliancy.

Business & 
Governance

Integrate the use 
of the BIS 
financial 
reporting system 
across Council

COMMENCED.
Internal financial reporting enhancements 
through BIS currently being developed.  

3.3.6 Management of 
finances within 
budget 
constraints

Improvement to 
financial 
reporting 
systems 
internally and 
externally. 

Business & 
Governance

Develop and 
implement 
strategy and 
procedures to 
reduce non-
recoverable debt

COMMMENCED. 
Program tasks implemented recovery of 
debt, formal documentation on process to 
be developed.  LGA Section 184 and 185 
processes being implemented.  Section 
184 (sale of land for non-payment of 
Council rates) implemented, sale date 28 
May 2014 on a number of properties 
concerned.  Awaiting Ministerial response 
prior to formally progressing further with 
the section 185 process.

3.3.2 & 
3.3.6

Improved 
balance sheet

Systematic 
approach to debt
recovery

Business & 
Governance 
and
Development 
& Regulatory 
Services 
Departments

Fee Recovery 
Model - to offset 
staff time in 
undertaking 
inspections on 
privately certified 
structures

NOT YET COMMENCED. 3.3.2 & 
3.3.6

Improved 
operating 
statement 
position

Systematic 
approach to debt 
recovery in 
compliancy with 
development 
regulations.

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering 
and
Infrastructure 
& Works

Samuel Road 
Upgrade 
(Funding 
dependent)

COMMENCED.
Funding application prepared and 
submitted, however was unsuccessful to 
fund delivery of the entire upgrade.  
Works being undertaken at Seppeltsfield 
and Samuel Road Intersection  through 
alternative funding source.

3.3.3 / 
3.3.4 

3.4.1 / 
3.4.4 / 
3.4.5

Capital project 
delivered with 
Government 
funding 
assistance

Further 
development of 
assets to meet 
requirements of 
Barossa Valley 
Transport 
Strategy

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Kapunda Town 
Centre DPA

COMMENCED.
Statement of Intent endorsed by Council.  
Ministerial endorsement received May, 
2014.  Preparation for DPA proceeding.

3.3.1 3.4.1 / 
3.4.2 / 
3.4.3 / 
3.4.5 / 
3.4.6 / 
3.4.7

Introduction of 
appropriate 
planning 
strategy.

Public 
Consultation 
Undertaken.
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Operational Area
STATUS update at 30 June, 2014

Strategic Management 
Plan (SMP) Reference

Measureable Outcome 2013/2014

Department Objective SMP 
Category 
Item (3.3)

SMP 
Focus 

Item (3.4)

Financial Non-Financial

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Barossa 
Protection DPA

NOT YET COMMENCED.
Awaiting instructions to proceed from 
State Government.

3.3.1 3.4.1 / 
3.4.2 / 
3.4.3 / 
3.4.5 / 
3.4.7

Introduction of 
appropriate 
planning 
strategy.

Public 
Consultation 
Undertaken.

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Townships 
Review and 
Scale/ Services 
Assessment

COMMENCED.
Township Futures project brief released to 
select firms for expression of 
interest/tender to cover Freeling and 
Kapunda collectively in 2014/2015 
financial year. Consultant engagement 
imminent.

3.3.2 3.4.1 / 
3.4.2 / 
3.4.3 / 
3.4.6 / 
3.4.7

Introduction of 
appropriate 
planning 
strategy.

Public 
Consultation 
Undertaken.

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Rail Services to 
Roseworthy 
Garden Town 
(RDAF Rnd 4)

NOT COMMENCED.
Large scale project of Growth of 
Roseworthy not being pursued by State 
Government meaning that the rail services 
are unlikely in the short to medium term.

3.3.3 / 
3.3.4 / 
3.3.5 / 
3.3.6

3.4.1 / 
3.4.3 / 
3.4.4 / 
3.4.5 / 
3.4.6

Project funding 
achieved

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Hewett Shared 
Use Path 
Extension/ 
Upgrade (RDAF 
Rnd 3)

COMMENCED.
Funding re-secured after change of 
Federal Government.  Funding agreement 
for council consideration May 2014.  
Project delivery to follow with delivery to 
occur in Spring/ Summer (prime 
construction weather).

3.3.3 / 
3.3.4

3.4.1 / 
3.4.3 / 
3.4.4 / 
3.4.5 / 
3.4.6

Project funding
achieved

Infrastructure 
extended to 
service 
community 
access.

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Community 
Grants (inc. 
Events)

COMPLETED.
Annual process undertaken through single 
(joint) round early in 2014.

3.3.6 3.4.6 / 
3.4.7

Grants 
distributed in line
with Budget 
Allocations

Multiple 
community 
projects 
supported by 
council value 
adding to 
community 
benefit.

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Township Flood 
Mapping (2D 
Modelling)

COMPLETED.
Final mapping received by Council early 
2014.  Work will be used to inform 
forthcoming stormwater management 
plans.

3.3.2 / 
3.3.3 / 
3.3.6

3.4.1 / 
3.4.4 / 
3.4.5

Introduction of 
appropriate 
planning tools 
and strategy.

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Township 
Stormwater 
Management 
Plans

COMMENCED.
Phase 1 delivered by completion of 2D 
Flood Modelling Project.  Funding 
partners secured for Stormwater 
Management Plans to be prepared 
throughout 2014/2015 financial year.

3.3.2 / 
3.3.3 / 
3.3.6

3.4.1 / 
3.4.4 / 
3.4.5

Introduction of 
appropriate 
planning 
strategy.

Public 
Consultation 
Undertaken.

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Social Plan / 
Community 
Wellbeing Plan

COMMENCED.
Stage 1 of preparation has occurred 
through delivery of Regional Public Health 
Plan.

3.3.2 3.4.1 / 
3.4.3 / 
3.4.6 / 
3.4.7

Introduction of 
appropriate 
Council strategy.

Public 
Consultation 
Undertaken.

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Nuriootpa West 
DPA

COMMENCED.
Statement of Intent endorsed by Minister 
in November 2013.  Investigations being 
prepared for consideration in coming 
months by council and community.

3.3.1 3.4.1 / 
3.4.2 

Introduction of 
appropriate 
planning 
strategy.

Public 
Consultation 
Undertaken.

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Roseworthy 
Growth -
Structure Plan, 
Infrastructure 
Agreements and 
Development 
Plan 
Amendment

COMMENCED.
Structure Plan process abandoned by 
State Government.  Preliminary work 
commenced on concept planning to 
support Township Expansion 
Development Plan Amendment.

3.3.1 / 
3.3.2 / 
3.3.3 / 
3.3.5

3.4.1 / 
3.4.2 / 
3.4.3 / 
3.4.4 / 
3.4.5 / 
3.4.6

Introduction of 
appropriate 
planning and 
infrastructure 
strategy.

Public 
Consultation 
Undertaken.
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Operational Area
STATUS update at 30 June, 2014

Strategic Management 
Plan (SMP) Reference

Measureable Outcome 2013/2014

Department Objective SMP 
Category
Item (3.3)

SMP 
Focus 

Item (3.4)

Financial Non-Financial

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Hanson St/ 
Thiele Hwy 
Staggered T 
Intersection

SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLETED.
Despite inclement weather impacts across 
2014, project will be finalised by end of 
calendar year.

3.3.3 / 
3.3.4

3.4.1 / 
3.4.4 / 
3.4.5 

Improved 
infrastructure 
and road safety 
by realignment of 
the intersection.

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Kapunda 
Heritage Trail 
Project

COMMENCED.
Seeking contact from smartphone app 
providers on how Kapunda can be 
involved in a trial.

3.3.6 3.4.2 / 
3.4.3 / 
3.4.4 / 
3.4.5 / 
3.4.7

Improved 
community and 
tourist 
infrastructure.

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Kapunda Mine 
Site Projects

COMMENCED.
Various activities undertaken on the site 
across the financial year.  Final stages, 
fencing, artwork, signage, shelter, etc to 
be delivered over the next 12 to 18 
months.

3.3.3 / 
3.3.4 / 
3.3.6

3.4.2 / 
3.4.3 / 
3.4.5 / 
3.4.6 / 
3.4.7

Improved 
community and 
tourist 
infrastructure.

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Kapunda Rail 
Trail Project

COMMENCED.
Agreements with Genesee Wyoming and 
DPTI resolved.  Design being prepared 
and in-house delivery being scheduled.

3.3.3 / 
3.3.4 

3.4.1 / 
3.4.3 / 
3.4.4 / 
3.4.5 / 
3.4.6

Improved 
community and 
tourist 
infrastructure.

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Various 
Partnered 
Biodiversity 
Projects

COMPLETED.
Various projects undertaken across the 
region over the course of the reporting 
period.

3.3.3 / 
3.3.6

3.4.2 / 
3.4.3 / 
3.4.5 / 
3.4.6 / 
3.4.7

Protection of the 
Natural 
Environment and 
local diversity.

Chief 
Executive 
Officer and 
Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering

Gawler Water 
Project 
(Regional 
Subsidiary)

SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLETED.
Design works, private funding and water 
supply agreements undertaken through 
current financial year.  Further works to 
occur on the ground through 2014/2015 
year.

3.3.2 / 
3.3.3 / 
3.3.4 / 
3.3.5 / 
3.3.7

3.4.1 / 
3.4.3 / 
3.4.4 / 
3.4.6

Project funding 
achieved

Improved water 
infrastructure 
and reduction in 
reliance on 
Murray Darling 
system water 
usage through 
stormwater 
collection and 
storage 
techniques.

Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering
Infrastructure 
& Works

Greenock Town 
Centre Upgrade/ 
Street Scaping

COMPLETED.
Paving works/upgrade completed.  Final 
works on Village Square remain ongoing 
through delivery by Infrastructure and 
Works Department.

3.3.3 / 
3.3.4

3.4.1 / 
3.4.3 / 
3.4.5 / 
3.4.6 / 
3.4.47

Delivered within 
budget

Delivered in 
accordance with 
IAMP and 
community 
consulted project 
plan.

Infrastructure 
& Works

Park Range 
Estate Reserve 
Enhancements

COMMENCED.
Infrastructure works to enable sale of one 
allotment commenced.  Project being 
managed through Infrastructure and 
Works Department.

3.3.4 / 
3.3.5

3.4.5 / 
3.4.6

Delivered within 
budget

Delivered in 
accordance with 
IAMP and 
community 
consulted project 
plan.

Infrastructure 
& Works

Annual Capital 
Programs

SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLETED.
Refer to Reports for Information Item 11.1, 
April 2014 Council Agenda.

3.3.4 3.4.4 / 
3.4.5

Delivered within 
budget

Assets renewed 
or upgraded in 
accordance with 
plans.

Infrastructure 
& Works

Annual 
Maintenance 
Programs

COMMENCED, ONGOING 3.3.7 3.4.4 / 
3.4.5

Delivered within 
budget

Assets 
maintained in 
accordance with 
plans.

Development 
& Regulatory 
Services

Regional DAP 
exploratory 
investigations

COMPLETED
Detailed reports and presentations were 
tabled at Council during the financial year 
and Council unanimously resolved to 
decline The Barossa Council’s initiative to 
establish a Regional DAP.

Investigations 
undertaken 
exploring 
opportunity to
establish a 
Regional 
Development 
Authority.
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Operational Area
STATUS update at 30 June, 2014

Strategic Management 
Plan (SMP) Reference

Measureable Outcome 2013/2014

Department Objective SMP 
Category 
Item (3.3)

SMP 
Focus 

Item (3.4)

Financial Non-Financial

Development 
& Regulatory 
Services

Dutton Park - co-
location 
opportunities

COMMENCED AND ONGOING
The reporting period has seen significant 
developments taking place and Council, at 
its meeting held in November 2013, 
adopted to facilitate the relocation of the 
Kapunda Bowling Club to Dutton Park.
The development application has since 
been granted planning consent and work 
is expected to commence on site in June 
2014.
Council is currently in the throes of 
preparing plans for lodgement of a 
retirement village over the current bowling 
club site as that site will soon vest in 
Council’s ownership.  .

Successful trial 
of community 
empowerment 
project of facility 
management.

Research 
undertaken into 
co-locating 
additional 
sporting facilities 
to the Dutton 
Park site.

Development 
& Regulatory 
Services

Public-Private 
partnerships - 5
Shillings 
(Kapunda), 
Musalino 
(Freeling) and 
The Aviary 
(Hewett)

COMMENCED, ONGOING
Council continues to forge public private 
relationships with the development 
industry, particularly in circumstances 
where hard and soft infrastructure external 
to the subject land is needed.  This has 
been evidenced throughout Greenock, 
Kapunda, Freeling, Wasleys and Hewett 
with significant upgrades to township 
sewer and stormwater systems delivered 
and funded by the developer.
Disappointingly, development of stage 1b 
of 5 Shillings Estate has stalled despite 
Council’s decision on 28 August 2012 to 
facilitate the splitting of that stage as a 
means of accelerating civil works.  
Discussions continue with Aqua Reef in 
this regard and through the creation of the 
Economic Development Panel, Council 
believes further inroads into rolling out this 
development will occur.  

Further 
development of 
vacant land 
allotments within 
Kapunda, 
Freeling and 
Hewett 
townships.

Development 
& Regulatory 
Services

Regional Public 
Health Plan

COMPLETED
Light, Barossa, Mallala and Gawler 
councils have formed a regional 
collaboration to deliver a Public Health 
Plan.  This plan sets the strategic direction 
for public health related matters into the 
future.
Healthy Environs undertook the project 
with the Public Health Plan adopted by 
Council during 13/14FY.

3.3.2 3.4.1 / 
3.4.6 / 
3.4.7

Introduction of 
appropriate 
planning 
strategy.

Public 
Consultation 
Undertaken.
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Strategic Plan and Annual Objectives 
The key plan of a Council is its Strategic 
Management Plan, which identifies the 
objectives and future direction of Council.  It also 
contains goals, strategies and performance 
indicators.  Council adopted its revised Strategic 
Management Plan covering the years 2013 to 
2017 in February 2013.

Following is a diagrammatic representation of 
the connection between Council’s Strategic 
Plan, Annual Business Plan and the Annual 
Budget.

Council acknowledges its accountability to 
ratepayers for the creating of community values 
and safeguarding ratepayer funds. This is 
achieved by the adoption and monitoring of 
corporate strategies, plans, policies and 
performance.

VISION  
Respecting the Past
Creating our Future.

ASPIRATION 
Supporting community life through the provision 
of services, creating a healthy balance of urban 
and rural whilst fostering health, recreation, 
learning, investment, jobs and transport 
opportunities.

VALUES 
Light Regional Council acknowledges its 
accountability to its residents and ratepayers for 
the creation and fostering of community values 
and safeguarding ratepayer funds. This is 
achieved by the adoption and monitoring of 
corporate strategies, plans, policies and 
performance.

Light Regional Council, in developing its core 
values, has considered some of the key 
ingredients to maximising its service delivery. An 
entity that exists to provide services to the 
greater community such as a Council must 
develop some core values for the staff and 
elected members to stand by as they perform 
their duties.

At Light Regional Council, the staff and elected 
members embrace the following three clear and 
truly core values which go to the heart of the 
Council's ideology. These values express how 
the Council operates, lives, breathes and 
expresses itself through its daily duties in a clear 
and succinct manner;

Leadership 
Environmental and Financial 
Sustainability 
Respect, Honesty and Integrity 

As Council harnesses its vision and aspirations 
encompassed by its core values of operation, it 
leads to a future of benefits for the residents and 
ratepayers of, and visitors to the region.

 
2014/15 Annual Business Plan and 

Budget
(Objectives, Measurable Outcomes, 

Funding strategies and Rating Values) 

Infrastructure 
and Asset 

Management 
Plan (IAMP) 

Long term 
financial plan 

(LTFP) 

Strategic Plan 

Infrastructure
and Asset

Management 
Plan (IAMP)

(LTFP) A diagrammatic representation 
of the connection between 
Council’s Strategic Plan, 
Annual Business Plan and the 
Annual Budget.
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2014/2015 Annual Objectives and Activities (including performance 
measures) 
The proposed 2014/2015 objectives are as follows:

Operational Area Strategic Management Plan (SMP) Reference Measureable Outcome 2014/2015 

Department Objective 
SMP Category Item 

(3.3) SMP Focus Item (3.4) Financial Non-Financial 
Strategy, 
Projects & 
Engineering
(incorporating 
Development 
& Regulatory 
Services 
functions)

Delivery of 
Kapunda Rail 
Trail Links 
Project

3.3.6 3.4.2 / 3.4.3 / 3.4.4 / 
3.4.5 / 3.4.7

Delivered within 
budget

Safe off-road recreational 
public walk.

Public/Private agreement 
negotiated for re-use of 
unused rail corridor for 
community recreational 
benefit

Development 
Plan 
Amendment for 
Roseworthy 
Garden Town (or 
alternative 
thereto).

3.3.1 / 3.3.2 / 3.3.3 / 
3.3.5

3.4.1 / 3.4.2 / 3.4.3 / 
3.4.4 / 3.4.5 / 3.4.6

Equitable developer 
and council funding 
arrangement

Establishment strategic 
development 
documentation for 
residential, commercial 
and industrial zone growth

Undertake 
Heritage Policy 
Review

3.3.1 / 3.3.2 3.4.1 / 3.4.2 / 3.4.3 Delivered within 
budget

Establishment strategic 
policy documentation to 
aid appropriate 
development outcomes

Establishment of 
Freeling RSL 
Memorial 
Garden

3.3.4 / 3.3.6 3.4.2 / 3.4.3 Completion of community 
contemplation and service 
recognition area as part of 
Freeling Railway Reserve 
precinct

Kapunda Historic 
Mine Site Project

3.3.3 / 3.3.4 / 3.3.6 3.4.2 / 3.4.3 / 3.4.5 / 
3.4.6 / 3.4.7 

Delivered within 
budget

Finalisation of Stage 1 of 
project delivery to identify 
and refurbish mine-site 
grounds

Barossa Entry 
Statements 
Project

3.3.3 / 3.3.5 3.4.3 / 3.4.4 / 3.4.7 Contribution 
delivered within 
budget 

In conjunction with 
Barossa Regional 
Development Australia, 
contribution to regional 
entry statement project.

Development 
Roadside 
Vegetation 
Management 
Plan

3.3.2 / 3.3.7 3.4.2 / 3.4.5 Delivered within 
budget. Project 
funding obtained.

Update source roadside 
vegetation plan originally 
established in the mid-
2000s.

Youth Bus 
Project

3.3.3  3.4.4 / 3.4.6 Contribution 
delivered within 
budget

Regional partnership 
established to assist 
disadvantaged youth.

Consultation 
Township 
Futures Project

3.3.2 3.4.1 / 3.4.2 / 3.4.3 / 
3.4.6 / 3.4.7

Delivered within 
budget

Development of 
appropriate planning 
strategies involving 
community engagement 
activities building strategic 
directions for Freeling and 
Wasleys townships
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Operational Area Strategic Management Plan (SMP) Reference Measureable Outcome 2014/2015 

Department Objective 
SMP Category Item 

(3.3) SMP Focus Item (3.4) Financial Non-Financial 
Undertake 
Township 
Review

3.3.2 3.4.1 / 3.4.2 / 3.4.3 / 
3.4.6 / 3.4.7

Delivered within 
budget.

Development of 
appropriate planning 
strategy, following on from 
2013/2014 Township 
Futures exercise develop 
township review for 
Kapunda

Barossa 
Protection 
Development 
Plan 
Amendment

3.3.1 3.4.1 / 3.4.2 / 3.4.3 / 
3.4.5 / 3.4.7 Delivered within 

budget.

Update to the Council’s 
development plan in 
alignment with legislated 
direction of Barossa 
Protection Bill

Commence 
delivery of 
Hewett 
Recreation 
Precinct

3.3.3 / 3.3.4 3.4.1 / 3.4.3 / 3.4.4 / 
3.4.5 / 3.4.6

Delivered within 
budget. Project 
grant funding 
obtained.

Staged project delivery of 
recreational facility over 
multiple years for shared 
use path upgrade, outdoor 
exercise nodes, dog 
friendly park, children’s 
playground and other 
facilities.

Upgrade 
Graphical 
Information 
Systems 
mapping

3.3.6 3.4.1 / 3.4.5 
Delivered within 
budget

Update township and 
district aerial mapping 
plans and overlay

Continue 
development of 
Gawler Water 
Project

3.3.2 / 3.3.3 / 3.3.4 / 
3.3.5 / 3.3.7

3.4.1 / 3.4.3 / 3.4.4 / 
3.4.6

Obtain Grant funding On-Ground construction 
design and achievement 
of water supply 
agreements.

Undertake 
Regional 
Horticultural 
Study

3.3.1 / 3.3.2 3.4.1 / 3.4.2 / 3.4.4 / 
3.4.6

Investigative studies 
undertaken, development 
of appropriate planning 
policy, potential 
Development Plan 
Amendment commenced.

Various 
Partnered 
Biodiversity 
Projects

3.3.3 / 3.3.6 3.4.2 / 3.4.3 / 3.4.5 / 
3.4.6 / 3.4.7

Protection of the Natural 
Environment and local 
diversity.

Community 
Grants (including
Events)

3.3.6 3.4.6 / 3.4.7 Grants distributed in 
line with Budget 
Allocations

Multiple community 
projects supported by 
council value adding to 
community benefit.

Economic 
Development 

Establish 
Economic 
Development 
Panel

3.3.2 / 3.3.5 3.4.1 / 3.4.4 / 3.4.6 Establishment of Council 
Section 41 Economic 
Development Panel 
including terms of 
reference and researching 
provision of independent 
membership 
opportunities.
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Operational Area Strategic Management Plan (SMP) Reference Measureable Outcome 2014/2015 

Department Objective 
SMP Category Item 

(3.3) SMP Focus Item (3.4) Financial Non-Financial 
Progress 
centralisation of 
Sporting facility 
options

3.3.2 / 3.3.4 / 3.3.5 3.4.1/ 3.4.5 / 3.4.6 Obtain Grant 
Funding (as 
appropriate)

Progress development of 
Lifestyle Retirement 
Village concept; securing 
DA, tender development, 
establish commitments 
and agreements.

Pursue Kapunda Bowling 
Club development at 
Dutton Park site

Receive Dutton Park 
(KHRC) consultancy 
report on future options

Community engagement 
for Freeling Recreation 
Grounds future 
development.

Undertake 
stakeholder 
engagement

3.3.2 / 3.3.3 / 3.3.5 3.4.1 / 3.4.3 / 3.4.4 / 
3.4.5 / 3.4.6

Alignment (where 
appropriate) of strategic 
planning, i.e. ‘working with 
business’.

Facilitate development 
opportunities e.g. former 
Johnson’s mill site, 
tourism accommodation, 
etc.

Liaise with Barossa RDA.

Consultation with 
Kapunda Business 
Alliance regarding Main 
Street Revitalisation 
Strategy

Facilitate roll out of Five 
Shillings Estate residential 
development

Infrastructure 
& Environment

Undertake 
Annual Capital 
Programs

3.3.4 3.4.4 / 3.4.5 Delivered within 
budget

Assets renewed or 
upgraded in accordance 
with plans.

Undertake 
Annual 
Maintenance 
Programs

3.3.7 3.4.4 / 3.4.5 Delivered within 
budget

Assets maintained in 
accordance with plans.

Business & 
Governance

Undertake 
Council Election 
in accordance 
with Local 
Government 
(Elections) Act 
1999

3.3.6 3.4.3 / 3.4.6 Delivered within 
budget.

Appropriate management 
of ordinary council 
election processes in 
partnership with Electoral 
Commissioner for South 
Australia.

Establishment of ‘new’ 
Council with full 
complement of elected 
members following 
November 2014 election 
declaration.
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Operational Area Strategic Management Plan (SMP) Reference Measureable Outcome 2014/2015 

Department Objective 
SMP Category Item 

(3.3) SMP Focus Item (3.4) Financial Non-Financial 
Develop training 
and
development 
program for 
Elected 
Members

3.3.6 3.4.3 / 3.4.6 Delivered within 
budget.

Undertake training needs 
analysis of council 
members elected at the 
November 2014 ordinary 
council election.

Establish training program 
(preferably on a resource 
sharing basis with 
adjoining councils) for 
council members elected 
at November 2014 for the 
following 12 to 24 month 
period.

Undertake 
integration of 
Library Services 
and Customer 
Service functions 
of Council.

3.3.6 3.4.3 / 3.4.5 Achieve alignment of 
customer service activities 
into department structure 
following organisation 
review adopted April 
2014.

Implementation 
Internal Control 
program in 
accordance with 
Local 
Government 
(Financial 
Management) 
Regulations 
2011

3.3.6 3.4.5 Internal Control Program 
and Software 
implemented; programs 
and procedures achieved.

Develop, 
Implement, 
Monitor and 
Review Work, 
Health Safety 
and Injury 
Management
Plan 2014 - 2017

2.4A (iii) WHS & IM Plan 
developed and 
implemented.

Work Safety practices 
adhered to with risk and 
Injuries reduced.

Alignment to State 
Strategic Plan Target 21 
‘Greater Safety at Work”

Ensure 
compliancy with 
Standards 1, 2 
and 3 of the 
Workcover SA 
Performance 
Standards for 
Self Insurers

2.4A (iii) Delivered within 
budget.

Compliant WHS Policy 
and Procedures.

Reduction of 
Annual Loan 
Borrowings

3.3.6 / 3.3.7 3.4.5 Delivered within 
budget.

Long Term Financial 
Performance indicator 
met.

Total Outstanding loan 
borrowings compared to 
the previous reporting 
period reduced

Reduction of 
Annual (Net) 
Operating Deficit

3.3.6 / 3.3.7 3.4.5 Delivered within 
budget.

Long Term Financial 
Performance indicator 
met.

Operating deficit 
(Operating revenue, less 
operating expenditure) 
reduced compared to the 
previous reporting period.
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Development & Regulatory Services 
Council provides a wide range of services within 
its Development & Regulatory Services 
department, including:

Development plan assessment for land use 
and land division matters;
Building rules assessment (building 
surveying);
Building fire safety;
Public and environmental health matters;
Immunisation;
Food safety and hygiene;
Compliance and enforcement;
Wastewater management; and.
General inspectorial services (dog and cat 
management, fire prevention, litter control, 
by-laws and parking);

These services are regulated by various State 
Government Acts and Regulations.

In addition to statutory duties, officers within the 
department provide pro-active community liaison 
on various community interest subjects such as 
health related issues, building and fire safety 
matters and responsible pet ownership via the 
Council’s web site and through various other 
media. 

 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
The Development and Regulatory Services 
department assess development applications for 
various forms of development against the 
provisions of the Development Act 1993 and 
Regulations 2008 and against the relevant 
provisions of the Light Regional Council 
Development Plan.

Statutory Planning 
Council staff assess various forms, types and 
categories of development applications and 
determine their appropriateness or otherwise 
through their detailed process.  Some 
applications were ‘consent’ applications which 
did not involve public notification and are dealt 
with by Council staff using their delegated 
authority as granted by Council.

Some applications considered as Category 2 or
3 forms of development pursuant to the 
Development Act required public notification. 
Similarly, those forms of development classed 
as non-complying followed the public notification 
process.

During the 2013/2014 financial year, there were 
thirty one (31) Category 2 development 
applications assessed, three (3) Category 3 
developments assessed and four (4) non-
complying applications processed.  There was 
also one (1) minor non-complying development 
application that was not required to undergo 
public notification.

In all 523 development applications were 
submitted to Council during the reporting period.

Development Assessment Panel  
Light Regional Council’s Development 
Assessment Panel (DAP) is charged with the 
responsibility of considering development 
applications on behalf of the Council in 
circumstances where the nature of development 
is deemed non-complying or where a particular 
proposal generates significant public interest 
through the public notification process.  Such 
proposals are usually outside of the staff’s 
delegated decision making powers. The Panel 
considered eleven (11) development 
applications during the 2013/2014 year, 
compared with thirteen (13) applications for the 
previous financial year.

The Panel, chaired by Independent Member, Mr 
Bruce Ballantyne, has operated extremely well 
through its discussion and decision making 
processes.  It has also taken the opportunity to 
input to policy making by outlining potential 
areas where the Development Plan could 
provide improved guidance and in the 
2013/2014 reporting period, the Council’s DAP 
reported on the following matters to the Council:

Land Divisions 
A re-occurring pattern appeared to emerge
during the reporting period whereby applications 
were being considered by the Panel that involve 
the division or boundary re-alignment of farming 
land for the purpose of creating a smaller rural 
living sized allotment outside of the Rural Living 
Zones or other designated residential areas.  
The land divisions proposed to excise the 
original farm dwelling and have it form part of 
the smaller allotment with the balance of the 
farming land no longer being held in association 
to the farming operations occurring on the land.
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The Panel reinforced the provisions of the 
Development Plan and considered that such 
land divisions were a clear misalignment as 
allowing small allotments comprising an ancillary 
dwelling with no viable opportunity for the land to 
be used for cropping, grazing and other primary 
production activities in the Primary Industry 
Zone. It was recognised that whilst the larger of 
the two allotments sought to be retained for 
primary production purposes, the smaller 
allotments that contain the original farm dwelling 
would enable permanent residential occupation 
on an allotment that would no longer be in 
association with the farming use of the land.  
The provisions of the Primary Industry zoned 
land (inclusive of the Primary Industry and 
Primary Industry (Barossa Valley Region)) within 
the Development Plan policy supports ancillary 
accommodation when in association with 
primary production activities.  The excising of 
the farm house from the farming land may in fact 
lead to future applications for a farm dwelling to 
be constructed on the large farming allotment, 
which would further result in the loss of 
productive farming land.

It was recommended that the Council consider 
as part of its Development Plan Policy review to 
introduce non-complying provisions that require 
minimum allotment sizes within the Primary 
Industry Zone that prohibit a land division or 
boundary re-alignment in the circumstances 
outlined above.

Character Preservation District  
The Minister introduced the interim Barossa and 
McLaren Vale Protection District in 2011 which 
affected a number of councils (including Light) 
and this sought to protect the special character 
of the Barossa Valley and McLaren Vale districts 
and prevent urban sprawl.  Light Regional 
Council was affected by the policy amendment 
made by the Minister which largely placed a 
“development freeze” over all the land to the 
east of the Sturt Highway extending through and 
including the Barossa Valley. The freeze 
restricted new wineries or extensions to existing 
wineries, land divisions outside of townships, 
dwellings in association with farming land, just to 
cite a few examples.  The Minister’s intention 
was not to create a total development freeze but 
rather restrict development outside of townships.  
Such restrictions sought to prevent dwellings 
land divisions and residential enclaves outside 
of existing townships.

Concern was raised with the policy by a number 
of Councils throughout the consultation period 
and the Protection District was terminated on 12 
April 2012 and replaced by the Barossa Valley 
and McLaren Vale (Revised) Protection Districts 

Development Plan Review.  It was as a result of 
the “development freeze” that was introduced by 
the Minister which resulted in some applications 
that would have ordinarily been assessed as 
merit applications rather than non-complying 
forms of development.  This included the 
construction of a dwelling in association with the 
farming use of the land at Rosedale.

The final version of the Character Preservation 
Legislation and Development Plan provisions 
were introduced on 24 January 2013, and with 
the exception of land divisions, the zones 
affected by the Character Preservation District 
are as they were previously written prior to the 
introduction of the Ministerial DPA.

The Council as part of a collaborative approach 
with Barossa, Mid Murray and Adelaide Hills 
Council had the opportunity to work together as 
affected Councils to provide input into the 
Planning Strategy.  This process has now been 
completed.  

Laucke Mill at Daveyston 
Also during the term of the reporting period, a
warehouse at the Laucke Mill site at Daveyston 
was also considered by the Panel.  The zoning 
of the land is that of “Primary Industry” and fails 
to acknowledge that Laucke Mill has been in 
operation since 1987 with a number of other 
approvals since.  Notwithstanding this fact the 
zone fails to recognise the Mill’s existence and 
does not list expansion of the Mill or 
development associated with the Mill as merit 
forms of development.  The majority of the 
extensions over the years have been for general 
industrial uses which are specifically listed as 
non-complying.  The lack of recognition for this 
long-standing facility has resulted in most 
development applications on this site having to 
undergo category 3 public notification or non-
complying assessment process notwithstanding 
the long standing entrenched land use on the 
site.

It has been recommended that Council identify 
the Laucke Mill within a specific Industrial Zone 
or within a Policy Area of the Primary Industry 
Zone so as to facilitate improved process for 
development at that site.
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Environment Resources and Development 
Court Appeal Proceedings 
The relevant legislation determines that should a 
person be aggrieved by a planning decision of 
Council, appeals may be lodged with the 
Environment, Resources and Development 
Court. 

One Appeal to the Environment, Resources and 
Development Court was made by an aggrieved 
applicant during the reporting period,
challenging the categorisation of an application 
as a non-complying form of development.  This 
challenge was pursuant to Section 86(1) (f)(ii) of 
the Development Act 1993.  The matter has yet 
to be determined and is expected to be finalised 
in 2014.

Building Surveying  
The Building Surveyors within Council perform 
the role of assessing development applications 
for compliance with the National Construction 
Code of Australia, the Development Act 1993 
and the Development Regulations 2008. 

Developments are classed depending on their 
use with Class 1 and 10 grouped as dwelling 
and domestic outbuilding construction and Class 
2-9 grouped as commercial and industrial type 
buildings. Assessment of building rules consent 
includes, but is not limited to, the review of 
following aspects:-

Site preparation;
Footings and slabs;
Masonry construction;
Framing including both timber and steel;
Roof and wall cladding;
Glazing;
Fire Safety, Construction and Services;
Health and amenity ;
Safe movement and access;
Energy efficiency; and
Maintenance.

Once the design and specifications of the 
proposed development has been checked for 
compliance with the National Construction Code, 
Building Code of Australia, relevant codes and 
standards then the Building Surveyor issues 
Development Approval on Council’s behalf.

Recent codes and legislation changes 
To perform the role of a Building Surveyor, staff 
must ensure they keep abreast of legislation and 
the many changes which affect the role. Some 
of the major changes that influenced Building 
Surveying in the 2013/2014 financial year can 
be summarised as follows:-

Swimming Pool and Spa Safety Barriers 
Some of the key changes to swimming pool 
legislation include:

The minister’s specification SA 76D which 
was issued in May 2014 which stipulates the 
requirements for upgrading prescribed 
swimming pools (pools approved, 
constructed or installed before 1 July 1993) 
when a prescribed event occurs needs to be 
compliant with the current safety barriers for 
swimming pools standard AS1926.1 – 2012. 
From 1 January 2014 new pool applicants 
need to give notification to council when the 
construction of their new pool is completed, 
before it is filled with water and are also 
required to notify when construction of the 
approved swimming pool barrier is 
completed. 
Councils are now required to inspect 80% of 
all new pools within its council area that 
have notified within two weeks and the 
remaining 20% within two months.

CFS fire system requirements - farm 
buildings 
The Country Fire Service released a revised 
document providing general guide to what Fire 
Hydrant systems may be acceptable for Farm 
Buildings less than 2,000m2 and 12,000m3 with 
no suitable mains water available. The hope is it 
simplifies future farm building development 
applications and help in communications with 
farmers and shed builders regarding what they 
are required to install. The Council’s building 
department has reviewed this documentation 
and will be providing this information to 
applicants when these systems are required to 
help applicants understand the assessment 
process and to help streamline the 
documentation process for them.
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DPTI Building Assessment Audits 
In February and March this year the Department 
of Planning, Transport and Infrastructure held 
information sessions about the building rules 
assessment audits that will be undertaken by the 
State Government.  An audit is required for 
building rules consents granted by local councils 
and private certifiers and are focused on the 
system of procedures established by private 
certifiers and councils for ensuring compliance 
with the Development Act 1993 (the Act) and the 
Development Regulations 2008 (the 
Regulations) in accordance with Section 56B of
the Act. 

The audits are to ascertain that assessment 
processes related to building rules consents and 
residential code development plan consents are 
carried out as required by legislation. The audits 
are performed by an independent auditor 
nominated by the minister responsible for 
planning. 

Building Code of Australia Changes 
The new Building Code of Australia was 
provided in May this year. Changes were 
minimal but some variations of note included;-

Reference has been made to the new 
standard for construction of buildings in 
flood hazard areas. It must be noted that the 
adoption of this reference has been deferred 
in South Australia pending further research 
into 1:100 year flood events in the state.

The current 2012 version of wind loads 
standard AS4055 has finally superseded the 
2006 version after a 12month transition 
phase.

Improving early response to residential fires 
through interconnection of smoke alarms.

The requirement to provide fire hose reels to 
class 2, 3 and 4 parts of buildings has been 
removed.

Provisions have been amended to permit 
the use of photo-luminescent exit signs.

Reference to Ministers Specification SA 
F1.7 “Waterproofing in buildings- Additional 
requirements” has been deleted and is now 
obsolete.

In light of these changes the building 
department has amended information sheets 
and other assessment documentation to bring 
councils documentation up to current standards.
 
 
Inspections 
Site inspections are undertaken on building work 
in progress to ensure development is 
constructed in accordance with the development 
approval and also to meet the relevant codes 
and standards.  The inspections are usually 
undertaken on a random audit basis, but in 
accordance with Council’s Building Inspection 
Policy.  As per the table below all classes of 
buildings are inspected with a particular 
emphasis on dwelling framing and also 
swimming pool and safety barriers which 
Council views as a major importance to the 
safety of the community.

Class of 
Building

Inspection 
Rate %

Comments

1 and 10 66

Involving the construction of 
roof framing where a 
licenced builder is 
responsible for the building 
work

1 and 10 90

Involving the construction of 
roof framing where no 
licensed builder is 
responsible for building work

10 100

Swimming pools and 
associated safety barriers 
(80% within 2 weeks of 
notification, final 20% within 
2 months of notification)

10 50 Pylon signs, retaining walls 
and the like

7-8 10 Portal frame buildings

2-9 90 Excluded Class 7 &8 portal 
frame buildings

1-10 90 Structures impinging on a 
public place

10 10 Structures not otherwise 
captured above
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Further to inspection of building work resulting from development applications, council also undertakes 
inspections of compliance issues resulting from:-

Unapproved building works; and
Dangerous structures and emergency situations.

The below table depicts Council’s inspection regime during the reporting period.

Inspection Type Class 1 & 2 Class 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 
8 & 9

Class 10 Class 10 – Pools

Site 26 7 32
Frame 15

Roof Truss 6
Roof Frame 1

Footing 3
Brickwork 1

Final 3 6 11 50
Total 55 6 18 82

Building Fire Safety Committee 
Local government plays an important role in 
protecting the ongoing safety of building 
occupiers and users through the provisions of 
the Development Act 1993 and is therefore 
required by legislation to have a Building Fire 
Safety Committee.  The Committee is charged 
with the responsibility for all matters arising 
under Section 71 of the Development Act 1993 
which are of a building fire safety nature.
 

 
Water storage tank and fire services assembly at 
a large isolated industrial building.
 
The Committee is made up of four members;
one employed by Council, and three (3) 
independent members which represent the 
South Australian Fire Services (CFS and MFS) 
and an independent Building Surveyor.

Section 71 establishes powers to investigate 
whether building owners are maintaining proper 
levels of fire safety in their buildings for the 
protection of all occupiers, whether there are 
residents and workers who use them regularly, 
or clients and visitors who only use them 
occasionally.

 
Commissioning of fire services by the CFS after 
installation under instruction of the Building Fire 
Safety Committee 

The Committee meets on a quarterly basis with 
the purpose to undertake inspections of 
commercial or accommodation premises to 
determine the adequacy of fire safety for 
occupants.  The Committee assesses items 
such as fire safety equipment (extinguishers, 
hose reels etc), exits (suitable door hardware 
allowing a person to escape without requiring 
keys), smoke alarms and smoke detectors.

Following on from the inspections, the 
Committee forwards a list of items to the owner 
that requires rectification, and requests a 
response that details a time frame or program 
for when the works are likely to be completed.  
The Committee is conscious that current 
budgets may not allow for completion of work 
immediately and therefore the Committee 
requires the schedule to allow for works that can 
be completed in stages to assist with financial 
concerns. 
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Development Statistics 
 

 

Dwellings Approved Per Area 

Locality 2013/14 2012/13 2011/12 2010/11
Freeling 35% 43% 29% 33%
Gawler Belt 2% 4% 2% 2%
Greenock 14% 10% 8% 20%
Hewett 10% 6% 9% 21%
Kapunda 12% 11% 24% 10%
Roseworthy 1% 3% 5% 1%
Wasleys 13% 10% 17% 9%
Other 13% 13% 6% 4%

A total of 104 dwellings were granted Development Approval during the 2013/2014 financial year, 
compared with 102 dwellings the previous financial year.
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Environmental Health 
 
Food Business Inspections 
Council continues to manage its responsibilities in surveillance and inspections in line with the Food Act 
2001 and National Food Safety Standards.  Food safety and hygiene information packs are distributed to 
all food business, community and charitable organisations in the Council region upon request or when 
required under legislation. Council undertakes free inspections of those business operators who are 
about to/or commencing a new food business operation.

The following food premises inspections were undertaken for the 2013/14 financial year: 

Risk No. of 
Businesses

No. of Routine 
Inspections

No. of Follow-
Up Inspections

Inspections 
Resulting from 

Complaints

Low 97 32 0 1

Medium 40 18 3 1

High 52 49 1 0

Total 189 99 3 2

Food business operators have a legal and moral 
responsibility to ensure that not only are their 
premises in a clean and hygienic state, but also 
to ensure that the food they serve is safe and 
suitable for human consumption. Council 
continues to take food safety enforcement and 
public education very seriously and will take 
enforcement action when required to do so. It 
was noted during the reporting period an 
increase in the number of food based operations 
in residential properties operating as a home 
activity; Council provides food safety advice and 
inspections of new businesses at no charge.

Throughout 2013/14 no expiations were issued, 
one improvement notice and six warning letters 
were sent to food businesses. Council noted an 
improvement in food business compliance with 
the Food Safety Standards and attention to 
general hygiene was observed.  Council’s 
Environmental Health Officer noted that some 
food businesses were still utilising eggs from 
unregistered eggs supplies which is an offence 
and it poses a significant risk of food poisoning 
due to contamination from faecal matter and the 
possibility of vermin urine on eggs that are 
sourced from un-accredited suppliers.  

One expiation of $500.00 under the Food Act 
2001 can be issued for each non-compliance 
with the National Food Safety Standards.

Faecal matter on eggs in a commercial food 
business
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Public Health Act 2011 
Council maintains its responsibilities under the 
Public Health Act 2011 and further improves 
ongoing regulatory compliance whilst promoting 
public health concerns throughout the 
community. Council has been working to 
complete the Public Health and Wellbeing Plan 
with The Barossa Council, District Council of 
Mallala and the Town Of Gawler.  The draft plan 
and public consultation processes are complete 
and the final regional plan will be presented to 
the Council for adoption later in 2014.

Council sent out information packs to all known 
previous waste water system applicants over the 
past 12 months informing them of changes to 
the waste water regulations and other legislation 
information to aid applicants in the Council 
application process.

Public Health and Safety Promotion 
Council, in conjunction with Environmental 
Health Officers from the Town of Gawler,
undertook and promoted a public presentation 
and question time at the Hewett Community 
Centre.  This the second in a series of public 
sessions undertaken in the last 12 months and 
this session addressed common food safety and 
hygiene issues in food business operations. In 
particular community and charitable food 
business operators were targeted for the 
presentation. The question time proved very 
popular allowing attendees to ask questions in 
confidence regarding their own food business 
operations, or issues they may have noted in the 
community.

Food Safety Presentation Hewett Centre

Public health messages were also promoted in 
the local printed medial targeting food safety,
waste water control systems and immunisation. 
These public notices together with the public 
information question time session highlighted 
Council’s approach in working collaboratively
with other Local Government authorities to 
provide and promote public health services.

Immunisation 
Council continues to deliver immunisation 
services for high schools within the Council 
district.  The school based immunisation 
program continues to be serviced by the Health 
First Solutions.  To ensure Council residents 
have the best possible access and advice to 
immunisation Council strives to ensure that 
accurate information regarding immunisation is 
provided.  Council works in conjunction with the 
Town of Gawler to ensure those residents that 
request immunisation services are able to 
access public immunisation clinics. Council 
continues to provide free sharps containers
(from the Kapunda and Freeling offices of 
Council) and collection for all residents as an
important public health service.

Complaints and Offensive Activities 
During the reporting period a diverse number of 
public health complaints and concerns were 
received and investigated including effluent 
odour issues, rats and other vermin, 
gastroenteritis outbreak and rubbish dumping to 
name a few. A slight increase in property 
owners abandoning their homes and leaving 
rubbish and other items contributing to localised 
public health complaints was also noted. These 
particular issues have been quickly and easily 
resolved with minimal intervention by Council 
and the assistance of other authorities. No 
formal notices were served by Council’s 
Environmental Health Officer to resolve 
complaints relating to public health during the 
reporting period.

Accumulated rubbish from an abandoned 
residential property
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Public Health Concerns

Hairdressers 
The majority of hairdressers and beauty salons 
were inspected during the reporting period and 
no adverse conditions were noted. Indeed the 
attention to good hygiene practices maintained 
by operators was of a high standard and is 
commended by the Council.

Public and Environmental Health Issues 

Vector Control and Pests 
Council continues to provide advice to residents 
regarding the control of mosquitoes and midges.
Vector surveillance and control work was 
undertaken near Shea-Oak Log, residential 
areas of Wasleys as well as the effluent storage 
lagoons adjacent Kapunda. 

Council, at the request of the Department of 
Health, undertook a number of follow-up 
inspections to provide public health advice.
There was a decrease in the number of 
European Wasp nests destroyed during the 
reporting period and a small increase in the 
number of bee hives destroyed. Council 
continues to destroy European Wasp nests free 
of charge for all residents in the Council area.

Pool and Spa Inspections 
There are four public swimming pools and one 
health spa in the Council area.  During the 
reporting period all pools were inspected at least 
once to ensure effective and safe management,
adequate training in first aid and to assess the 
upkeep of pool infrastructure and surrounds.  
This is important to maintain the appropriate 
health standards and compliance with the 
relevant legislation.  The health spa was 
inspected to ensure appropriate health and 
hygiene practices are in place to prevent the 
potential transmission of infectious diseases.

 
High Risk Manufactured Water Systems 
There are currently seven (7) identified facilities 
that utilise cooling tower systems and one (1) 
warm water system within the Council area. All 
facilities were issued with notices under the 
Public and Environmental Health (Legionella) 
Regulations requiring independent third party 
auditing of maintenance systems and separate 
microbiological reports. One non-compliance 
issue was noted during the reporting period 
where a high bacterial count was identified in a 
business operation.  Decontamination 
procedures were implemented in accordance 
with Department of Health requirements and 
follow-up inspections were undertaken.
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Onsite Waste Water Control and Sewer Systems 
During the reporting period the following new wastewater control system applications were received and 
assessed by Council. Council undertakes mandatory inspections as part of the system installation 
process.  Installers are required to give Council 24 hours’ notice for all inspections.  Not all installers 
notify Council.
 

Type of System Number of Applications Number of Inspections

Septic Tank 43 35

Aerobic System 30 12

Soakage 11 4

Sewer Connections 36 8

Underfloor N/A 57

Site Evaluations N/A 64

Final N/A 5

CWMS Main N/A 9

Development Referrals N/A 15

Other 4 3

Total 124 197

The processing and approval of wastewater works applications constitute a large part of the 
Environmental Health Officer workload, including residential, commercial, winery expansion and 
redevelopment operations.  Council continues to provide advice and technical information to clients who 
are preparing applications to Council. 

Council served three notices under the South Australian Public Health Act 2011 during the reporting 
period all which related to one non-compliance issue. This issue was resolved to Council satisfaction, 
with no deleterious effects to public or environmental health.
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General Inspectorate 
Council is responsible under the Dog and Cat 
Management Act to receive registrations for 
dogs, provide a suitable pound for detained 
dogs and undertake enforcement of the Act 
where breaches are detected. During the 
2013/2014 registration period there has been an 
increase in dog registrations from 4,064 to 
4,412, (348 new dog registrations).  

Each year we have a steady increase in 
registrations; this is in part due to the increase in 
the number of new dwellings in the community. 
However with an increase of dogs there is an 
increase of dog issues which is reflected in the 
statistics for the year. 

’Chops’
the Sausage Dog coming in to be registered 
at the Freeling Office

There was a considerable increase in the 
number of wandering dogs this year which can 
be attributed to the unusual amount of thunder 
storms we have had as well as the increase in 
dog numbers.  Pursuant to the Dog and Cat 
Management Act 1995, during 2013/2014
Council has dealt with:-

46 barking dog complaints;
188 wandering dog complaints;
68 dogs have been impounded;
53 dogs have been returned to owners 
before being impounded;
35 dogs impounded and returned to 
owners;
3 harassment to human complaints;
10 dog attacks on humans; 
13 dog attacks on other animals; and
32 cat complaints.
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Whilst Council has resolved not to introduce cat 
management controls other than the control of 
the number of cats on a premise (by way of By-
Laws), residents are afforded advice and 
assistance in the removal of stray or feral cats to 
lessen their impact on the environment and 
society.

Council received 32 cat complaints during the 
year and carried out a trapping programme in 
Wasleys and a section of Kapunda. The result of 
the trapping programme resulted in 23 stray 
cats/feral cats being euthanised. Council has an 
agreement with a local veterinary surgery to
humanely euthanise stray and feral cats.

Livestock issues investigated by Council

Light Regional Council falls within the Mid North 
Fire Ban District. The Fire Danger Season for 
the Mid North District is 15 November to 31 
March (subject to change dependant on the 
season) and fires are not permitted during the 
Fire Danger Season unless a permit has been 
issued.  Permits are available from Council’s 
Fire Prevention Officer.

The Fire and Emergency Services Act 2005 
stipulates that each rural Council must appoint a 
Fire Prevention Officer for its area.  The role of 
the Fire Prevention Officer appointed by this 
Council includes the monitoring of residential 
areas to ensure landowners take reasonable 
steps to protect their property from fire, as 
required under the Act.  Inspections of 
residential areas in the lead up to and during the 
Fire Danger Season are carried out to assess 
compliance in respect to fuel loadings, with the 
resultant issuing of fire notices where 
compliance has not been met.  

Overgrown vegetation on private property  
Council issued 500 fire notices pursuant to the 
Act during the 2013/2014 Fire Danger Period 
requiring landowners to attend to maintenance 
of land to reduce the risk of fire. This was an 
increase of 8 notices issued from the previous 
year. 

Council’s Fire Prevention Officer is also 
responsible for the monitoring of compliance for 
the purpose of burning off crop stubble in 
agricultural holdings.  As the district is largely 
agricultural, predominantly comprising cereal 
cropping, the agricultural practice of burning 
stubble to lessen weed and pest infestation is 
followed.  During the Fire Danger Season, 
Council’s Fire Prevention Officer issued 66
permits for that purpose.

Council is a Member of the Flinders Mid North 
Yorke Bushfire Management Committee. It has 
been noted the size and area covered by the 
Flinders Mid North Yorke Councils is large and 
diverse and requires different controls at 
different times due to the diversity.  Plans are in 
place to reduce the size of the Committee by 
dividing the area into more reasonable sections 
which will happen over the next 12 months.
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Customer Services
Currently the department has between two and 
three dedicated primary receivers/agents 
answering incoming telephone calls daily while a 
small number of secondary receivers/agents 
field overburden incoming calls in the event the 
primary agents are attending to other calls or
front counter customer enquiries.

During the period July 2013 to June 2014, 
average incoming calls to Council per month 
were 1,730 calls which is close to ‘on par’ with
the previous financial year.  Primary or 
secondary agents answered 97.7% of incoming 
calls, which has increased from 97.5% from 
2012/2013 and a testament to the service 
culture of Council’s customer service team.

Friendly Customer Service Staff

Customer Service Award 
The Cemeteries & Crematoria Association of 
South Australia has created the Darren Leuders 
Customer Service Award in recognition of the 
long standing service provided by Darren 
Leuders a past General Manager and Chief 
Executive Officer of the Adelaide Cemeteries 
Authority.

This award is presented on an annual basis to a 
person who has demonstrated outstanding 
commitment and service to a cemetery in South 
Australia. 

The 2014 Darren Leuders Customer Service 
Award was presented to Valda Baker-Wells, 
representing the Light Regional Council.  Valda, 
as part of her roll at Light Regional Council, is 
involved with managing and administering the 
care and maintenance of Council’s three main 
public cemeteries Kapunda, Freeling and 
Greenock.

In March 2013, the Kapunda Cemetery 
experienced 68 acts of vandalism throughout its 
historic and recent headstones. Valda managed 
the refurbishment process, including 
photographing the damaged headstones, 
providing data to Council’s insurers and 
assisting police with their investigations. 
Throughout the whole process, Valda was very 
compassionate in her communications with the 
community and the families in distress.  She was 
able to arrange for the damage to be repaired 
prior to Easter so that family members could visit 
their loved ones site over that special time.

Valda Baker-Wells accepting the Darren Leuder’s 
Award for Excellence in Customer Service
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Strategy, Projects & Engineering 
 
Council provides a wide range of services 
through its Strategy, Projects & Engineering 
Department.  These services, guided by multiple 
pieces of relevant legislation include:

Strategic and policy planning;
Project Management;
Development Plan Amendments;
Infrastructure strategies, assessments and 
handover processes;
Natural resource & biodiversity management 
(wetlands, waterways and native 
vegetation);
Tourism development;
Infrastructure design and project 
management;
Community and Youth development;
Asset condition assessment and 
Infrastructure knowledge base development; 
and
Geographic Information System 
Management including desktop mapping 
services.

The outcomes of the Strategy, Projects & 
Engineering Department are outlined under the 
following sub-headings;

Significant Developments
Key Project and Service Outcomes
Development Plan Amendments
Strategic Studies 

Significant Developments 
The financial year has seen a number of 
significant Residential and Industrial 
developments either approved or under 
construction.  The Strategy, Projects & 
Engineering Department has assessed the 
technical infrastructure requirements of these 
proposals and has provided on-ground quality 
assurance checks during construction.

The Pines – Freeling South 
Developer – Freeling Holdings Joint Venture
Contractor – LR&M Constructions
Designer – Tonkin Consulting 
Stages released to date – 4
Allotments released to date – 78 lots of 190 total

Stage 3 – The Pines Estate

Stage 3 – The Pines Estate
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Ridley Mill – Wasleys 
Developer – Lanser Communities
Contractor – LR&M Constructions
Designer – Tonkin Consulting 
Stages released to date – 3
Allotments released to date – 56 lots of 56 total 
(Final stage complete)

Streetscape at Ridley Mill Estate – Wasleys

New reserve within Ridley Mill

Key Project and Service Outcomes 
Gawler Water Reuse Scheme Project – 
Significant Water Re-Use Project 

The Council was awarded $10.7M in funding 
from the Commonwealth Government to further 
progress the Gawler Water Reuse Scheme 
Project, as part of the of the National Urban 
Water and Desalination Plan: Stormwater 
Harvesting and Reuse Grants. Since the funding 
announcement for the Project occurred in 
August 2012 a Project Steering Committee 
(PSC) was formed, consisting of the Chief 
Executive Officer of the constituent Councils
proposing to form a Regional Subsidiary to 
implement the Project. The PSC completed a 
comprehensive Expression of Interest and 
Request for Proposal process to select a 
preferred private partner to assist Local 
Government in designing, constructing, 
operating and maintaining the scheme. 

The Project, governed by the PSC which was 
chaired by the Council’s Chief Executive Officer 
and ably supported by Mr Kieren Chappell, the 
Manager – Engineering & Assets, was a joint 
winner of the Local Government Managers 
Australia (SA Division) Leadership Excellence 
Award for Excellence in Water Security.
 
 
 
 
 
 
Kieren Chappell, Manager – Engineering & Assets 
accepting the LGMA Leadership Excellence Award for 
Excellence in Water Security for the Gawler Water Reuse 
Scheme Project
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Flood Mapping for Freeling, Greenock and 
Kapunda 

Council completed two dimensional flood 
modelling and mapping of the Freeling, 
Greenock and Kapunda townships in 
partnership with the Adelaide & Mount Lofty 
Ranges Natural Resources Management (NRM) 

Board and the Stormwater Management 
Authority (SMA). This flood modelling identified 
current flood risk as well as future flood risk if 
development within the townships was to 
proceed without appropriate stormwater 
detention. 
 

 

 
Digital Terrain Model of Greenock

 
Catchment Areas and Runoff Coefficients for Kapunda
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The township flood studies are a precursor to 
Council preparing detailed Stormwater 
Management Plans for each of its major 
townships. The Council has secured partner 
funding from the NRM Board and SMA to carry 
out Stormwater Management Plans for Freeling, 
Greenock and Kapunda in 2014/15.
 

 

 
Flood Inundation and Hazard Maps for Freeling

 

Since completing and acknowledging the flood 
modelling in these townships, Council has 
committed to the State Emergency Services 
(SES) FloodSafe program. The FloodSafe 
program aims to increase resilience in 
communities facing flood risk. The program will 
be tailored to Council’s flood risk profile with a 
range of communication activities being 
undertaken in 2014/15.
 

Strategic Asset Management 
A number of strategic asset management tasks 
were completed throughout the reporting period, 
including:

Desktop revaluation of infrastructure asset 
groups involving updates to standard units
rates, useful lives and valuation 
methodology;
Field survey and recording of asset 
condition, upload of data to the asset 
management system and integration with 
Council’s finance system;
Capitalisation and financial reporting of 
capital works undertaken;
Modelling of service levels provided by asset 
groups for input into the Infrastructure & 
Asset Management Plan, Long Term 
Financial Plan and Annual Business Plan & 
Budget.

A critical objective of Council has been to align 
its infrastructure assets depreciation statement 
with affordable levels of service. Previous 
calculations have widely been accepted as 
recognising desirable/aspirational service levels, 
which are not necessarily achievable.

Council modelling of road service levels using a 
priority scoring system and constrained budget 
scenario’s using the Road Surface Manager 
(RSM) software enabled future service levels to 
be reported for several road renewal funding 
options. Those models were presented to 
Council in March 2014 for a decision to accept 
and subsequently re-state the useful lives of 
road surfaces which is used to calculate 
depreciation. The asset register was updated 
and resulted in a reduction to the annual 
depreciation figure, based upon the acceptance 
of lowering the level of service.
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RSM model outputs showing road surface service levels over time for a specified budget

 
Several strategic asset management tasks, 
identified by the Council following the completion 
of an Asset Management Maturity Assessment 
undertaken in accordance with the National 
Asset Management Strategy, have been 
deferred. 

This is due to a reduction in asset management 
labour resources during the reporting period. 
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Geographical Information Systems (GIS) 
and Infrastructure Asset Management 
The GIS and Assets Group of the Strategy, 
Projects and Engineering team has, throughout 
the year, continued to deliver desktop mapping, 
aerial imagery, planning and infrastructure data 
to staff at 65 computer workstations throughout 
Council’s administrative centres.

Group members have taken pride in delivering 
current, relevant and accurate data layers to 
enable all workgroups of Council to undertake 
their day-to-day tasks and deliver services to the 
Community in the best ways possible. As part of 
these services they have commissioned a series 
of detailed township maps for Greenock, Hewett, 
Roseworthy, Wasleys and Freeling which will be 
released to the greater community in 2014-2015 
financial year.

Asset management outcomes have seen the 
desktop revaluation of Council’s Road 
Infrastructure, Community Wastewater and 
Township Stormwater assets. Infrastructure 
asset data, maintained by the GIS and Assets 
Group, continues to be used for strategic 
infrastructure maintenance and renewal 
planning for the future.

The group have also managed the external 
contract to the ARRB Group for the survey of the 
entire road network condition data which will be 
inputted to the asset management system as at 
1 July 2014.

Wasleys Stormwater Harvesting and Reuse 
Scheme 
Council partnered with the NRM Board and the 
Developer of Ridley Mill Estate in Wasleys to 
design and construct the Wasleys Stormwater 
Harvesting and Reuse Scheme. The project 
involved capturing and treating stormwater 
runoff from the new subdivision and transferring 
it to a new irrigation storage basin constructed 
within the Wasleys Oval recreation precinct. 
New irrigation infrastructure was installed to the 
Wasleys Oval to utilise the harvested 
stormwater for watering the oval. The project 
provides flood mitigation, environmental and 
community recreational benefits.

Laying the new Wasleys Oval irrigation pipework

Building the new irrigation pump station

New Wasleys Oval pop-up sprinklers in operation
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Road Safety Audits 
Council engaged an accredited Road Safety 
Auditor to investigate and prepare audits on 
Stelzer Road and Lyndoch Road, two high use 
Class 1 rural sheeted roads. Because of the 
high traffic volumes and road alignment, the 
gravel surfaces on these roads have historically 
deteriorated quickly after maintenance grading. 
The identified poor road surface between 
grades, along with other issues, has inherent 
traffic hazards that present a risk to safety.

The outcomes of the road safety audits will 
include a cost benefit analysis of a number of 
safety improvements, including sealing the road 
surfaces. This analysis is critical for the Council 
to make informed decisions regarding funding 
infrastructure upgrade projects and is also 
important assessment criteria for external grant 
funding programs.

Traffic counters placed on Lyndoch Road to 
assist the Road Safety Audits

Hanson Street/ Thiele Highway/ Daveyston 
Road Staggered- T Intersection Upgrade 
Council, in conjunction with the Department of 
Planning, Transport and Infrastructure (DPTI) 
and Freeling Holdings Joint Venture 
commenced construction of the $1.515M 
Staggered T Intersection Upgrade at the junction 
of the Thiele Highway, Daveyston Road and 
Hanson Street during the year. 

This project was achievable through a Public-
Private-Partnership, which under the 
stewardship of the Council, leveraged State 
Government Black Spot Funding and a financial 
contribution from the Developer of Freeling 
Estate (Freeling Holdings Joint Venture) to 
complete the detailed design and project 
planning for the much-needed intersection 
upgrade.

The main design features of the upgrade will 
include:

• Protected right hand turning lanes from the 
Thiele Highway into Hanson Street and 
Daveyston Roads;

• Left hand deceleration turning lane from the 
Thiele Highway into Hanson Street;

• Unimpeded through-lanes on the Thiele 
Highway;

• Removal of a crest in the northern approach 
to the intersection to improve sight lines and 
safe stopping sight distances;

• Lighting at the newly created T Junctions.

The intersection upgrade will significantly 
improve the safety of the current cross road 
junction which has a history of serious crashes. 
This important project, initiated by the Council,
will benefit current and future residents, catering 
for increased traffic volumes entering and exiting 
Freeling as a result of the growth of Freeling 
Estate. Visitors to the region will also benefit 
from this upgrade.

Design overlay of Intersection Upgrade project



42 Light Regional Council | Annual Report | 2013 – 2014

.

Kapunda Historic Mine Site Development 
Council adopted a Tourism Development Plan 
(TDP) for the Kapunda Historic Mine Site in 
November 2009.  The Plan identified 
opportunities to improve the tourism experience 
and interpretation of the site to allow visitors to 
discover and connect with this important piece of 
both Kapunda and the State’s history.  The TDP 
identifies three unique zones within the site 
which would benefit from greater interpretation, 
being the: Cultural Zone, Geological Zone and 
the Revegetation Zone.

The Mine Site Project offers local community 
groups and individuals the opportunity for 
hands-on interaction developing sections of the 
site.  The groups involved to date include;
Kapunda and Light Tourism Inc., Rotary, Lions, 
Kapunda Community Shed and Kapunda 
Historical Society.  These community 
participants are determined to ensure the site 
becomes the quality tourism experience that 
such an important historic site warrants.

A Concept Plan has been developed showing 
the Cultural, Geological and Revegetation Zones 
which has guided significant works undertaken 
within the Cultural Zone in particular over the 
last 12 months. These works include 
replacement of the safety fencing for the site, 
repointing of remnant stone wall features, 
excavation of areas of known archaeological 
significance, engineering assessments of 
remnant features including walling and pumping 
shafts and a great deal of community 
involvement and enjoyment of the site.

During the search for the footings outline of a 
cottage on the mine site a large underground 
water tank was uncovered, which has been 
buried under a metre of soil for the last 70 years. 
This tank is in remarkably good condition and 
will be assessed and stabilised for visitors to 
view.
 

 
Long view of underground tank discovered at the 
Kapunda Mine Site in May 2014.  Note the curved 
roof of the structure
 

 
Chimney with new stone retaining wall in 
foreground
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Community Development 

Council’s Community Development is the 
process of building a strong, empowered and 
resilient community on a local level, which is 
adaptive and responsive.

This is achieved by:
Recognising and valuing individual and 
community contributions;
Provision of and advocacy for services;
Encouraging participation in community life;
Promoting and fostering resilience;
Investigating and responding to community 
issues; and
Ensuring the strengths of the Light 
community are maintained and accessible 
to everyone.

This work is supported by community planning 
processes incorporating research, consultation 
and partnerships.

Valuing Community 

Australia Day Awards & Citizenship 
Ceremony 
Council presented Citizen of the Year, Young 
Citizen of the Year and Community Event of the 
Year awards to individuals and groups to 
acknowledge outstanding efforts made by local 
people and groups to the community.  The 
Australia Day Celebrations were held at the 
Freeling Institute on Sunday 26 January 2014, 
with Peter Swann receiving the Citizen of the 
Year award, Melanie Kruse receiving the Young 
Citizen of the Year award and Kapunda Music 
and Arts Festival receiving the Community Event 
of the Year award.

 
 
 

 
2014 Australia Day Award Recipients

National Volunteers Week Recognition 
Event 
For National Volunteers Week in May 2014, 
Council’s Tourism & Special Projects Officer 
conducted a recognition event for volunteers 
across the region.  With over 80 community 
volunteers attending a bonfire night at Kapunda 
Mine Site, Council utilised the opportunity to 
celebrate and recognise individual contributions 
of volunteers from the Light region.
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Provision / Advocacy of Services 
During 2013 and 2014, Council (in partnership 
with The Barossa Council) provided the Home 
Assist, Community Transport Scheme and 
Leisure Options services for its community.  
Council also contributed funds towards 
Volunteering Barossa and Light – a resource 
centre for volunteers coordinated by the Barossa 
Council.

In June 2014, Light Regional Council partnered 
with the Seniors Collaborative Action Project to 
host the ‘Ageing in Style Expo’ at the Kapunda 
Institute.  The aim of the Expo was to showcase 
the diverse range of activities and services 
available for older adults in the local area, with a 
primary focus on increasing the connection and 
participation of the aged within the Light 
community.

2014 Ageing in Style Expo

Youth Advisory Committee 
Over the year, the Light Youth Advisory 
Committee led a number of youth based 
projects, including a National Youth Week Event 
at Dutton Park and a consultation at the Child & 
Youth Friendly Celebration Event.  The Light 
YAC also provided input into a number of 
consultations including:  The Public Health 
Planning Process, the Heritage Policy Review, 
and the Regional Community Transport 
Workshop.
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Building Community Capacity 

Community Development Grant Program 
Council has continued to support local 
community initiatives and the development of 
appropriate programs, services, activities and 
facilities to meet community need through the 
Community Development Grant Program.  
During 2013/14, this annual program made 
financial contributions totalling $9,970 to 11 
projects conducted by various organisations 
including;  Kapunda Medical Practice, Kapunda 
High School, Freeling Junior Football Club, 
Gawler Airfield Squadron, Kapunda Business 
Alliance, Kapunda Historical Society, Kapunda 
Primary School, Kapunda Shed and Roseworthy 
Campus Childcare.

The Event Sponsorship Program 
This program provides an equitable means for 
community organisations to access Council 
funds and provide opportunities for skill and 
project development for members involved in 
events.  During 2013/14, this annual program 
distributed a total of $8,200 to a number of 
important community events including; Freeling 
Christmas Street Party, Kapunda Farm Fair, 
Freeling RSL, Kapunda Christmas Street Party, 
Seppeltsfield Rd Fun Run and the Kapunda 
Music & Arts Festival.

The Youth Incentive Scheme 
The Youth Incentive Scheme provides funding 
for youth who display considerable talent in 
cultural, sport and recreation, science, 
technology, arts and/or community service 
activities to help enable those persons to 
enhance their talents – whether that is by 
attending training and personal development 
programs or through participation in state or 
national teams.  .

Hewett Shared Use Path – Upgrade and 
Extension of Path Network 
In 2012 Council completed the third stage of the 
Hewett Shared Use Path connecting the Hewett 
Community Centre with the Schmidt Road 
reserve along the North Para River.  The path 
was constructed to a crushed rubble standard 
and is proving to be a popular feature with 
residents of the area.

Council has since been fortunate to secure 
funding from the Commonwealth Government to 
assist with upgrading and extending the Hewett 
Shared Use Path Network (Regional Connector 
Upgrade Project). This funding will see an 
extension of the path through to Kestrel Road as 
well as bitumen sealing of its entire 5.3 kilometre 
length.

The external funding will be matched by Council 
and the project will also realise the development 
of exercise nodes, seating, lighting, safety 
signage and line-marking to improve safety for 
path users.  These works will be progressed in 
2014/2015.

Section of the boardwalk along the shared use 
path

The path network links into the Town of Gawler 
riparian network, which in turn links to the Jack 
Bobridge path network through the Barossa 
Valley and the Stuart O’Grady path network, 
which follows the Northern Expressway. This is 
an extensive network that will allow residents of 
Hewett and students of the Hewett Primary 
School to travel around Hewett and Gawler 
safely removed from the local road network.
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Map showing Shared Use Path, Hewett



Light Regional Council | Annual Report | 2013 – 2014 47

Gawler River Riparian Reserve Habitat 
Restoration Project 

 
Gawler River Riparian Reserve Habitat 
Restoration Project Location

Council with assistance from the Adelaide and 
Mount Lofty Natural Resources Management 
Board is undertaking a comprehensive 
rehabilitation of two riparian reserves on 
community land along the Gawler River.

These projects have seen the removal of exotic 
vegetation such as ash trees, wild olives and 
castor oil plants.  These will now be replaced 
through revegetation works with a range of 
suitable native species, which will enable the 
natural balance of this section of the riparian 
environment to reassert itself and assist with 
revitalising a wildlife corridor along the Gawler 
River.
 

Pengilly Scrub (Mudla Wirra Reserve) 
Biodiversity Maintenance 

 

 
Pengilly Scrub

Council manages a 20 hectare area of remnant 
mallee vegetation, which is situated south of the 
town of Wasleys. This reserve is an open 
woodland system framed by two North West to 
South East tending sand dunes, which are 
separated by a flatter inter-dunal zone.  This 
variety of soil types and land forms provides a 
complex mosaic of native vegetation and is 
important habitat to a variety of native fauna. 
The management of the reserve is assisted via 
volunteers under the auspices of the Trees for 
Life Bushcare Program. The site has a Heritage 
Agreement with the Department of Environment, 
Water and Natural Resources which also 
provides assistance with the management of the 
reserve. 

In 2014 members of the Native Orchid Society 
planted several seedlings of the nationally 
endangered Halbury Greenhood orchid. It is 
thought that this species grew in Pengilly and 
the aim of the planting is to extend the range of 
the species and assist its recovery in South 
Australia. The management work undertaken 
annually ensures the reserve can continue to be 
home to over 80 terrestrial plant species 
together with numerous species of native birds, 
reptiles, mammals and invertebrates.
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Coat of Arms Community Enclosure – 
Dutton Park 
Council is continuing to assist with the delivery
of a community-based project to upgrade the 
native animal enclosure at Dutton Park, 
Kapunda.  The original enclosure was built back 
in the 1980’s through a community project and 
has been a home to orphaned and injured native 
animals ever since.

Over the last 12 months several large exotic 
pine trees were removed from within the 
enclosure, which will assist with replacement 
native plant landscaping works. A new perimeter 
fence has also been constructed providing a 
more secure enclosure for the residents. 

 
‘Emma’ the emu in front of new fencing at the
enclosure 
 
 

 
Hewett Recreation Precinct – Concept Plan 

In late 2013, Council undertook a survey of all 
residents in Hewett on the potential 
development of a dog-friendly park.  An outcome 
of this survey was feedback highlighting a desire 
for an additional children’s playspace at Hewett.  
In response, Council prepared a Concept Plan 
to provide both the dog park and children’s 
playspace and, in anticipation of other potential 
needs, expanded this to include a BBQ area, 
shelters, public toilets and additional car parking.  
A small multi-purpose court is also included in 
the concept due to known local interest in having 

facilities for sports such as basketball and 
soccer.  It is intended that the concept be 
delivered in stages over time as funding is 
available.

In June 2014, Council released the Concept 
Plan and sought feedback from the community 
on the project as a whole.  A number of 
submissions were received for the consideration 
of Council and it is expected that further 
progress on the Hewett Recreation Precinct will 
occur in the second half of 2014, beginning with 
‘Stage 1’ which includes the new children’s 
playspace and supporting car park.

 

 
The proposed Hewett Recreation Precinct Plan
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Development Plan Amendments  
During the reporting period a number of 
Development Plan Amendments (DPA’s) were 
initiated, finalised or continued to be processed, 
these are discussed below:

Better Development Plan Conversion 
Development Plan Amendment 
Council in collaboration with staff from the 
Department for Planning, Transport and 
Infrastructure (DPTI) have converted the current 
Development Plan into the ‘Better Development 
Plan’ format.  This detailed process involved 
‘rebuilding’ the Plan using standard modules of 
objectives and principles prepared by the State 
Government supplemented by local additions 
where necessary to ensure that specific local 
content and ideals relevant to the Light region 
were retained.

An endorsed version of the DPA was submitted 
to the DPTI in January 2014 for approval by the 
Deputy Premier and Minister for Planning, The 
Hon. John Rau.
 

 
Cover Page of Better Development Plan 
Development Plan Amendment
 
 
 
 

Freeling West Residential Development 
Plan Amendment 
Council progressed a Developer-Funded DPA 
so that land supply for residential and supporting 
commercial development is available for 
Freeling in advance of future demand and in-line 
with the direction of the State Government’s 
‘30yr Plan for Greater Adelaide’.

Consultation on this project indicated there was 
public concern with the direction proposed in the 
DPA.  Separately and in addition to this, there 
was a need to undertake considerable additional 
research to provide information sought by the 
State Government with respect to the land 
involved.  This in particular would have added 
significant cost to the project.

Following balanced consideration, in March 
2014 Council resolved not to progress the 
Freeling West project any further and will 
instead advance a ‘Township Futures’ project for 
Freeling and Kapunda in 2014/2015.  The 
Township Futures project is expected to identify 
service and facility needs desired by the 
communities of both townships as well as 
explore the options available to both sustain 
existing service levels and add the new services 
and facilities that may be identified for each 
township.
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Rural Living Development Plan 
Amendment 
The Rural Living DPA was advanced in 
2013/2014 with Agency and Public consultation 
taking place during the second half of 2013.  

This process generated interest from a number 
of community members with a range of 
submissions received which led to related 
changes to the content of the DPA.  

The DPA was subsequently completed in early 
2014 and the endorsed version submitted to the
Department for Planning, Transport and 
Infrastructure in May 2014 for approval by the 
Deputy Premier and Minister for Planning, The 
Hon. John Rau.

Map depicting areas within Gawler Belt subject to changes to minimum allotment size as part of Rural Living 
DPA

Gawler Rivers Flood Prone Area 
Development Plan Amendment 
The Gawler Rivers Flood Prone Area DPA was 
advanced in 2013/2014 with Agency and Public 
consultation taking place during the second half 
of 2013.  The DPA was subsequently completed 
in early 2014 and the endorsed version 
submitted to the Department for Planning, 
Transport and Infrastructure in May 2014 for 
approval by the Deputy Premier and Minister for 
Planning, The Hon. John Rau.

  

4 hectare lots  
to 1 hectare lots 

4 hectare lots to 2 
hectare lots 
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Nuriootpa West (Industry BVR Zone) 
Development Plan Amendment 
Council secured agreement from the Minister for 
Planning to undertake the Nuriootpa West 
(Industry BVR Zone) DPA in late 2013.  Since 
this time, Council has advanced the 
development of a draft DPA, encompassing a
targeted amendment focussed on rectifying two 
(2) longstanding zoning anomalies along the 
municipal boundary shared with Barossa 
Council (immediately adjacent Nuriootpa). The 
draft DPA proposes to recognise the existing 
(and previous) use of these parcels for industrial 
purposes and zone the land appropriately.

The draft DPA has been informed through 
preliminary consultation undertaken with both 
adjoining land owners and affected land owners 
in late 2013. Investigations are continuing and it 
is expected that the DPA will be placed on 
exhibition in the second half of 2014.

Maps showing areas affected by the DPA

Kapunda Town Centre and Mine Site 
Development Plan Amendment   
Council has continued to progress the Kapunda 
Town Centre and Historic Mine Site DPA. This 
DPA is proposed to implement the 
recommendations of the previous Kapunda Car 
Parking Strategy, including formalising a Car 
Parking Fund for the town centre.  The DPA will 
also seek to implement policy changes identified 
within the Conservation Management Plan for 
the Kapunda Historic Mine Site, including 
adjustments to the zone boundary for the Mine 
Site so that it more correctly aligns with its 
historical boundary together with other minor 
policy amendments covering new development 
in that area. 

Agreement from the Minister for Planning on the 
Statement of Intent was achieved in May 2014 
and detailed investigations have commenced. It 
is expected that the DPA will be placed on 
exhibition in late 2014/early 2015.



52 Light Regional Council | Annual Report | 2013 – 2014

Strategic Studies 
Public Health and Wellbeing Plan for the 
Barossa, Light and Lower North Region 
The Barossa Council, Town of Gawler, District 
Council of Mallala and Light Regional Council, in 
association with the Barossa RDA, have been 
working together to develop a Public Health and 
Wellbeing Plan for the ‘Barossa, Light and 
Lower Northern Region’.  This work has been 
instigated in response to changes introduced 
through the South Australian Public Health Act 
2011.  Healthy Environs Pty Ltd had been 
engaged to undertake the planning process.
 
When completed, the document will provide 
structure to public health planning in each 
council community.  As councils are not 
necessarily responsible for every matter 
identified, the document will guide the functions 
of a range of related stakeholder groups and 
accordingly the consultation undertaken during 
the development of the document has been wide 
reaching to ensure that it is broadly 
representative.

Community consultation has been advanced on 
the draft plan and it is expected that the 
document will be finalised and endorsed by the 
participating councils in the 2014/2015 Financial 
Year. 
 

 
Regional Stakeholder Forums for the Public 
Health and Wellbeing Plan were held in November 
and December 2013

Barossa, Light & Lower North Region Open 
Space, Recreation & Public Realm Strategy 
In a further example of regional collaboration, 
Light Regional Council, together with the 
Barossa Council, Town of Gawler, District 
Council of Mallala and Regional Development 
Australia - Barossa collaborated on a project 
made possible by grant funding from both the 
Office of Recreation & Sport and the DPTI to 
develop a regional open space, recreation and 
public realm strategy for the Barossa, Light and 
Lower North Region.  Consultants 180 SLS 
assisted the project partners with the delivery of 
the project.

The strategy resulted from a methodical review 
process which included a detailed audit of 
existing facilities, consultation with a wide range 
of sporting groups and the development of 
distinct ‘regional’ and ‘local’ strategies to guide 
each council in its strategic deliberations into the 
future.  These strategies have been aligned 
generally with the timeframes of the State 
Government’s ‘30 Year Plan for Greater 
Adelaide’.
 

 
Cover image from the Open Space, Recreation and Public Realm Strategy

  



Light Regional Council | Annual Report | 2013 – 2014 53

Infrastructure & Works 
 
 
Capital Works Program 
 
The Capital Works Program has delivered works on Council assets such as sealed roads, formed roads 
and reserves with funding provided by the Federal Government and Council’s rate revenue.

Footpaths 
As part of Council’s commitment to provide safe facilities for pedestrians, the installation of footpaths in 
the townships of Roseworthy, Freeling, Kapunda, Wasleys and Hewett has either commenced or has 
been completed.  To ensure that the highest priority locations are addressed first Council has completed 
works adjacent to schools and other high pedestrian traffic areas such as medical practitioners, nursing 
homes and public amenities.

In 2013/2014 paved footpaths were completed in the following locations:

Location
Length Width Status Cost $

Olive St. – Freeling 71m 1.25m Completed $4’700
Hanisch St. – Freeling 76m 1.25m Completed $4’800
Hindmarsh St. – Kapunda 200m 1.25m Completed $16’000
Elizabeth St – Roseworthy 144m 1.25m Completed $11’800
Gartrell St. – Roseworthy 127.5m 1.5m Completed $13’800
Annie Tce. – Wasleys (hotel frontage) 55m 4.0m Completed $10’500
Clarke St - Freeling 250m 1.5m Carried forward to 

14/15
$36’000
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Sealed Roads 
 

Hindmarsh Street, Kapunda 

Before

During Construction

Completion

Construction of a Sealed Road 
Construction of new road base
Installation of kerb, gutter and spoon drain
Bitumen seal
Footpath and pram ramps
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Dutton Park, Kapunda 

During Construction

Completion

Various reseals were also undertaken on:

Seppeltsfield Road
Ahrens Road
Rosedale Road
Ebenezer Road
Parkers Road
Lange Road
Part Hancock Road (including footpath) 

Construction of new road base
Installation of kerb, gutter and spoon drain
Bitumen seal of internal roadways within the Dutton Park Recreation 
hub and Caravan Park precinct
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Samuel Road, Stelzer Road Seppeltsfield Road Intersection

Council received Blackspot funding to construct a realigned intersection of Samuel Road, Stelzer Road 
and Seppeltsfield Road.

Guard rail was added to the northern side on Samuel Road with the intersection widened considerably to 
enable safe B Double access from Seppeltsfield Road.

During Construction

Completed
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Resheeting of Formed Roads 
Each year Council allocates funds towards the resheeting of unsealed roads to ensure that the 
community has all weather access to their properties.  For the 2013-2014 financial year, the following 
roads were completed:

Road Name Scope of Works - Resheeting Length
Gerald Roberts Road Robert Steele Road to Siebers Road 1.15km

Siebers Road to Both Road 1.15km

Both Road to Gomersal Road 1.35km

Lyndoch Road Schmaal Road to Start of Seal .978m

End of Seal to Braunack Road .620m

Braunack Road to Hentschke Road 1.75km

Hentschke Road to Public Road 1490 .700m

End of Seal to North Para River .260m

Kangaroo Flat Road Mudla Wirra Road towards Stone 
Road .600m

Stelzer Road 636m to Mattiske Road .514m

Mattiske Road to 580m .580m

Ayliffe Bridge Road River Light to Wychunga Road 1.4km

Wychuga Road to Main North Road 1.2km

Tarnma Road Victoria Road to Mt View Road 1.7km

Public Road 429 to Mt Allen Road 1.25km

Mt Allen Road to Public Road 375 .700m

Public Road 375 to 270m .270m

270m to Kapunda/Burra Highway 1km

Public Road 532 to Public Road 529 .950m

Mad Mile Road Prior Road to Tarnma Road 1.6km

Anlaby Road Thiele Highway to Blackhill Road 1.8km

Blackhill Road to Robinson Road 1.95km

Hansborough Road Thiele Highway to Grey Hill Road .800m

Grey Hill Road to Edge of Map Sheet .450m

Edge of Map Sheet to River Light .450m

The Gap Road Almond Corner Road to End Resheet .600m

End Resheet to White Road .794m

White Road to Thiele Highway .843m

Muster Road Green Road to Stockport Road 1.15km

Cliff Road Gartrell Street to College Road .500m
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Community Wastewater 
Management System  
Over the last 12 months the CWMS area has 
been very busy with undertaking capital works to 
its pumping stations and also purchasing new 
equipment to improve the efficiency of its 
operations.  The new equipment included a high 
pressure drain cleaning machine, a CCTV 
inspection camera and a purpose built trailer to 
assist works.

The high pressure drain cleaning machine is 
used extensively throughout the townships 
where the CWMS exists and ensures that all of 
the drain lines are clear and clean.  Council is 
then able to inspect the drainage lines using the 
camera which will record the condition of the 
lines.  This process will alert Council to any early 
deterioration of pipes and enable programming 
of repairs prior to any failures in the system.  
Council has set a target of cleaning and 
recording 500m of pipes per week which 
averages out to once every four years.

Council’s treatment plants in Kapunda and 
Freeling have processed nearly 110 million litres 
of effluent and converted it into recycled water 
which has been used to irrigate local ovals, the 
golf course and open space community facilities.  
Council also receives some revenue from selling 
some of the recycled water to third parties.

The treatment plants are a very important aspect 
of council, providing these volumes of recycled 
water to our community, and helping to minimise 
water taken from the Murray River.
 
 

 
Jetta Equipment
 
 

Purchase of a purpose built trailer for treatment plant equipment to be moved safely between sites
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Maintenance Works 
Council’s Infrastructure and Works Department 
has an annual program aimed at addressing 
routine maintenance matters and also 
“unplanned” issues that arise throughout the 
year.  The main areas where various 
maintenance activities are undertaken are:

Sealed roads

Unsealed roads

Parks and Gardens

Playgrounds

Cemeteries

Wetlands

Community owned buildings
 
Plant and Fleet Upgrades 
The following plant has been purchased in the 
2013/2014 financial year and is now being fully 
utilised as part of Council’s day to day 
operations in Construction and Maintenance:
 

 
Isuzu 9 Tonne Tipper Truck
 
 

 
Isuzu 3 Tonne Tipper Truck

Land & Buildings 

Building Maintenance 
2013/2014 saw the regular maintenance 
regimes continue with the Council operational 
buildings such as servicing and maintenance of 
air-conditioning systems, automatic sliding 
doors, fire safety equipment, passenger lift, 
electrical, gutter cleaning etc. The budget of 
planned maintenance is generally to comply with 
Work Health Safety requirements, Building Code 
requirements or other legislative requirements. 
Other planned maintenance to improve or 
preserve the integrity of the building is 
undertaken subject to budget constraints.

Unfortunately the unplanned maintenance to 
Council property was often as a result of 
vandalism where action was required. This 
mostly included unblocking public toilets where 
paper towel was disposed of incorrectly, graffiti 
to Council property, replacement of broken locks 
or damaged doors. 

Wasleys Recreation Park 
As part of the Ridley Mill land division works, the 
developer was required to provide stormwater 
infrastructure to mitigate any potential flooding to 
Wasleys.  As such a stormwater detention basin 
was constructed in the new estate with the 
ability to pump stormwater to another detention 
basin which could be reused for irrigation 
purposes.  Council capitalised on this and with 
grant funding and Council’s own capital 
expenditure has now installed an irrigation 
basin, installed an irrigation system including 
sprinklers and provided new turf for the 
recreation park.  It is expected the oval will be 
ready for use in late 2014.

Community Land  
Council advises that no new community land 
management plans were prepared or existing 
plans amended throughout the course of the 
2013/2014 financial year as provided for by the 
Community Land Provisions under Chapter 11 
of the Local Government Act, 1999.
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Library Service and Kapunda Visitor Information Centre 
 
Library Service 
The Light Regional Public Library consists of 
three branches located in the Kapunda, Freeling 
and Greenock townships. The libraries are 
becoming true community spaces that support 
the wellbeing and lifelong learning of the 
community. Members of the library have access 
to a variety of resources including books, 
magazines, DVDs, literacy materials, home 
energy toolkits, language kits and local history 
resources. The service also offers a wide variety 
of electronic resources, including eBooks, 
downloadable audio books and online 
databases, the majority of which can be 
accessed from home 24 hours a day.

Over the last 12 months customers have been 
enjoying the benefits of the state wide One Card 
system by picking up and returning items to the 
library branch most convenient to them. The 
simplicity of the system has meant that visitors 
to the region have also been able to utilize the 
service with their one card. The implementation 
of the statewide One Card library system, an 
Australian first, has renewed an interest in 
libraries and there has been an increased usage 
in the Light Regional libraries since joining the 
system in June 2013.

Highlights of 2013/2014 
During the last 12 months:

The number of people through the library 
doors increased by 20% with a total of 
43,512 visits. The door count has risen at all 
three of Council’s library branches.

Customers continue to embrace the library’s 
digital technology and services with the use 
of the public access computers (Internet and 
word processing) increasing by 20% and 
wireless Internet sessions increasing by a 
huge 83%.

Volunteers have donated over 550 hours of 
their time to assist Council’s Library Service 
and Visitor Information Centre, including 
book covering, brochure folding and 
housebound delivery service.

While book loans have plateaued during the 
last 12 months, audiovisual (DVDs, CDs and 
audio books) loans have increased by 15% 
and magazine loans have increased by 
35%.

Improved access to a range of online 
databases and e-resources (downloadable 
audio books and e-books), which can be 
accessed from a computer with an internet 
connection while at the library, school, work 
or home.

While there has been a slight reduction in 
the total number of overall program sessions 
held, the total number of attendees has risen 
by 9%.

Results from the 2013 region wide library 
survey showed that 95% of the respondents 
(including non-library users) feel that the 
library service is important/very important to 
the community and the services the 
respondents deemed to be the most 
important are:

Book selection

Staff to answer enquiries

As an education source

The satisfaction of the library service was 
high with 93% of the survey respondents 
being satisfied/very satisfied with the library 
services offered.

Continued to build relationships with 
education providers within the region with 
regular visits from local schools and 
kindergartens. 

Goals for 2014/2015 
• Increase community awareness of the 

services offered by the library

• Investigate outreach opportunities for 
townships without a physical library branch

• Promote the availability of the Library 
Function Room (located on the upstairs 
floor of the Thomson Building) for 
community programs.
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Kapunda Visitor Information Centre 
The Kapunda Visitor Information Centre (VIC) is
an attraction in itself, with the “Taste of the 
region” interpretive display providing visitors with 
an engaging overview of the region. Visitors to 
the centre come from within South Australia, 
interstate and from overseas, with an impressive 
44% of visitors coming from within the local 
region. In the last 12 months, a total number of 
10,400 visitors have come into the centre which 
is an increase of 25% since the previous year. 
Our quality customer service staff provides a 
point of contact for a variety of information 
needs.

The boundary change to the Barossa tourism 
region has strengthened our relationship with 
the Barossa VIC and has seen an increase in 
the provision of services to visitors, with the 
introduction of the ‘BookEasy’ online booking 
system, an alternative starting point for the 
popular ‘Butcher, Baker, Wine Maker Trail’ and 
an increased presence on Barossa.com. The 
Barossa Touring Map has also been extended 
and now shows the townships of Kapunda, 
Freeling, Greenock and Roseworthy, making it 
easier for visitors to discover our wonderful 
region.

During the last 12 months the VIC has been 
involved with the promotion of a number of 
successful events. During the Kapunda Music 
and Arts Festival in October 2013, the centre 
had more than 250 people through the doors, 
seeking information on the region. The Kapunda 
VIC has continued to support economic 
development in the Light region by:

• Promoting attractions in the region including 
the Roseworthy Rail Club and McLeod’s 
Daughters trail.

• Promoting accommodation providers and 
providing an online booking system for
customers through a partnership with the 
Barossa VIC.

• Providing a ticket outlet service for regional 
events including the Rotary Kidman Art 
Show, Shakespeare in the Vines 
(Seppeltsfield Winery) and Kapunda 
Musical Society performances.

• Assisting local residents with ticket sales, 
souvenirs for family and friends, and 
information for intra- and interstate trips.

• Encouraging visitors to stay longer and 
therefore spending additional dollars within 
the region.

• Promotion of regional events including the 
Kapunda Farm Fair, Santos Tour Down
Under, and Artisans Market (Greenock).

• Providing free brochure racking for 
businesses and organizations within the 
Light Regional Council area.

• Providing an opportunity for businesses and 
organizations to promote themselves further 
by utilising the window box display units 
that are visible 24 hours a day, seven days 
a week, including the Old Kapunda 
Distillery, Tathra Homestead and 
Seppeltsfield Road Business Alliance.

The service provided by the VIC and its staff 
helps to promote all aspects of the Light Region 
to the wider tourist community.

 

Local, 3983, 38% 

Intra-State, 3923, 
38% 

Inter-state, 1947, 
19% 

International, 547, 
5% 

Origin of visitors to the Kapunda VIC in 2013/2014 

Local
Intra-State
Inter-state
International
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Corporate Governance 
The Elected Body 
Elected Representation 
The Council is composed of ten (10) elected 
members and a Mayor who forms part of an 
incorporated body which has the responsibility 
for carrying out the duties and exercising the 
powers conferred on the Council by the Local 
Government Act 1999 and other State and 
supporting legislation.

The elected members are the policy arm of the 
Council and as such are responsible for setting 
strategic direction, goals and objectives 
supported by documented policy which is for the
well-being of the community as a whole.

Council is divided into four wards, which are;

Dutton Ward, which is generally located in the 
north of the Council area and includes the 
localities of Hamilton, Allendale North, Kapunda, 
St. Johns, Ebenezer, Truro, Koonunga, St. Kitts, 
Bagot Well and Hansborough.  Dutton Ward is 
represented by 3 councillors.

Laucke Ward, which is generally located in the 
east of the Council area and includes the 
localities of Moppa, Nuriootpa, Nain, Daveyston, 
Greenock, Marananga, Stonewell, Tanunda, 
Seppeltsfield, Shea-oak Log, Rosedale, 
Gomersal, Lyndoch and Rowland Flat.  Laucke 
Ward is represented by 2 councillors.

Light Ward, which is generally situated in the 
central and western areas of Council and 
includes the localities of Pinkerton Plains, 
Hamley Bridge, Magdalla, Wasleys, Templers, 
Woolsheds, Kangaroo Flat, Morn Hill, Freeling, 
Bethel and Fords.  Light Ward is represented by 
2 councillors.

Mudla Wirra Ward, which is situated in the 
south of the Council area and includes the 
localities of Reeves Plains, Ward Belt, Gawler 
River, Buchfelde, Gawler Belt, Reid, 
Roseworthy, Kingsford and Hewett.  Mudla 
Wirra Ward is represented by 3 councillors.

The Council undertook a review of its Elector 
Representation throughout the course of the 
2012/2013 financial year.  The review, required 
to be undertaken at least once every eight 
years, re-evaluates the representation of 
electors to the number of proposed elected 
members; determines ward structures; and 
whether the Council’s principal member should 
be elected by the community at large, amongst 
other things.

Council’s outcome following public consultation 
was that:

the current name of the Council be retained; 
the principal member of the Council 
continues to be titled the Mayor
there shall be four wards, 
that the existing number of ten councillors is 
retained.

The Elector Representation document was
lodged with the Commissioner early in the 
2013/2014 financial year with the revised 
electoral structure to be in place for the
November 2014 Council elections.

Currently Council’s representation quota, that is 
the number of people able to vote in a Council 
election, divided by the number of elected 
members (including the Mayor) representing 
them, is 1 elected member for every 907 
electors.  A comparison of Council’s 
representation quota with that of other local 
government authorities suggests that Council’s 
representation per elector is comparable to that 
of other similar sized and type Councils.  

Comparison Elector Representation 
Quotas 

Council Name Quota (Elected Member: 
Number of Electors)*

Alexandrina 1:1570
Barossa 1:1391
Berri Barmera 1:816
Copper Coast 1:930
Light 1:907
Loxton Waikerie 1:742
Murray Bridge 1:1335
Port Pirie 1:1238
Victor Harbor 1:1139
Wattle Range 1:715
Yorke Peninsula 1:741
*(Figures obtained from the Electoral Commission of South 
Australia) 
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Elected Member Allowances & 
Benefits 
Elected Members of Council each receive an 
annual allowance that is paid to them in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 
1999, and with the Local Government (Members 
Allowances and Benefits) Regulations 2010.

For the reporting period concluding 30 June 
2014, the following allowances were paid:
 

Elected Member 
Allowance

Annual 
Allowance

30 June 2013

Annual 
Allowance 

30 June 2014

Mayor $49,060 $50,024

Deputy Mayor 
(inclusive of 
Councillor 
Allowance and 
Committee Chair)

$15,331 $15,632

Councillor $12,265 $12,506

Councillors 
(inclusive of 
Councillor 
Allowance and 
Committee Chair)

$15,331 $15,632

 
The elected members also have the opportunity 
to claim for various expenses incurred in the 
pursuit of their representation in accordance with 
the applicable local government regulations.
 
Council and Committee Meetings  
As an elected body and in accordance with the 
Local Government Act 1999, the Council must 
convene a meeting no less than once per 
month.  

Currently the Council conducts its monthly 
Council meeting on the fourth Tuesday of each 
calendar month – with the exclusion of meeting 
dates that fall on a public holiday which are held 
the following working day.

Meetings of Council provide a public forum 
where the decisions on questions before Council 
are debated prior to resolution.  The 
establishment of policy and procedure is also 
debated at these formal meetings of Council.

Meetings of Council are open to the public, the 
members of the public are able to attend as 
observers if they so desire.  Council has also 

included a youth and public forum session as 
part of its monthly meeting processes.

Council has a number of special purpose 
committees established pursuant to Section 41 
of the Local Government Act 1999.  These are;

Audit Committee
Rating Policy Review Advisory Committee
(dissolved at 22 April 2014)
Chief Executive Officer’s Performance 
Review Committee (dissolved at 22 April 
2014)
Roseworthy Township Committee 
Infrastructure & Regulatory Services 
Committee (name revised to Infrastructure 
Committee at 22 April 2014)
Strategy & Projects Committee (name 
revised to Development Plan Policy 
Committee at 22 April 2014)
Joint Sitting Committee (dissolved at 22 
April 2014)
Governance Advisory Panel 
Economic Development Panel (adopted 27 
May 2014)

For the time being Council will also be 
maintaining a series of sunset working parties 
for specific issue projects.

In addition to its committees, Council also 
convenes a Development Assessment Panel.  
The panel generally meets on a monthly basis 
and is constituted under the criteria described 
within the Development Act 1993 and its 
Regulations.

Each committee is constituted with its own terms 
of reference, the role principally being to provide 
an advisory function to the Council.  

The committees not only include the elected 
members of Council amongst their membership, 
but in some cases include members of the 
public who are able to take part in and vote on 
subject matter before the committee.  Council 
believes that the interaction with the community 
members at the committee level provides a 
valuable resource and involves the community 
members in the decision making process, 
thereby providing true ownership over actions 
resulting from the committee process.

Council would like to thank the following people 
who have provided the community with many 
hours service during the 2013/2014 financial 
year period by agreeing to be members of 
Council committees;
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Committee Name Representative
Development Assessment Panel Mr Bruce Ballantyne (Presiding Member), Mr Kelvin 

Goldstone, Mr Robert Veitch and Ms Hulya Gilbert 
(Independent members).
Sitting Fees are paid to the Independent Members of the 
Development Assessment Panel.  Fees totaling $8,200 were 
paid for the 2013/2014 year.

Audit Committee Mr John Comrie (Independent Chairman) and Mr Peter 
Fairlie-Jones (Independent member)
Sitting Fees are paid to the Independent Members of the 
Audit Committee.  Fees totaling $9,400 were paid for the 
2013/2014 year

Rating Policy Review Advisory Committee Mr Kevin McNamara, Mrs Vicki Patterson, Mr Paul Fernandez
Mr Michael Kennelly and Mr Dafydd Llewelyn (all community 
representatives)

Roseworthy Township Committee Mr Chris Johnson, Mrs Linda Keech, Mr Mark Ruediger, 
Mr Matt Saunders, Mrs Tricia Snell (all community 
representatives)

Governance Advisory Panel Hon. Graham Gunn and Mrs Judith Jones.
Sitting Fees are paid to the Independent Members of the 
Governance Advisory Panel.  No sitting fees were paid for the 
2013/2014 year

 
The following table of data shows information in regard to the number of meetings held and attendances 
thereto by the elected members of the Light Regional Council.
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MEETINGS 
ATTENDED

Mayor
B. O’Brien 15 7 0 3 3 6 2 0 36

Deputy Mayor
D. Rohrlach 14 6 3 3 6 0 32

Councillors
D. Ellis 14 5 0 3 6 0 28
R. Williams 7 0 1 3 11
L. Reichstein 9 4 0 2 2 17
W. Standish 15 7 3 3 28
P. Kennelly 15 6 3 6 30
M. Skevington 13 0 2 6 0 21
B. Close 12 2 3 0 0 17
P. Graham 12 2 2 0 0 16
S. Watson 11 0 2 3 0 16
Total meetings 
held in financial 
year

15 6 7 0 3 3 6 3 0 0 
  

 
Council does, of course provide membership and representation to many local, regional and state 
organisations.  Individuals dedicate many hours of time in a voluntary capacity for this representation.  As 
stated previously, all meetings of Council and its committees are open to members of the public and 
Council encourages interested people to attend.
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Elected Member Training & Development  
 
Annually the Council makes funding available for its elected members to attend conferences, training and 
development sessions in order that the elected representatives of the area are kept abreast of 
developments occurring within the local government sector.

During the 2013/2014 financial year various elected members undertook attendance to the following 
activities;

Elected Member Training
Mayor Bill O’Brien
Cr Deane Rohrlach

29/8/2013 Elected Members Code of Conduct Training LGA 
Adelaide

Mayor Bill O’Brien
Cr Deane Rohrlach

31/8/2013 Economic Development Workshop RDA Barossa 
Kapunda

Mayor Bill O’Brien
Cr Deane Rohrlach
Cr Wayne Standish
Cr Des Ellis
Cr Peter Kennelly

3/9/2013 Elected Member Code of Conduct & ICAC Training 
Kapunda

Mayor Bill O’Brien
Cr Deane Rohrlach
Cr Wayne Standish

25/9/2013 Developing Communities - A Strategy Workshop 
Kapunda

Mayor Bill O’Brien
Cr Deane Rohrlach

24 & 25/10/2013  LGA AGM

Mayor Bill O’Brien
Cr Deane Rohrlach
Cr Wayne Standish

28/10/2013 GWRS briefing

Mayor Bill O’Brien
Cr Deane Rohrlach
Cr Wayne Standish
Cr Des Ellis
Cr Peter Kennelly
Cr Mike Skevington

12/2/2014 Budget workshop

Mayor Bill O’Brien
Cr Deane Rohrlach
Cr Wayne Standish
Cr Des Ellis
Cr Peter Kennelly
Cr Mike Skevington

29/4/2014 Budget Workshop - Expenditure & Programmes

Mayor Bill O’Brien
Cr Deane Rohrlach
Cr Wayne Standish
Cr Des Ellis
Cr Peter Kennelly
Cr Mike Skevington

13/5/2014 Workshop 1 - Gawler River Water Re-Use Project
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Light Regional Council Elected Members 
 
Back Row (Left to Right) Cr Williams, Cr Close, Cr Watson, Cr Skevington, Cr Graham, Cr Reichstein
Front Row (Left to Right) Cr Ellis, Deputy Mayor Cr Rohrlach, Mayor O’Brien, Cr Standish, Cr Kennelly
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Council Documents 
Public Access to Council Documents 
Council seeks to be open and accountable to its 
community.  In recognition of this philosophy, 
Council makes available for community access 
the following public documents and welcomes 
enquiries on information not contained in those 
documents;

Annual Budget
Assessment Book
Annual Report
Policy Manual
Agendas and Minutes for meetings of Council
Council By-Laws
Planning Amendment Report
Council Registers

Members of the public wishing to purchase 
copies of Council documents may do so by 
making application in person or by writing to the 
Chief Executive Officer, PO Box 72, Kapunda  
SA 5373.

Applications lodged for Information 
Requests for Freedom of Information must be 
made on the prescribed forms in accordance 
with the Freedom of Information Act 1991.  

These forms are available at the Kapunda office 
of Council and will be responded to as soon as 
possible within the statutory timeframe upon the 
receipt of a properly completed request and the 
prescribed fee.

As at 2012/2013 three (3) applications were 
carried over into the 2013/2014 financial year.

No. Outcome
1 Determined by August 2013
2. Determined by August 2013
3 Withdrawn at 3 July 2013

As at 30 June 2014, the Light Regional Council 
received five (5) requests for the provision of 
information in this manner.

No. Outcome
1 Determined within the required timeframe 
2 Determined within the required timeframe 

going to internal review process
3 Application was refused due to information 

being publicly available.
4 Determined within the required timeframe
5 Application became invalid due to non 

payment of the application fee or proof of 
waiver.

Where Council does receive requests for 
information from members of the public, staff 
generally try to manage these requests outside 
of the formal processes of the Freedom of 
Information Act, to further enhance an open 
accountable style of governance.

Readers are encouraged to refer to the separate 
section of this annual report specifically dealing 
with the publication of Council’s Information 
Statement published in accordance with Section 
9 of the Freedom of Information Act 1991.

Use of Confidentiality Provisions 
Council conducts a formal review process on a 
quarterly basis (every March, June, September, 
December) where it undertakes a review of 
matters held in confidence.  The process seeks 
to provide a formal release of reports and 
minutes back into the public realm.  For easy 
information access Council has chosen to utilise 
a process where formerly confidential reports 
and minutes are included in total in tabular form 
within the minutes of the Council meeting at 
which Council agrees to their release.  The 
process provides a mechanism to ensure that 
matters are kept under constant review.

During the 2013/2014 financial year, the 
confidentiality provisions of the Local 
Government Act 1999 under s90 were used by 
Council a total of 20 times to consider matters 
in-camera.  The total number of matters 
considered in confidence totalled 18.  For a 
single matter to be taken into confidentiality 
multiple provisions may be required.

During the 2013/2014 financial year there were 
two (2) occasions where Council invoked, under 
section 90(2), to consider a matter in confidence 
but during the confidential session determined 
the matter to be of a public nature thereby 
immediately releasing the matter to the public 
realm.

Report items released back into the public realm 
in accordance with s91(7) for the 2013/2014
year totalled 24. Several resolutions contained 
multiple parts.
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Minute Date Subject of Items considered in Confidence during 2013-2014
23 July 2013 13.1 Gawler Rivers Flood Prone Area Development Plan Amendment (Confidential 

Report)
13.2 Review of Confidential Register
13.3 Sale of Land for Non-payment of Rates

27 August 2013 13.1 SA Power Networks – Proposed Land Transfer, Hewett
13.2 Kapunda Northern Tributary Flood Mitigation Project – enquiry by Mr & Mrs Norde
13.3 Review of Historical Confidential Resolutions Register

24 September 2013 13.1 Review of Confidential Resolutions Register
22 October 2013 13.1 SA Power Networks – Proposed Land Transfer, Hewett

13.2 Kapunda Bowling Club Relocation
13.2 Kapunda Bowling Club Relocation
13.4 Recovery of Long Term Rate Debt – Owners Deceased

17 December 2013 13.1 Australia Day Citizen of the Year Awards 2014
13.2 Sale of Land for Non-payment of Rates
13.3 Review of Confidential Resolutions Register
13.4 Review of Historical Confidential Resolutions Register

28 January 2014 13.1 Recovery of Long Term Rate Debt – Owners Deceased
25 February 2014 13.1 Organisational Structuring and Review
22 April 2014 13.1 Organisational Structuring and Review
27 May 2014 13.1 Review of Confidential Resolutions Register
24 June 2014 13.1 Review of Confidential Register of Council Resolutions 

The following 21 matters were retained as confidential items in accordance with s90 of the Local 
Government Act, 1999 at the conclusion of the June 2014 Council Meeting.

Minute Date Item Number Retained Confidential Item at June 2014

20.03.01 16.2.9 Representation by Mr & Mrs Peter Grocke
21.03.01 16.3.3 Representation by Mr & Mrs Peter Grocke
17.11.09 13.3 Insanitary Condition Parkers Road
16.02.10 13.1 Insanitary Condition 17 Parkers Road Gawler Belt
20.04.10 13.2 Residential Code and Flood Prone Areas
20.4.10 13.4 Governance Advisory Panel - Human Resource Issue
21.09.10 10.3.1 Jungfer v Light Regional Council (ERD Ref 10-04) 
26.06.12 13.2 Beare – v – Light 
25.09.12 12.4.1 Beare – v – Light Regional Council – Notice of Motion by Cr Mike Skevington
25.09.12 13.1 Forby Road, Rosedale, and Leak and Fairlie Road, Kangaroo Flat, Insurance Claim
16.10.12 7.1 Beare – v – Light Regional Council
23.01.13 13.1 Beare – v – Light Regional Council
26.02.13 13.1 Roseworthy Growth Area Draft Structure Plan Package for State Government – Led

Consultation
28.05.13 13.1 Kapunda Bowling Club Relocation
28.05.13 13.2 Sale of Land for Non Payments
25.06.13 13.1 DJ Roediger, 17 Parkers Road, Gawler Belt –

Recovery of outstanding debt
27.08.13 13.2 Kapunda Northern Tributary Flood Mitigation Project – Enquiry by Mr and Mrs Norde
22.10.13 13.3 Sale of land for Non-Payment of Rates
22.10.13 13.4 Recovery of Long Term Rate Debt Owners Deceased
17.12.13 13.2 Sale of Land for Non-payment of Rates
28.01.14 13.1 Recovery of Long Term Rate Debt – Owners Deceased
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Confidentiality Provisions 
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Matters of Confidential Nature
Actual or possible litigation (i) 0 4 1   2   4 
Personal affairs or safety of a person or the 
Council (a) and (e) 8 8 6 3 14 4 13 
Commercial advantage or prejudice 
commercial position of Council (b) 3 4 6 3 4 5 8 
Commercial prejudice, advantage or 
information – Council or third party (d) 1 1 5   1 3 4 

Legal advice (h) 0 5 6 2 4 2 8 
Breach of confidence (j) 0 1 1         
Supply of goods or services (k) 0 0 2 3 3 1   
Proposed amendment to development plan
(m) 1 1 0   1 1 1 

Review FOI determination (n) 0 0 0         
Reveal a trade secret  (c) 0 0 0         
Prejudice a criminal offence  (f) 0 0 0 1     1 
Breach of law, order or direction of the 
court (g) 7 4 2 4 2 3 3 

Total Confidentiality Provisions 20 28 29 16 31 19 42 
Total Matters considered in Confidence 18 20 23 13 26 14 27 
Percentage Total of Confidential Matters 
considered by Council 6.95% 7.58% 9.79% 4.90% 11.87% 6.14% 8.74% 
TOTAL Matters considered at Council 
(incl. Confidential) 259 264 235 265 219 228 309 
TOTAL Development Assessment Panel 
Matters considered 14 19 19 20 23 35 18 
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Corporate Structure & Executive Officers’ Remuneration 

Corporate Structure 

The executive team consists of the:

Chief Executive Officer; 

General Manager-Business & Governance

General Manager - Development & 
Regulatory Services 

General Manager - Strategy, Projects & 
Engineering

General Manager - Infrastructure & Works

Also forming part of the management group are 
the HR and Governance Manager and the 
Executive Assistant to the Chief Executive 
Officer.  Other members of staff are co-opted 
from time to time.

Executive Officers’ Remuneration 

The annual remuneration packages of the Chief 
Executive Officer and General Managers (refer 
to table below) is comprised of an annual base 
salary, the government compulsory 
superannuation contribution of 9.25% and other 
benefits. 

Benefits received by Council Officers 
(dependant on job requirements e.g. available 
after hours or work related to off- site duties) 
may include;

The provision of a motor vehicle or 
allowance for travel to and from work and 
may have an element of private usage
dependant on their position;

The provision of a mobile telephone and/or 
Ipad;

The payment of memberships to 
professional bodies (a requirement for some 
roles to maintain their compulsory 
professional accreditation).

The following table shows the remuneration 
details for the Senior Executive Officers of 
Council for the period ending 30 June 2014.

Executive Team Position in Organisation Base Salary Components of the total 
remuneration package

Brian Carr* Chief Executive Officer $200,571 Vehicle allowance, mobile phone, 
Ipad, membership fees, 
superannuation contribution 9.25%

Richard Michael* General Manager - Business & 
Governance

$136,114 Vehicle allowance, mobile phone, 
Ipad, membership fees, 
superannuation contribution 9.25%

James Miller General Manager -
Development & Regulatory 
Services

$118,434 Provision of a Council owned 
vehicle , mobile phone, Ipad, 
membership fees, superannuation 
contribution 9.25%

Nathan 
Cunningham

General Manager - Strategy, 
Projects & Engineering

$118,434 Provision of a Council owned 
vehicle , mobile phone, Ipad, 
membership fees, superannuation 
contribution 9.25%

Richard Dodson General Manager –
Infrastructure & Works

$118,434 Provision of a Council owned 
vehicle , mobile phone, Ipad, 
membership fees , superannuation 
contribution 9.25%

Notes: * Vehicle value included in base salary
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EXECUTIVE TEAM 
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Human Resources 
 
Staff members are Council’s greatest asset and 
we are fortunate to have a group of committed 
people in our employ who strive to deliver the 
best community service, achieve business 
objectives and comply with legislative 
requirements.

At 30 June 2014, Council had a total of 76 staff 
members (74.1 full time equivalents) comprised 
of 63 full time, 7 part time and 6 contract 
positions. Human resources provides support for 
management and staff with a range of functions 
including recruitment, training and development, 
industrial and employee relations, policy 
adherence, an employee assistance program 
and performance appraisals.

In 2013/2014 Council undertook an internal 
review of its organisational structure, analysing 
both the governance and departmental 
composition. 

The organisational structure review considered 
the following to determine the best outcome for 
Council and its community: 

the best structure to improve productivity
Improved contingency within current staff 
numbers to achieve more with less.

The revised organisational structure, endorsed 
by Council at the meeting held 22 April 2014, 
places an emphasis on service delivery with a 
focus on improving support for economic 
development initiatives within the region. 

Council has maintained its four department 
structure, however, the functionality in each area 
has changed. The main adjustments have been 
in the two departments previously called 
Strategy, Projects and Engineering and 
Development and Regulatory Services, these 
departments have been merged to become the 
Strategy and Development Department enabling 
an opportunity for the creation of the new 
Economic Development Department.  Business 
and Governance and Infrastructure and 
Environment (previously known as Infrastructure 
and Works) comprise the other two 
departments. 

The role and functionality of each department is 
outlined below:

Business and Governance provides the 
community with Library Services and the 
Visitor Information Centre (VIC) together 
with responsibilities involved in financial 
management, governance, records 
management, human resources and 
information technology to meet the statutory 
obligations. 

Economic Development provides 
assistance to the community with advice and 
support regarding business initiatives. It 
looks at creating business opportunities to 
foster sustainable economic growth and 
tourism within our Council region. 

Infrastructure and Environment ensures 
Council’s physical assets are well 
maintained in an efficient, effective and safe 
manner for community use. This department 
is responsible for maintaining the 
community’s parks and gardens, road 
network, buildings and sporting facilities, 
stormwater and CWMS systems and 
ensuring delivery of the annual capital works 
program. 

Strategy and Development encompasses 
several portfolios utilising in-house expertise 
to facilitate community growth, undertake 
strategic planning and development 
assessments, asset management and GIS. 
Residents receive general inspectorial and 
environmental health services (includes 
immunisation programs), community 
development and environmental 
projects/initiatives and GIS services.

 
Aligned to the revised structure and in 
consideration of financial constraints the CEO 
and management adopted a lean approach to 
reduce employee costs. By 30 June 2014 there 
was a 5% reduction in the number of staff 
working for Council, achieved through natural 
attrition. Jobs were redesigned as vacancies 
occurred with tasks reallocated amongst other 
staff members, streamlined through 
technological improvements or placed on hold 
(where possible). At present employment levels 
are the same as 2009, and in comparison 
(during the same period) the number of rate 
assessments has grown from 7003 to 7604, 
highlighting demonstrated productivity gains.
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Resource contingencies and multiskilling of 
officers working across departments has seen 
some officers undertaking dual roles. 

In October 2013, Light Regional Council entered 
a team in the LGMA Rural Leadership 
Challenge. Six team members were selected 
from across Council representing each of the 
four departments.  Team members gained an 
opportunity to demonstrate and improve their 
problem solving abilities, work as a team (as 
usually they are located at four different sites), 
multitask and prioritise.  The one day challenge 
event was held at Port Augusta and our team 
placed second overall.

In June 2014 managers attended a two-day 
leadership training session held at the Hewett 
Community Centre. Topics for the leadership 
training included, performance management, 
applying the ‘FISH’ cultural improvement model, 
generational leadership and change 
management practices.

Council is committed to Equal Employment 
Opportunity (EEO) in the workplace for all
employees, which is reflected in relevant Council 
documents and policies encouraging individual
staff members to progress their career as 
opportunities present themselves.

 
Supporting Council’s philosophy of developing 
staff from within the organisation, Council 
adopted a Succession Planning Policy at the 
Council meeting held 22 June 2014.  The Policy 
was developed with an aim of:

Ensuring the continuity of leadership in 
critical positions

Retaining and developing intellectual capital 
to support future growth, and 

Encouraging and motivating high potential 
employees to aspire for advancement.

Other projects involving human resources in the 
last 12 months include;

In house coordination and facilitation of the 
Chief Executive Officer’s (CEO) 
performance review process

Completion of the motor vehicle review (fleet 
reduced by 9 motor vehicles)

Increased utilisation of electronic 
advertisement resources for job vacancies 
reducing advertising costs and increasing
the number of potential candidates.  Job 
advertisements are placed on Council’s 
website, the Local Government website, 
Seek and in the local newspapers only.

These initiatives were undertaken as part of 
Council’s commitment to continuous 
improvement and efficiency and effectiveness 
measures.
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Staff Profile 
 
 
Department * 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Infrastructure & Works 25 23 30 26 24

Development & Regulatory 
Services

15 15 15 13 14

Business & Governance 29 17 17 19 18

Strategy , Projects & Engineering 11 10 12 11

Information Services (Library/VIC) 12 11 11 10 9

Total 81 77 83 80 76

Status 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
Full Time 62 61 69 68 63
Part Time 6 7 5 4 7
Casual 6 4 4 3 0
Contract 7 5 5 5 6
Total 81 77 83 80 76

Gender 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14
Male 37 35 41 40 38
Female 44 42 42 40 38
Total 81 77 83 80 76
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Information, Communication & Technology 
The Information Technology department 
maintains and develops Council’s Information 
Technology infrastructure and systems. It liaises 
with external providers and assumes 
responsibility for the enablement of staff to 
perform their duties efficiently and customers to 
interact with Council effectively.

Council continues to invest in technology 
infrastructure to provide Council staff with 
appropriate and relevant resources to undertake 
their various roles within Council.

Some key areas of achievement in this area 
were:

Technology Network Upgrades 
Technology and network upgrades have 
continued to be a key focus over the past year. 
Projects have included;

Upgrade to messaging environment to 
deliver a basic level of high availability with 
email replication occurring between Council 
sites.

Deployment of an email archiving solution 
has ensured records keeping obligations are 
met and also delivered improvements to 
councils disaster recovery program.

Remote access upgrades (router) has 
delivered improved network security.

Uninterruptible power supply (UPS) 
upgrades have ensured critical network 
services are maintained during power 
outages.

Website upgrade 
The relaunch of Light Regional Council’s 
website www.light.sa.gov.au took place in 
December. The upgraded site welcomes visitors 
to a clean uncluttered homepage, with moving 
featured content images and vibrant colours 
whilst still maintaining corporate colours and 
branding.

The menu structure has been simplified to 
improve navigation with four main sections: 
‘Discover’, ‘Live’, ‘Develop’ and ‘Your Council’ 
designed to assist visitors to find the information
they expect and need. Along with an improved 
'Quick Find' which is set up for those frequently 
visited pages and essential web based 
services. 

Mobile and tablet users have an improved visual 
experience with the creation of responsive 
design styles. This means the page template 
responds fluidly depending on the screen 
resolution or device width. 
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Work Health & Safety 
 
Strategic Direction 
Council remains committed to providing a 
healthy and safe work environment for its 
employees, volunteers, contractors and visitors. 
During 2013/2014 work continued with 
developing an integrated Work Health and 
Safety system that becomes an integral part of 
the everyday business of Council.  This is seen 
as not only a good business strategy but also 
brings Council into line with not only the National 
WHS Strategy, Objective 2 of South Australia’s 
Strategic Plan and the WHS Strategic 
Framework for South Australia, but also the 
Local Government Association’s requirements to 
achieve Standards 1 to 5 of PSSI across all 
Councils to maintain our self-insured status.

As part of this development, the General 
Managers reviewed and updated the Council’s 
WHS and Injury Management Plan 2011 – 2014
and prepared for the creation of a new plan for 
the next three years.

The General Managers also approved the 
creation of a practical Business Continuity Plan 
with the cooperation of key staff and specialists. 

Policies, Procedures, Safe Work 
Instructions 
Due to the implementation of the Work Health 
and Safety Act 2012 (SA) and the Work Health 
and Safety Regulations on 1 January 2013, key 
WHS policies and procedures had to be 
reviewed and updated in line with the new 
legislation. These reviewed policies and
procedures were all adopted by council as of 
April 2014.

Council completed a portion of the Hazard 
Management program in the WHS and Injury 
Management Plan by implementing a GPS 
tracking system for all council vehicles to assist 
with work flow, plant maintenance but also to 
assist with the safety of isolated staff. The 
system also allows for electronic collection of 
pre use checks of all major plant improving 
reporting and response in this area. The annual 
schedule for internal auditing commenced during 
the year. This helps to identify gaps in the 
utilisation and comprehension of WHS policies 
and procedures within Council and the training 
requirements will be included in Council’s 
training needs analysis. Staff members were 
paired with trained auditors this year to ensure 
an increase in experienced auditors will be 
available for the audit schedule. A master 
hazard register has been developed and it is 

now a living document which will grow and 
develop as Council’s WHS system is developed 
across all areas of the organisation. All staff 
received training in hazard identification and risk 
assessment to assist with this process.

Asbestos Register 
The asbestos register for all council buildings 
has been reviewed by qualified consultants in 
accordance with legislative requirements.

Wellbeing Programmes 
A wellbeing programme was offered to all staff, 
incorporating a range of health assessments 
and skin cancer checks and access to the Local 
Government Association’s Fitness2Live 
programme via its website. This programme was 
supplemented with healthy tips each month 
provided by Corporate Health Group.

Work Health & Safety (WHS) and Injury 
Management (IM) Committee  
Council has maintained the membership of the 
WHS and Injury Management Committee with 6 
representatives and 5 deputy representatives 
from staff and representatives from 
management. All Health and Safety 
representatives (HSRs) have been offered 
access to WHS training courses and sessions 
as per legislation. Five HSRs undertook Health 
and Safety Representative, Level 1, training and 
the remaining six HSRs completed either, Health 
and Safety Representative, Level 2, training or a 
bridging course to update their knowledge of the 
new Act and Regulations. This has ensured that 
each department within Council has an informed 
voice on the committee. The committee meets 
every 3 months on a scheduled basis but can 
also meet at other intervals as required. The 
agendas and minutes enable the committee to 
monitor various WHS requirements on a regular 
basis as well as considering ways to 
continuously improve council’s safety culture.

Training 
A training register for Council staff is maintained,
incorporating formal and informal training 
undertaken by all staff throughout the year. A 
Training Needs Analysis has been developed to 
incorporate WHS competencies required for 
each individual role within Council and the 
training required, including an ongoing training 
programme for all staff.
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Consultation 
Consultation processes for WHS were 
strengthened with representation from each 
work group within Council on the WHS and IM 
Committee. Further consultation was undertaken 
with the WHS & Risk Coordinator and the 
Regional Risk Coordinator (from Local 
Government Risk Services) conducting 
workshops and training sessions with all staff to 
develop their knowledge of and responsibilities 
under the new Work, Health and Safety Act 
(SA), requirements of employees and 
supervisors in injury management, hazard 
assessment and incident investigations. The 
Health & Safety Representatives were involved 
in guiding their particular work groups in these 
sessions. The HR & Governance Manager 
served as the conduit between the General 
Managers and the WHS and IM Committee to 
maintain information flow and decision making. 
There is a strong presence for WHS on 
Council’s intranet. The internal audit process 
highlighted that staff were aware of the WHS 
area on the intranet and the easy access to 
Council’s WHS policies and procedures.

Emergency Management 
A new Business Continuity Plan has been 
developed by employee representatives from 
each work group and with the assistance of 
specialists from Local Government Risk 
Services. This plan was tested by the General 
Manager Group in October 2013 and each 
section is maintained by its particular work group 
under the direction of the GMG.

Emergency procedures have been developed by 
the emergency wardens in each council office, 
the libraries and the Depot to handle a variety of 
possible emergency situations. Evacuation drill 
is held each year in the offices, larger library and 
the Depot to ensure all staff are aware of their 
responsibilities under the procedures.  

Injury Management 
Council recorded seven lost time injuries for 
2013/2014.  Injury Management kits for 
Managers and Staff have been developed and 
are held in Freeling and Kapunda by trained 
staff. All staff have been trained in their 
responsibilities as supervisors and employees 
under the Injury Management procedure. The 
kits will be included on Council’s intranet site.

Looking forward – 2014/2015 
Further integration of the WHS system into 
Council’s operations through workshop and 
training sessions with staff

Maintain an ongoing review schedule of all 
WHS policies and procedures in line with 
Council’s business operations

Maintain a regular program of internal 
auditing

Strengthening of communication and 
consultation processes by maintaining a 
strong WHS presence on Council’s intranet 
site

Review and update of Council’s asbestos 
register

Test and evaluate Council’s Emergency
Management procedures on a regular basis

Maintain and test Council’s Business 
Continuity plan

Review risk assessments and safe work 
instructions for all high risk hazards and 
develop a schedule of review for all 
moderate and low risk hazards.

Further develop the internal auditing 
program to ensure implementation of 
policies and procedures is satisfactory.

Improve the training needs analysis and 
training plan to meet continuous 
improvement requirements

Extend the wellbeing program to improve 
the health of Council workers 
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Information Statement 
This information statement is published by the 
Light Regional Council in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 9 of the Freedom of 
Information Act 1991, and with Regulation 5 of 
the Freedom of Information (General) 
Regulations 2002.  The Light Regional Council 
is pleased to comply with these requirements 
and welcomes enquiries under the Freedom of 
Information Act. This information statement is 
reflective of Council’s administration as at 30 
June 2014.

An updated information statement will be 
published annually and incorporated as part of 
the Council’s Annual Report produced in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 
1999.

Structure and Functions of the 
Council 
Council 
The Council is divided into four (4) wards and 
consists of a Mayor and ten (10) Councillors. 
The Council is the decision making body on all 
policy matters, and those matters which fall 
outside of the delegated authority given to 
various members of Council’s staff under the 
provisions of the various Acts and Regulations 
administered by Council.

Council meetings are normally held on the fourth 
Tuesday of each month at its principal office 
located at 93 Main Street, Kapunda. Council’s 
Development Assessment Panel conducts its 
meetings at the same location when there are 
items for the consideration of the Panel. 
Meetings are generally held on the second 
Wednesday of the month. 

The monthly Council meetings commence at 
5.00pm, while the Development Assessment 
Panel meetings commence at 5.30 pm. From 
time to time Council may vary the time and place 
of conducting its monthly meeting, these 
changes are advertised as required.  Special 
meetings of Council may be held from time to 
time as required.

All meetings are open to the public and agendas 
and minutes of those meetings are on display for 
public inspection.

Committees 
Council is able to form Committees in 
accordance with section 41 of the Local 
Government Act 1999, the purpose of which is 
to streamline Council business. Council has 
utilised the section of the Act to form the 
following listed committees, which meet as and
when required. 

These Committees generally operate in an 
advisory capacity; that is the Committee 
considers matters for discussion, makes 
recommendations to the Council, Council then 
considers the Committee’s recommendations. 
The exception is the Chief Executive Officer’s 
Performance Review Committee which has the 
authority to act on behalf of the Council. 

Council’s Committees are:

Audit Committee
Rating Policy Review Advisory Committee 
(dissolved at 22 April 2014)
Chief Executive Officer’s Performance
Review Committee (dissolved at 22 April 
2014)
Roseworthy Township Committee 
Infrastructure & Regulatory Services 
Committee (name revised to Infrastructure 
Committee at 22 April 2014)
Strategy & Projects Committee (name 
revised to Development Plan Policy Committee 
at 22 April 2014)
Joint Sitting Committee (dissolved at 22 April 
2014) 
Governance Advisory Panel 
Economic Development Panel (adopted 27 
May 2014)

Subsidiaries 
With reference to section 42 of the Local 
Government Act, Council has no subsidiaries. 
However, Council does have membership of two 
(2) regional subsidiaries constituted under 
section 43 of the Act. They are the Central Local 
Government Region of South Australia, and the 
Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority.
Copies of those Authority’s Annual Reports are 
included as Appendices to this document.

Agendas and Minutes 
Agendas of all Council meetings are placed on 
public display no less than three days prior to 
those meetings. Minutes are placed on display 
within five days of that meeting. Agendas and 
Minutes are available at Council’s offices in 
Kapunda and Freeling and at Council’s libraries. 
These documents are also displayed on 
Council’s public website ‘www.light.sa.gov.au’.
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External Committees/Boards/Associations 
Council participates in a number of external 
committees, boards and associations. Council’s 
membership can comprise elected members, 
staff, a mixture of both, and or/members of the 
public. 

These associations include:
Local Government Association of South 
Australia
Light Regional Council District Bushfire 
Prevention Committee
Regional Development Australia – Barossa 
Inc. 
Central Local Government Region of South 
Australia
Gawler River Floodplain Management 
Authority.

Council also has representation on numerous 
community committees. Minutes of these 
committees, boards and associations are kept 
for record purposes by Council and, subject to 
the consent of the relevant organisation are 
available for public inspection.

Delegations 
Council’s Chief Executive Officer and other 
officers of Council have the delegated authority 
from Council to make decisions on a number of 
specified administrative and policy matters. 
These delegations are made under section 44 of 
the Local Government Act 1999 and generally 
provide for;

The determination of policies to be applied 
by the Council in exercising its discretionary 
powers;

The determination of the type, range and 
scope of projects to be undertaken by the
Council; and

The development of comprehensive 
management plans, budgets, financial 
controls and performance objectives and 
indicators for the operations of the Council.

Council makes decisions that direct and or 
determine its activities and functions. Such 
decisions include the approval of works and 
services to be undertaken, and the resources 
that are to be made available to undertake such 
works and services. Decisions are also made to 
determine whether or not approvals are to be 
granted for applications from residents for 
various forms of development.

Council also has in place comprehensive staff 
delegations to allow staff to manage Council’s 
day to day business without the need to seek 
Council intervention on operational matters.  
Where matters are not covered by appropriate 
delegations, staff will provide reports to Council 
to complete the decision making process.

Services to the Community 
Council makes decisions on policy issues 
relating to services that are provided for 
members of the public. 

These services include;
Aged Care Services
Bus Shelters
Car Parks
Civic Affairs (including Citizenship 
Ceremonies)
Clean Air Controls
Community Halls
Community Wastewater Management 
Systems
Development Controls
Dog Control
Environmental Health matters
Fire Protection and Prevention
Food Inspections
Garbage Collection and Disposal
Heritage Preservation
Home Assist
Immunisation Programs
Parking Bays
Parking Controls
Parks and Reserves
Playground Equipment
Public Cemeteries
Public Conveniences
Public Libraries
Recreational and Sporting Facilities
Roads, Footpaths, Kerbing and Bridges
Stormwater Drainage
Street Beautification
Street Closures
Street Lighting
Street Sweeping
Traffic Control Devices
Transport Assistance
War Memorials
Weed and Vermin Control
Youth Matters
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Public Participation 
Council Meetings 
Members of the public have a number of 
opportunities to put forward their views on 
particular issues before the Council.

These are;
Deputations – with the permission of the 
Committee Chairman or the Mayor, a 
member of the public can address a 
Committee or the Council on any issues 
within the Council’s jurisdiction.
Presentations to Council – with prior 
notification and arrangement with the Mayor,
a member of the public can address the 
Council on any issue relevant to the Council.
Petitions – written requests can be 
addressed to the Council on any issue within 
the Council’s jurisdiction.
Written requests – a member of the public 
can write to the Council on any Council 
policy, activity or service.
Elected Members – members of the public 
can contact their elected members of 
Council to discuss any issue relevant to the 
Council.
Staff members – members of the public can 
contact Council staff to discuss any issue 
relevant to Council.

As part of its monthly Council meeting, Council 
also offers young people of the community the 
opportunity to participate in a ‘Youth Forum’ 
session.  Rules governing this participation do 
apply and are discussed in Council’s Code of 
Practice for Meeting Procedures.

From time to time Council also holds informal 
gatherings used primarily for the purposes of 
planning sessions, briefings or training sessions, 
and workshops.

Public Consultation Policy 
The purpose of the Policy is to outline the 
principles and procedures that the Light 
Regional Council will follow to involve the 
community in planning and decision making in 
the local area, and to ensure accountability of 
Council to the community through effective 
communication and consultation strategies.

The principles underpinning this policy are:

The community has a right to be involved in 
and informed about decisions affecting their 
area;

Community involvement in Council decision 
making will result in greater confidence in 
the Council and responsive decision making;

Council decision making should be open, 
transparent and accountable;

Council recognises that the level of 
consultation with the community will vary 
depending on the community interest in the 
topic, number of persons potentially affected 
by the topic and the requirements for 
consultation set out in the Act for specific 
topics;

Council’s desire to balance community views 
and interest with other influences such as 
budgetary constraints; and

The community has a right to be informed 
and to influence decisions, which affect their 
lives.

 

Access to Council Documents 
Documents Available for Inspection 
The following documents are available for public 
inspection at Council’s principal office in 
Kapunda, free of charge. Some of these 
documents are also available for inspection at 
Council’s Freeling branch office, libraries and on 
Council’s website “www.light.sa.gov.au”. 

Members of the public may purchase copies of 
these documents at the cost shown in Council’s 
Schedule of Fees and Charges (postage and 
packing will be an additional cost if mailed), or 
may download the documents from Council’s 
website free of charge:

Strategic Plan 2013-2017
Annual Budget
Annual Financial Statements
Annual Report
Council Agendas
Council Minutes
Council By-laws

Permits and Penalties
Moveable Signs
Roads
Local Government Land
Dogs
Cats
Nuisance Caused by Building Sites

Order Making Policy
Development Plans
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Council Codes of Conduct and Policies, a list of 
which follows; 

Finance
Rate Rebate Policy
Asset Capitalisation Policy
Financial Year End Commitments Policy
Accounting Policies & Guidelines 
Procurement Policy
Treasury Management Policy
Debtor Management Policy

Human Resources
Elected Members Code of Conduct
Committee Members Code of Conduct
Council Employees Code of Conduct
Working with Vulnerable People Policy
Pre-employment Medical Examination Policy
Risk Management Policy
Sexual Harassment Policy
Corporate Dress Code and Wardrobe Policy
Termination – Loss of Drivers Licence Policy
Equal Employment Opportunity Policy
Motor Vehicle Management Policy
Succession Planning Policy

Work Health Safety
Work Health and Safety and Injury 
Management Policy
WHS Contractor Management Policy 
Alcohol and Drugs Policy
Smoking in the Workplace Policy
WHS Consultation and Communication 
Policy
WHS Hazard Management Policy
Breach of Health & Safety Rules Policy
Asbestos Policy
Immunization Policy
WHS Hazardous Work Policy
Administration of the WHS Management 
System Policy
VDU Policy
WHS Emergency Management Policy
Needles/Sharps Policy

Environmental Services
Food Act Inspection and Fee Policy
CWMS Connection & Augmentation Charge 
Policy
Waste & Recycling Services Policy
Environmental Sustainability Policy

Planning and Development
Public Notification of Development 
Applications Policy
Inspection of Development Documents 
Policy
Development Assessment Panel and Staff 
Delegations Policy
Structures & Fill Over Easements Policy
Enforcement Policy
Building Inspections Policy
Waiving Development Application Fees 
Policy
Interaction of the Development Act 1993, 
State Records Act 1997 and Freedom of 
Information Act 1991 with the Copyright Act 
1968 Policy

Library 
Internet Policy
Public Notices
Programme Policy
Code of Conduct Policy
Unattended Children Policy
Selection of Library Materials Policy
Circulation of Library Materials Policy
Reference and Readers Advisory Policy

Governance and Consultation
Council Members’ Training and 
Development Policy
Whistleblower Protection Policy
Code of Practice Policy for Access to 
Council Meetings, Council Committees and 
Documents 
Public Relations and Marketing Policy
Council Members Communication Policy & 
Procedures
Website Standards
Audit Committee Policy
Public Consultation Policy
Caretaker Policy
Procedure at Meetings Code of Practice
Control of Election Signs Policy
Complaints Handling Policy
Fraud & Corruption Prevention Policy
Social Media Policy

Community Services
Grant Funding Policy
Community & Recreation Facilities Policy
Citizenship Ceremony Policy
Volunteering Policy
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Infrastructure & Works
Rural Property Addressing Policy
Tree Management policy
Application of Dust Suppressant Policy
Road Sealing Funding Policy
Light Vehicle Crossover Policy
Footpath Construction Policy
Cemetery Memorials Policy

Council Registers
Register of Delegations
Register of Interests, Elected Members
Register of Allowances & Benefits, Elected 
Members
Register of Salaries
Register of Interests, Employees
Register of Debenture Loans
Register of Community Land
Register of Public Roads
Register of Leases and Licences

Assessment Book
Schedule of Fees and Charges
Voters Roll

Other Information Requests 
Requests for other information not included 
above will be considered in accordance with the 
Freedom of Information Act. Under this 
legislation an application fee must be forwarded 
with the completed request form, unless the 
applicant is granted an exemption. Should the 
applicant require copies of any documents 
inspected pursuant to a Freedom of Information 
request, the charges set out in the Act will apply.

Freedom of Information Request Forms are 
available at Council’s offices and enquiries or 
requests should be addressed to Council’s Chief 
Executive Officer in the first instance, at the 
following address; 

Mr Brian R Carr
Chief Executive Officer
Light Regional Council
PO Box 72
KAPUNDA SA 5373

These documents are available for public 
inspection at Council’s Kapunda Office during 
office hours, that is 9.00 am to 5.00 pm Monday 
to Friday.

Applications will be responded to as soon as is 
possible within the statutory timeframe of 
Council receiving the properly completed 
Freedom of Information request form, together 
with the application and search fees

Amendment of Council Records 
A member of the public may request access to 
Council documents concerning their personal 
affairs by making a request under the Freedom 
of Information provisions. A request may then be 
made to correct any information about them that 
is incomplete, incorrect, misleading or out of 
date. To gain access to these records a 
Freedom of Information Request Form must be 
completed as indicated above outlining the 
records that the applicant wishes to inspect.

Brian R Carr
Chief Executive Officer

.
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Rating Structure & Policy 
 
Strategic Focus 
In proposing its rates for the 2013/2014 financial 
year Council considered its Strategic 
Management Plan 2013 to 2017, the current 
economic climate, specific issues faced by the 
community, the budget requirements for the 
2013/2014 financial year and the impact of rates 
on the community – in particular householders 
and primary producers.  

Land use categories as provided in the Local 
Government (General) Regulations 1999 are 
used as the basis of Council’s general rate 
calculation.  

Method used to value land 
All land within a council area, except for land 
specifically exempt (eg. crown land, council 
occupied land), is rateable.  Council has decided 
to continue to use capital value as the basis for 
valuing land within the council area.  Council 
considers that this method of valuing land 
provides the fairest method of distributing the 
rates across all ratepayers.

Council will be adopting the valuations made by 
the Valuer-General and which are applicable for 
the financial year commencing 1 July 2013. If a 
property owner is dissatisfied with a property 
valuation, then an objection may be made to the 
Valuer-General in writing, within 60 days of 
receiving notice of the valuation, explaining the 
basis for the objection.  Further contact details 
can be obtained from Council’s Rates 
Assessment Officer on (08) 8525 3200.

It is important to note that Council has no role in 
the valuation process.

Impact of Rates 
The following data provides information in regard to rate modelling done for the formulation of this 
Annual Business Plan and Budget.
  

Financial Year  2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014
(Estimated 
Rate/$ and 

Service 
Charges)

2013/2014
(Estimated 
Revenue) 

% Change to 
values and 
Rate/$ on 
Previous 

Year

%
Average 
Increase 

per 
rateable 
assessm

ent

% of 
General 

Rate 
Revenue

%
Revenue 

shift 
from 

Previous 
Year

(Week 52)
Total Capital 
Valuation

$3,014,825,140 $3,036,450,540 $3,060,657,940 +0.80%

Number of 
Rateable 
Assessments

7,425 7,497 7,604 +1.43%

Total General 
Rate 
Revenue

$11,071,305 $12,047,250 $12,718,900 +5.85%

Refuse 
Collection & 
Disposal 
Service 
Charge

$1,017,823 $1,076,300 $1,103,220 +2.5%

CWMS 
Service 
Charge

$920,598 $941,365 $982,440 +4.36%

NRM Board 
Levy

$266,629 $264,703 $290,830 +9.87%

Other Rate 
Income

$89,900 $86,200 $90,000 +4.41%
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Financial 
Year  

2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014
(Estimated 
Rate/$ and 

Service 
Charges)

2013/2014
(Estimated 
Revenue) 

% Change to 
values and 
Rate/$ on 
Previous 

Year

%
Average 
Increase 

per 
rateable 
assessm

ent

% of 
General 

Rate 
Revenue

%
Revenue 

shift 
from 

Previous 
Year

Rate/$ 
Proposals
Residential 
LUC Rate in 
the $

$0.0035763 $0.0038570 $0.0040455 $5,424,800 +4.89% +4.26% 42.65% +0.19%

Commercial 
Shop LUC 
Rate in the $

$0.0062585 $0.0067498 $0.0070796 $103,900 +4.89% +4.04% 0.82% -0.04%

Commercial 
Office LUC 
Rate in the $

$0.0062585 $0.0067498 $0.0070796 $23,400 +4.89% +5.23% 0.18% +0.03%

Commercial 
Other LUC 
Rate in the $

$0.0071526 $0.0077141 $0.0080910 $830,570 +4.89% +4.93% 6.53% +0.14%

Industrial 
Light LUC 
rate in the $

$0.0098348 $0.0106068 $0.0111251 $50,940 +4.89% -33.89% +0.40% -0.19%

Industrial 
Other LUC 
rate in the $

$0.0098348 $0.0106068 $0.0111251 $1,103,900 +4.89% +6.36% 8.68% -0.15%

Primary 
Production 
LUC Rate in 
the $

$0.0028610 $0.0030856 $0.0032769 $4,429,630 +6.20% +5.42% 34.83% +0.32%

Vacant Land 
LUC Rate in 
the $

$0.0062585 $0.0067498 $0.0070796 $478,080 +4.89% -1.90% 3.76% -0.29%

Other LUC 
Rate in the $

$0.0035763 $0.0038570 $0.0040455 $273,680 +4.89% +2.55% 2.15% -0.02%

Minimum 
Rate

$690 $745 $765 +2.68%

Service 
Charges
Refuse 
Collection & 
Disposal 
Charge 
(including 
green waste)

$249 $255 $255 $965,940 0%

Refuse 
Collection & 
Disposal 
Charge (not 
including 
green waste)

$160 $166 $166 $137,280 0%

CWMS 
Charge 
(Kapunda, 
Freeling, 
Greenock & 
Roseworthy  
System)

$379 $390 $390 $920,790 0%

Freeling 
Sewer 
(Hanson 
Street North 
Estate)

$359 $370 $370 $61,050 0%

Greenock 
Rise CWMS 
Charge 
(nominated 
properties 
only - as at 
18/05/12)

$50 $50 $50 $600 0%
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Differential General Rates 
Every resident benefits in some part from the 
general amenity of the council area, whether 
that is at the present time or in the future.  The 
amenity includes the local economy, general 
council operations and the ability to use council 
facilities.

It is acknowledged that the system of council 
rates is in essence a system of taxation against 
property prescribed through the provisions of the 
Local Government Act 1999.  However, Council 
has assessed that the level of differential rating 
imposed is governed in part by the ability to pay, 
the potential for income tax deductions and the 
perception of accessibility or useability of council 
services by the residents and consumers.  To 
this end, Council has decided that:

Commercial Properties 
Commercial properties generally have available 
to them, their employees and customers the 
same services as ratepayers.  However, in most 
cases commercial users have a greater impact 
on the main services such as road maintenance 
and generally derive a greater benefit from the 
services provided.

Industrial Properties 
Industrial properties generally have available to 
them, their employees and customers the same 
services as ratepayers.  However, in most cases 
industrial users have a greater impact on the 
main services such as road maintenance and 
generally derive a greater benefit from the 
services provided, particularly where, for 
example, large amounts of raw or unrefined 
product is delivered to site for processing 
utilising Council’s infrastructure.
 
Primary Production Properties 
Primary Production properties tend to be more 
remote from some of the services provided by 
Council.  In terms of infrastructure adjacent their
properties they may not have sealed or formed 
roads, footpaths or street lighting.  However they 
do have capacity to enjoy the formed roads, 
footpaths or street lighting and enjoy the same 
level of amenity as other residents of the Council 
area.  In addition, primary production properties 
have the potential for taxation benefits.

In addition Council raises income by way of 
separate charges for the Refuse Collection and 
Community Wastewater Management Systems, 
and acts as a collection agent on behalf of the 
State Government in regard to the collection of 

income for the Natural Resource Management 
Boards.

In the 2013/2014 budget, Council proposes to 
raise total rate related revenue of $15.18m in a 
total operating revenue budget of $17.26m.  
Land Use is used as the factor to apply 
differential rates.  If a ratepayer believes that a 
particular property has been wrongly classified 
by the Council as to its land use, then they may 
object (to Council) to that land use within 60 
days of being notified.  A ratepayer may discuss 
the matter with Council’s Rates Assessment 
Officer, on (08) 8525 3200 in the first instance.  
Objections may be lodged for land use attributed 
to property for the purposes of raising council 
rates.  Council will then undertake a system of 
review.

Minimum Rate 
A Council may impose a minimum amount 
payable by way of rates, provided that it has not 
imposed a fixed charge.  Where two or more 
adjoining properties have the same owner and 
are occupied by the same occupier, only one 
minimum rate is payable by the ratepayer.  
Where a Council imposes a minimum rate it 
must not apply to more than 35% of properties in 
the Council area.

In 2013/2014 Council proposes to impose a 
minimum rate of $765 which will affect 1067
(14.03%) rateable properties.  Council considers 
it appropriate that all rateable properties make a 
base level contribution to the cost of 
administering Council’s activities and to the cost 
of creating and maintaining the physical 
infrastructure that supports each property.

Natural Resource Management 
Board Levies 
The whole of the Council area is located within 
the boundaries of the Adelaide and Mount Lofty 
Ranges Natural Resource Management Board.  
Contributions are sought in 2013/2014 totalling 
$280,510.

Council is operating as a revenue collector for 
the Natural Resource Management Boards in 
this regard.  It does not retain this revenue or 
determine how the revenue is spent.
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Service Charges 
Council provides a Community Wastewater 
Management System to residential and 
commercial properties in Kapunda, Freeling, 
Greenock and Roseworthy.  The full cost of 
operating and maintaining this service for the 
2013/2014 financial year is budgeted to be 
$0.98m.  Council recovers this cost through 
various means including the imposition of a 
service charge of $370 per unit for Freeling 
Hanson Street North Estate and $390 per unit 
for all other properties where the service is 
available.  Some nominated properties at the 
Greenock Rise subdivision will be charged an 
amount of $50 per unit.  Where the service is 
provided to non-rateable land, a service charge 
is levied against the land.

The Council also provides a refuse collection 
service inclusive of recycling collections within 
the townships of Kapunda, Freeling, Hewett, 
Greenock, Roseworthy and Wasleys.  The 
service is also provided to those ratepayers in 
Council’s area that are able to access the 
service along the designated collection routes.  
The full cost of operating and maintaining this 
service for 2013/2014 is budgeted to be 
$1.103m.  Council proposes to recover this cost 
through a service charge of $255 for each 
property within the designated 3 bin service area 
(ie. collection of domestic, recyclable and green 
organic refuse); and through a service charge of 
$166 for each property within the designated 2 
bin service area (ie. collection of domestic and 
recyclable refuse only).  Where the service is 
provided to non-rateable land, a service charge 
is levied against the land.

Rate Concessions 
The State Government funds (and administers) 
a variety of concessions on Council rates.  
Eligible pensioners may be entitled to a rebate 
on Council rates, water rates and CWMS 
(formerly STEDS) charges where applicable.  
Application forms, which include information on 
the concessions, are available from Council’s 
offices, or by telephoning Council’s Rates 
Assessment Officer, on (08) 8525 3200.  
Concessions are only available on the principal 
place of residence.

Self Funded Retiree Concession 
This concession has been available from 1 July 
2001 and is administered by Department for 
Community and Social Inclusion.  A self-funded 
retiree, currently holding a State Seniors Card, 
may be eligible for a concession toward Council 
Rates.  In the case of couples, both must qualify, 
or if only one holds a State Senior’s Card, the 
other must not be in paid employment for more 
than 20 hours per week. Further information can 
be obtained from the Department for Community 
and Social Inclusion on 1800 307 758.

Unemployed Persons Concessions 
The Department for Community and Social 
Inclusion may assist with the payment of Council 
rates for a principal place of residence 
(remissions are not available on vacant land or 
rental premises).  Please contact your nearest 
Department for Community and Social Inclusion 
office on 1800 307 758 for details.

Payment of Rates 
Under Section 181 of the Local Government Act 
1999, Council must provide the opportunity for 
all ratepayers to pay rates by quarterly 
instalments.  Council payment dates proposed in 
the 2013/2014 financial year will be 6
September 2013, 6 December 2013, 7 March 
2014 and 6 June 2014.

Late Payment of Rates 
The Local Government Act 1999 provides that 
Councils impose an initial penalty of 2% on any 
payment for rates, whether by instalment or 
otherwise, that is received late. A payment that 
continues to be late is then charged an interest 
rate, set each year according to a formula in the 
Act, for each month it continues to be late.  
Council allows a further three working days after 
the due date for payment as a grace period.  
Thereafter late payment penalties are applied in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 
1999.

Council issues a final notice for payment of rates 
when rates are overdue i.e. unpaid by the due 
date.  Should rates remain unpaid more than 21 
days after the issue of the final notice then the 
Council will refer the debt to their debt collection 
agency for collection. The debt collection 
agency charges collection fees that are 
recoverable from the ratepayer.  All costs 
incurred by Council in the recovery of 
outstanding rates and fines are payable by the 
ratepayer.
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When Council receives a payment in respect of 
overdue rates, Council applies the money 
received as follows:

firstly – in payment of any costs awarded to, 
or recoverable by, the Council in any court 
proceedings undertaken by the Council for 
the recovery of the rates;

secondly – in satisfaction for any liability for 
interest;

thirdly – in payment of any fine;

fourthly – in satisfaction of liabilities for rates 
in the order in which those liabilities arose in 
payment of rates, in date order of their 
imposition (starting with the oldest account 
first). 

Remission and Postponement of Rates 

Postponement or Rates - Hardship 
Section 182 of the Local Government Act 1999 
permits Council, on the application of the 
ratepayer, to partially or wholly remit rates or to 
postpone rates, on the basis of hardship.  Where 
a ratepayer is suffering hardship in paying rates 
they are invited to contact Council’s Rates 
Assessment Officer, on (08) 8525 3200 to 
discuss the matter.  Such enquiries are treated 
confidentially by Council

Seniors Rate Postponement 
Section 182A of the Local Government Act 
provides the option for State Senior Card 
holders to apply to postpone part of their council 
rates on a long term basis.  The deferred 
amount is subject to monthly interest charge, 
with the accrued debt being payable on the 
disposal or sale of the property. Postponement 
is similar to a reverse mortgage by relying on the 
equity in the property.  A ratepayer who has a 
State Seniors Card may apply for postponement 
of a portion of the council rates payable on 
property they own if it is their principal place of 
residence and if no other person other than their 
spouse has an interest as owner of the property 
and there is appropriate equity in the property.  
Further information can be obtained from 
Council’s Rates Assessment Officer on (08) 
8525 3200.

Rebate of Rates 
The Local Government Act 1999 requires 
Councils to rebate the rates payable for certain 
land uses.  This includes 100% rate rebates 
granted on Places of Worship, Public 
Cemeteries, Hospitals and land occupied by 
Universities, and 75% rate rebates have been 
granted on Educational facilities (subject to 
some qualifications).

Discretionary rebates may be applied by the 
Council under Section 166 of the Act.  Council 
annually considers many applications for rate 
rebates and has in the past, and is again for the 
2013/2014 financial year, proposing to rebate 
rates charged to various district community and 
sporting organisations.

Sale of Land for Non-Payment of 
Council Rates 
The Local Government Act 1999 provides that a 
Council may sell any property where the rates 
have been in arrears for three years or more.  
The Council is required to notify the principal 
ratepayer and the owner (if not the same 
person) of the land of its intention to sell the land
and provide the owner with details of the 
outstanding amounts.  If payment of the 
outstanding amount is not received within one 
month the property may be sold.  Except in 
extraordinary circumstances, the Council 
enforces the sale of land for arrears of rates.

Disclaimer 
A rate cannot be challenged on the basis of non-
compliance with this policy and must be paid in 
accordance with the required payment 
provisions.  



88 Light Regional Council | Annual Report | 2013 – 2014

 
 

  



 

Light Regional Council | Annual Report | 2013 – 2014 89

Financial Report 
 
Operating Result 
The Council’s operating deficit before capital 
adjustments was $1.1m an improvement of
$1.4m compared to last year’s result of $2.5m 
deficit and $1.5m better than the 2013/2014
original budget of $2.6m. 

Despite the fact operating revenues are not 
enough to cover annual operating expenditure
Council has continued to improve its operating 
result as shown by the table below:

Financial Year 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Operating Deficit $(000’s)

(B/F Capital Adjustments)

$1,124 $2,498 $2,802 $3,192 $3,647

Year on Year Improvement ($1.374) ($304) ($390) ($455) $878

Year on Year % Change (55%) (11%) (12%) (13%) 32%

Council’s total Operating Income was $17m, a 
reduction of $0.337m on last year. Revenue 
received by way of rates increased by $0.742m
from $14.1m to $14.8m or 5.26% which was in 
line with the Council’s strategic and long term 
financial plan.

The total Operating Expenses were $18.1m, 
$1.7m reduction on last year which was a 
decrease of 8.6%. Employee costs (excluding 
capitalised labour costs) increased 0.6%. 
Depreciation fell $1.1m as a result of Council 
decision to extend asset useful lives. 

Material/contactors and other expenses 
decreased by $0.672m or 10% due to the 
reduction mainly in legal costs, professional 
services costs and maintenance work 
undertaken by Council in the 2014 Financial 
Year.

Council’s Net operating deficit, after adjusting for 
Capital Revenues (inclusive of physical 
resources received free of charge), was a 
surplus of $0.426m, which was also an 
improvement on lasts year’s result of $2.2m 
deficit.
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Sustainability 
Council’s strategic long term financial aim is to 
achieve an operating surplus (before capital 
revenues) during the tenure of its ten year plan 
for 2010 to 2020. Council believes that a 
combination of factors including asset 
rationalisation, increased revenues, continued 
residential and industrial development, and 
workplace reforms will contribute to attaining its 
goal of sustainability into the future.

Cash Flow Position 
Council’s overall cash position has decreased by 
$0.5m in 2014 from $2.7m in 2013 to $2.2m.

Council’s cash flow statement shows that 
Council had approximately $2.17 million in cash 
and cash equivalents as at 30 June 2014. A list 
of Reserves maintained by Council is also 
detailed in Note 9 of the Financial Statements, 
which show the Council had a further $3.2m in 
other reserves as at the 30th June 2014.

The reduction in Council’s net cash position is a
result of cumulative effect of spending less 
money in investing activities in 2013/2014 
compared to 2012/2013 and repaying more 
Council debts in 2013/2014.

Capital Expenditure 
Capital investment in community infrastructure 
continued to be a high priority for the Council 
with $5.1m being expended on major projects, 
including construction works and equipment 
purchases.  The Council’s strategic plan 
continues to support as a high priority, the road 
infrastructure network of the district.

Application of Competition Policy 
The revised Clause 7 Statement on the 
application of the competition principles to local 
government under the Competition Principles 
Agreement requires Councils to include specific 
information in their annual reports.

Council reports that it has no significant 
business activities within the guidelines of the 
Revised Clause 7 Statement.  This outcome is 
similar to that of previous financial years.

With regard to the application of competitive 
neutrality, Council believes that it practices 
appropriate methodology particularly in regard to 
the purchase of materials and contractual 
services.  With reference to Council’s Income 
Statement for the reporting period, Council 
expended $5.9m (compared to $6.6m for the 
2013 reporting period) on materials, contracts 
and other expenses or 33% of operational 
expenditure (not including capital project costs).  
A large proportion of this spending occurred 
through the application of Council’s Procurement 
Policy which places procedural elements on staff 
when tendering for works or when seeking 
quotations for works and services.

No Council by-laws were reviewed during the 
reporting period.  The by-laws were previously 
adopted in October 2008.  

No complaints about the application of 
competitive neutrality principles within Council’s 
sphere of operations were received for the 
reporting period.

Application of Rate Rebates 
As part of the Council’s rating processes, 
Council often deals with requests in regard to 
the application of section 166 of the Local 
Government Act of 1999.  This section of the Act 
deals specifically with the discretionary rebate of 
Council rates levied against properties in the 
Council area and provides the Council with the 
legislative mechanism to rebate those rates. The 
rates rebate in essence provides financial 
assistance to the ratepayer; normally a 
community organisation or a ratepayer providing 
a benefit to the community.

Council rebated rates to the value of $406,579 
for the reporting period.  This figure also 
includes rate rebates which are mandatory 
under the Act. With regard specifically to 
applications received for the rebate of Council 
rates, the applications being lodged in 
accordance with section 166(1)(h) of the Local 
Government Act 1999 (that is in relation to rates 
rebated for the purposes of aged 
accommodation), Council advises that rates 
were rebated for the Kapunda Hospital and 
Wheatfields Incorporated.
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Debenture Loan Data 
Council had $9.10m in loans owing as at 30 June 2014 compared to $9.49m at the same time last year -
a reduction of $0.39m. 

The table below shows the borrowing trend - position of Council since the 2000 Financial Year.
 

Financial 
Year

Type of Loan New Loans for 
Financial Year 

($)

Loan 
Principal 
Repaid

($)

Loan 
Interest 

Paid
($)

Amount 
Loan Debt 
at 30 June

($)
1999/2000 1,198,700 500,065 238,727 3,965,115
2000/2001 1,854,990 647,261 350,795 5,172,844
2001/2002 1,679,110 722,203 378,913 6,129,751
2002/2003 1,800,000 1,240,615 445,442 6,689,136
2003/2004 1,600,000 $839,736 442,790 7,449,400
2004/2005 1,520,000 $914,313 508,462 8,055,088
2005/2006 1,470,000 1,033,965 533,735 8,491,122
2006/2007 1,682,310 1,476,230 551,091 8,697,202
2007/2008 4,000,000 1,273,557 589,609 11,423,645
2008/2009 - 1,532,960 738,675 9,890,685
2009/2010 1,200,000 1,570,949 638,229 9,519,736
2010/2011 2,676,000 1,479,123 745,676 10,716,613

2011/2012 Cash Advance 3,709,600 3,300,000 218,946 4,209,600
Fixed Debentures 1,381,306 434,521 5,535,307

2012/2013 Cash Advance 990,400 257,937 5,200,000
Fixed Debentures 1,243,500 345,914 4,291,807

2013/2014 Cash Advance 960,000 - 1,160,000
Rollover of Cash 
Advance

5,000,000 188,935 142,500 4,811,065

Fixed Debentures No new 
borrowings

1,154,900 279,649 3,136,907

 
 
In August 2013, Council rolled over $5m of its existing short term cash advance to a 10 year fixed rate 
debenture. The remaining $3.1m fixed term loans are due to be fully repaid over the next 5 years 
concluding in 2018 Financial Year. 

Council has a Cash Advance Debenture facility of $9.25m as at 30 June 2014 with the Local Government 
Finance authority of which $1.16m has been drawn down as at 30 June 2014.   
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2014 2013
Notes

INCOME
Rates 2   14,847,205    14,105,507 
Statutory charges 2        411,396         388,959 
User charges 2        160,318         297,973 
Grants, subsidies and contributions 2        992,750      1,923,496 
Investment income 2          60,403           63,544 
Reimbursements 2        108,173         122,943 
Other income 2        406,531         421,518 
Total Income   16,986,775    17,323,940 

EXPENSES
Employee costs 3     6,425,461      6,325,674 
Materials, contracts & other expenses 3     5,934,579      6,606,340 
Depreciation, amortisation & impairment 3     5,183,956      6,283,640 
Finance costs 3        548,305         603,851 
Net loss -  equity accounted Council businesses 19          18,836             2,301 
Total Expenses   18,111,137    19,821,807 

OPERATING SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)   (1,124,362)    (2,497,867)

Asset disposal & fair value adjustments 4      (869,415)    (1,399,898)

Amounts received specifically for new or upgraded assets 2     1,767,256         147,093 

Physical resources received free of charge 2        652,119      1,597,574 
NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)

transferred to Equity Statement        425,598    (2,153,098)

Other Comprehensive Income

Adjustment to Equity Share          13,473                     - 

Changes in revaluation surplus - infrastructure, 
property, plant & equipment

9 16,537,465 (18,258,510)

Share of other comprehensive income - equity 
accounted Council businesses

19        220,325                     - 

Total Other Comprehensive Income   16,771,263  (18,258,510)

TOTAL  COMPREHENSIVE  INCOME   17,196,861  (20,411,608)

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.

LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

STATEMENT  OF  COMPREHENSIVE  INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2014
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2014 2013
ASSETS Notes
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 2,167,750 2,654,730
Trade & other receivables 5 2,388,424 1,240,213
Inventories 5 127,583 137,839

Total Current Assets 4,683,757 4,032,782

Non-current Assets
Financial assets 6 219,416 226,000
Equity accounted investments in Council businesses 6 1,658,655 1,443,693
Infrastructure, property, plant & equipment 7 181,346,799 165,474,373
Other non-current assets 6 1,190,382 1,092,283

Total Non-current Assets 184,415,252 168,236,349
Total Assets 189,099,009 172,269,131

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade & other payables 8 1,849,284 1,807,267
Borrowings 8 2,563,168 1,154,900
Provisions 8 1,371,230 1,535,354

Total Current Liabilities 5,783,682 4,497,521

Non-current Liabilities
Borrowings 8 6,544,804 8,336,907
Provisions 8 446,531 307,571

Total Non-current Liabilities 6,991,335 8,644,478
Total Liabilities 12,775,017 13,141,999
NET ASSETS 176,323,992 159,127,132

EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus 10,890,469 9,968,749
Asset Revaluation Reserves 9 162,246,253 145,488,463
Other Reserves 9 3,187,270 3,669,920
TOTAL EQUITY 176,323,992 159,127,132

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.

LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

STATEMENT  OF  FINANCIAL  POSITION
as at 30 June 2014
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LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

Accumulated
Surplus

Asset 
Revaluation 

Reserve

Other 
Reserves

TOTAL 
EQUITY

2014 Notes

Balance at end of previous reporting period 9,968,749 145,488,463 3,669,920 159,127,132 
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 425,598 - - 425,598 
Other Comprehensive Income -

Gain on revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant & 
equipment - 16,537,465 - 16,537,465 

Share of other comprehensive income - equity 
accounted Council businesses - 220,325 - 220,325 

Other equity adjustments - equity accounted Council 
businesses 13,473 - - 13,473 

Transfers between reserves 482,650 - (482,650) - 
Balance at end of period 10,890,469 162,246,253 3,187,270 176,323,992 

2013

Balance at end of previous reporting period 12,540,442 163,746,973 3,251,325 179,538,740 
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year (2,153,098) - - (2,153,098)
Other Comprehensive Income -

Changes in revaluation surplus - infrastructure, property, 
plant & equipment - (18,258,510) - (18,258,510)

Transfers between reserves (418,595) - 418,595 - 
Balance at end of period 9,968,749 145,488,463 3,669,920 159,127,132 

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes

for the year ended 30 June 2014
STATEMENT  OF  CHANGES  IN  EQUITY
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LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

STATEMENT  OF  CASH  FLOWS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Notes
Receipts

Rates - general & other 15,037,620 14,022,359
Fees & other charges 416,822 419,860
User charges 167,729 423,103
Investment receipts 65,035 64,212
Grants utilised for operating purposes 1,042,399 2,076,358
Reimbursements 118,990 135,237
Other revenues 405,083 1,456,424

Payments
Employee costs (6,423,928) (6,161,866)
Materials, contracts & other expenses (7,248,701) (7,426,903)
Finance payments (623,253) (619,924)

Net Cash provided by (or used in) Operating Activities 2,957,796 4,388,860

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipts

Amounts specifically for new or upgraded assets 1,815,902 147,093
Sale of replaced assets 244,594 355,264
Sale of surplus assets 10,641 1,356,860
Repayments of loans by community groups 6,116 5,910

Payments
Expenditure on renewal/replacement of assets (2,160,633) (2,435,931)
Expenditure on new/upgraded assets (2,964,089) (3,186,459)

Net Cash provided by (or used in) Investing Activities (3,060,941) (3,757,263)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
   Proceeds from borrowings 1,160,000 8,456,900
Payments
   Repayments of borrowings (1,543,835) (8,710,000)

Net Cash provided by (or used in) Financing Activities (383,835) (253,100)

Net Increase (Decrease) in cash held (486,981) 378,497

Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of period 11 2,654,730 2,276,233
Cash & cash equivalents at end of period 11 2,167,750 2,654,730

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes
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1         Basis of Preparation
1.1         Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards

1.2         Historical Cost Convention

1.3         Critical Accounting Estimates

1.4         Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar ($).

2         The Local Government Reporting Entity

3         Income Recognition

LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

for the year ended 30 June 2014

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards as they apply to not-for-profit entities, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board, Interpretations and relevant South Australian legislation.

The financial report was authorised for issue by certificate under regulation 14 of the Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

Light Regional Council is incorporated under the SA Local Government Act 1999 and has its principal place
of business at 93 Main Street, Kapunda SA. These financial statements include the Council’s direct
operations and all entities through which Council controls resources to carry on its functions. In the process
of reporting on the Council as a single unit, all transactions and balances between activity areas and
controlled entities have been eliminated.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Income is recognised when
the Council obtains control over the assets comprising the income, or when the amount due constitutes an
enforceable debt, whichever first occurs.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Trust monies and property held by Council but subject to the control of other persons have been excluded
from these reports. A separate statement of moneys held in the Trust Fund is available for inspection at the
Council Office by any person free of charge.

Except as stated below, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates, and requires management to exercise its judgement in applying
Council’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are specifically referred to in the
relevant sections of this Note.
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4         Cash, Cash Equivalents and Other Financial Instruments

5         Inventories

6         Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
6.1        Land under roads

Where grants, contributions and donations recognised as incomes during the reporting period were obtained
on the condition that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period, and those
conditions were undischarged as at the reporting date, the amounts subject to those undischarged conditions
are disclosed in these Notes. Also disclosed is the amount of grants, contributions and receivables
recognised as incomes in a previous reporting period which were obtained in respect of the Council's
operations for the current reporting period.

6.2         Initial Recognition

An early Grants Commission payment for the first half of 2013/2014 was received in June 2013. This has
been included as a separate income item in Note 2 for 2012/2013.

Receivables for rates and annual charges are secured over the subject land, and bear interest at rates
determined in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999. Other receivables are generally unsecured
and do not bear interest.

Cash Assets include all amounts readily convertible to cash on hand at Council’s option with an insignificant
risk of changes in value with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Inventories held in respect of stores have been valued by using the weighted average cost on a continual
basis, after adjustment for loss of service potential.

Note 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont)

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

for the year ended 30 June 2014

All receivables are reviewed as at the reporting date and adequate allowance made for amounts the receipt
of which is considered doubtful.

All non-current assets purchased or constructed are capitalised as the expenditure is incurred and
depreciated as soon as the asset is held “ready for use”. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets
given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including architect fees and engineering
design fees and all other costs incurred. The cost of non-current assets constructed by the Council includes
the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour on the project and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed overhead.

Capital works still in progress at balance date are recognised as other non-current assets and transferred to
infrastructure, property, plant & equipment when completed ready for use.

All financial instruments are recognised at fair value at the date of recognition. A detailed statement of the
accounting policies applied to financial instruments forms part of Note 13.

Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired prior to 1 July 2008 as an asset in
accordance with AASB 1051 Land under Roads. Land under roads acquired after 30 June 2008 has not
been recognised as in the opinion of Council it is not possible to reliably attribute a fair value, and further that
such value if determined would be immaterial.

All assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost is
determined as fair value at the date of acquisition
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6.3        Materiality

Office Furniture & Equipment 500
Other Plant & Equipment 500
Artworks 5,000

Buildings - New Construction/Extensions 2,000

Park & Playground Furniture & Equipment 2,000

No capitalisation threshold is applied to the acquisition of land or interests in land.

Infrastructure

Road Construction & Reconstruction

Paving & Footpaths, Kerb & Gutter
Stormwater

CWMS
Bridges

Traffic Control

6.4         Subsequent Recognition

6.5         Depreciation of Non-Current Assets 
Other than land, all infrastructure, property, plant and equipment assets recognised are systematically
depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line basis which, in the opinion of Council, best reflects the
consumption of the service potential embodied in those assets.

Major depreciation periods for each class of asset are documented in Asset Valuation & Methodology
Statements. 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of classes of assets are reviewed annually.

Note 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont)

LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2014

Furniture/Fittings, Plant & Equipment

Building, Land & Other Structures

Infrastructure assets are capitalised in accordance with Council's adopted Capitalisation Policy (unless
otherwise stated), where the costs of renewal exceed 10% of the full asset replacement cost for the following
asset types:

All material asset classes are revalued on a regular basis such that the carrying values are not materially
different from fair value. For infrastructure and other asset classes where no active market exists, fair value
is determined to be the current replacement cost of an asset less, where applicable, accumulated
depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future economic
benefits of the asset.  Further detail of existing valuations, methods and valuers are provided at Note 7.

New or renewed traffic control assets are grouped by sign or traffic control type and are capitalised at cost.

Assets with an economic life in excess of one year are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition exceeds
materiality thresholds established by Council for each type of asset.

Assets with an economic life in excess of one year are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition exceeds
materiality thresholds established by Council for each type of asset. In determining (and in annually
reviewing) materiality thresholds established by Council for each type of asset, regard is had to the nature of
the asset and its estimated service life. Examples of capitalisation thresholds applied during the year are as
follows. 
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6.6         Impairment

7         Payables

8         Borrowings

For assets whose future economic benefits are not dependent on the ability to generate cash flows, and
where the future economic benefits would be replaced if Council were deprived thereof, the value in use is
the depreciated replacement cost. In assessing impairment for these assets, a rebuttable assumption is
made that the current replacement cost exceeds the original cost of acquisition.

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are reviewed annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount (which is
the higher of the present value of future cash outflows or value in use).

Borrowing costs in relation to qualifying assets (net of offsetting investment revenue) have been capitalised
in accordance with AASB 123 Borrowing Costs. The amounts of borrowing costs recognised as an expense
or as part of the carrying amount of qualifying assets are disclosed in Note 3, and the amount (if any) of
interest revenue offset against borrowing costs in Note 2.

6.7         Borrowing Costs 

7.1         Goods & Services

7.2         Payments Received in Advance & Deposits

Loans are carried at their principal amounts which represent the present value of future cash flows
associated with servicing the debt. Interest is accrued over the period to which it relates, and is recorded as
part of “Payables”. Interest free loans are carried at their nominal amounts; interest revenues foregone by
the lender effectively being a reduction of interest expense in the period to which it relates.

Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the supply of goods and services and are recognised as
liabilities when the goods and services are received. Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month of
invoice.  No interest is payable on these amounts.

Amounts received from external parties in advance of service delivery, and security deposits held against
possible damage to Council assets, are recognised as liabilities until the service is delivered or damage
reinstated, or the amount is refunded as the case may be.

LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont)

Where an asset that has been revalued is subsequently impaired, the impairment is first offset against such
amount as stands to the credit of that class of assets in Asset Revaluation Reserve, any excess being
recognised as an expense.
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9         Employee Benefits
9.1         Salaries, Wages & Compensated Absences

Weighted average discount rate 3.18% (2013, 2.83%)
Weighted average settlement period 1.28 years (2013, 1.46 years)

10      Construction Contracts

11      Joint Ventures and Associated Entities

12      Leases

Note 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont)

Council is part of the Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority in association with various other
Councils.  This is accounted for in accordance with AASB 128 and set out in detail in Note 19.

In respect of operating leases, where the lessor substantially retains all of the risks and benefits incident to
ownership of the leased items, lease payments are charged to expense over the lease term.

Lease arrangements have been accounted for in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AASB
117.  Council did not have any finance leases as at 30 June 2014.

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local
Government Superannuation Scheme. The Scheme has two types of membership, each of which is funded
differently. No changes in accounting policy have occurred during either the current or previous reporting
periods. Details of the accounting policies applied and Council’s involvement with the schemes are reported
in Note 18.

No accrual is made for sick leave as Council experience indicates that, on average, sick leave taken in each
reporting period is less than the entitlement accruing in that period, and this experience is expected to recur
in future reporting periods.  Council does not make payment for untaken sick leave.

Construction works undertaken by Council for third parties are generally on an agency basis where the third
party reimburses Council for actual costs incurred, and usually do not extend beyond the reporting period.
As there is no profit component, such works are treated as 100% completed. Reimbursements not received
are recognised as receivables and reimbursements received in advance are recognised as “payments
received in advance”.

Liabilities for employees’ entitlements to salaries, wages and compensated absences expected to be paid or
settled within 12 months of reporting date are accrued at nominal amounts (including payroll based oncosts)
measured in accordance with AASB 119. 

Liabilities for employee benefits not expected to be paid or settled within 12 months are measured as the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows (including payroll based oncosts) to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Present values are calculated using government
guaranteed securities rates with similar maturity terms.

9.2         Superannuation

for the year ended 30 June 2014

LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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13      GST Implications

14      Pending Accounting Standards

AASB 7 Financial Instruments – Disclosures
AASB 9 Financial Instruments
AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
AASB 11 Joint Arrangements
AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
AASB 119 Employee Benefits
AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements
AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation

AASB 2010-7

AASB 2011-7

AASB 2011-8

AASB 2011-10

AASB 2012-6

AASB 2012-10

AASB 2013-3

AASB 2013-8

LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont)

Certain new accounting standards and UIG interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for
the 30 June 2014 reporting period and have not been used in preparing these reports.

In accordance with UIG Abstract 1031 “Accounting for the Goods & Services Tax”

Receivables and Creditors include GST receivable and payable.

Except in relation to input taxed activities, revenues and operating expenditures exclude GST receivable
and payable.

Non-current assets and capital expenditures include GST net of any recoupment.
Amounts included in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 [AASBs
1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137,
139, 1023, & 1038 and Interpretations 2, 5, 10,12, 19, & 127]
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation
and Joint Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7,9, 2009-11, 101, 107,
112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023& 1038 and Interpretations 5,
9, 16 & 17]

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Australian Implementation
Guidance for Not for Profit Entities – Control and Structured Entities [AASB 10,
AASB 12 & AASB 1049] 

Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non -
Financial Assets

Standards containing consequential amendments to other Standards and Interpretations arising from the
above;

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transition Guidance and
Other Amendments [AASB 1, 5, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118,
119, 127, 128, 132, 133, 134, 137, 1023, 1038, 1039, 1049 & 2011 7 and

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Mandatory Effective Date of
AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures [AASB 9, AASB 2009 11, AASB 2010 7,
AASB 2011 7 & AASB 2011 8]

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119
(September 2011) [AASB 1, AASB 8, AASB 101, AASB 124, AASB 134, AASB
1049 & AASB 2011-8 and Interpretation 14]

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB
1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120,
121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138, 139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and
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AASB 2013-6

(Standards not affecting local government have been excluded from the above list.)

Annual Leave has this year been disclosed under Provisions for the first time due to the new requirements
under AASB 119 Employee Benefits. In Previous years, Annual Leave has been disclosed under Trade and
Other Payables. Comparative information has been amended for comparative purposes and this resulted in
no change in the comparative financial position or performance of the Council.

15        Comparative Information
Comparative information has been reclassified to be consistent with the current year disclosure of equivalent
information in accordance with AIFRS.

The Australian Accounting Standards Board is currently reviewing AASB 1004 Contributions. It is anticipated
that the changes resulting from this review may have a material effect on the timing of the recognition of
grants and contributions, but the financial consequences cannot be estimated until a revised accounting
standard is issued.

Council is of the view that none of the above new standards or interpretations will affect any of the amounts
recognised in the financial statements, but that they may impact certain information otherwise disclosed.

for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont)
Instruments [Operative dates: Part A Conceptual Framework – 20 Dec 2013;
Part B Materiality – 1 Jan 2014; Part C Financial Instruments – 1 Jan 2015]

LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 30 June 2014

2014 2013
Notes

RATES  REVENUES
General Rates 12,759,898 12,074,479

Less: Mandatory Rebates (299,237) (266,465)
Less: Discretionary Rebates, Remissions 
& Write Offs (107,342) (102,777)

12,353,319 11,705,237
Other Rates (including service charges)

Natural Resource Management Levy 288,099 263,008
Waste Collection 1,100,434 1,073,653
Community Wastewater Management Systems 985,098 961,942

2,373,631 2,298,603
Other Charges

Penalties for Late Payment 62,441 76,702
Legal & Other Costs Recovered 57,814 24,965

120,255 101,666
14,847,205 14,105,507

STATUTORY  CHARGES
Development Act fees 194,520 174,791
Health & Septic Tank Inspection fees 45,349 41,741
Animal registration fees & fines 141,861 136,148
Food Inspection 2,648 2,720
Rates Searches 25,664 26,756
Other licences, fees, & fines 1,354 6,803

411,396 388,959

USER  CHARGES
Cemetery/Crematoria Fees 37,093 31,161
Commercial Activity Revenue - Tourist Park 81,950 222,122
Waste Management 10,843 20,656
Hall & Equipment Hire 136 227
Kennels 3,437 3,692
Sales - General 21,304 15,343
Sundry 5,555 4,772

160,318 297,973

INVESTMENT  INCOME
Interest on Investments

Local Government Finance Authority 47,180 54,717
Banks & Other 8,590 5,003
Loans to Community Groups 4,634 3,824

60,403 63,544

LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 - INCOME
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for the year ended 30 June 2014

NOTE 2 - INCOME (continued)
2014 2013

Notes
REIMBURSEMENTS

 - For Private Works 280 47,579
 - Other 107,893 75,364

108,173 122,943

OTHER INCOME
Insurance & other recoupments - 
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment 70,048 159,447
Workers Compensation Bonus 147,962 138,972
Bonuses Received from Local 
Government related Entities 64,766 21,247
Rebates Received 25,659 23,380
Sundry 98,096 78,473

406,531 421,518

GRANTS, SUBSIDIES, CONTRIBUTIONS
Amounts received specifically for new or 
upgraded assets 1,767,256 147,093
Other grants, subsidies and contributions 992,750 1,544,416
Individually significant item
   additional Grant Commission payment - 379,080

2,760,005 2,070,589
The functions to which these grants relate are shown in Note 2.

Sources of grants
Commonwealth government 1,954,234 771,248
State government 802,492 1,210,027
Other 3,279 89,314

2,760,005 2,070,589

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL
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for the year ended 30 June 2014

NOTE 2 - INCOME (continued)
2014 2013

Notes

Conditions over grants & contributions

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 164,210 285,596

(59,812 ) (44,093 )
(57,928 ) (68,899 )
(46,470 ) (126,133 )

Subtotal (164,210 ) (239,125 )

230,066 13,341
798,400 57,928

46,470
4,427

Subtotal 1,032,893 117,739
1,032,893 164,210

868,683 (121,386 )

PHYSICAL  RESOURCES  RECEIVED  FREE  OF  CHARGE
Land & Improvements 82,115 22,120
Roads, Bridges & Footpaths 230,563 676,577
Stormwater Drainage 339,441 630,145
Traffic Control - 10,519
CWMS - 257,513
Plant & Equipment - 700

TOTAL PHYSICAL  RESOURCES  RECEIVED 652,119 1,597,574

LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Grants and contributions which were obtained on the condition that they be expended for 
specified purposes or in a future period, but which are not yet expended in accordance with 
those conditions, are as follows:

Net increase (decrease) in assets subject to 
conditions in the current reporting period

Roads Infrastructure

Business Undertakings

Roads Infrastructure

Community Services

Less: expended during the current period from 
revenues recognised in previous reporting periods 

Plus: amounts recognised as revenues in this 
reporting period but not yet expended in accordance 
with the conditions

Unexpended at the close of this reporting period

Environment

Environment
Business Undertakings
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LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 3 - EXPENSES

2014 2013
Notes

EMPLOYEE COSTS
Salaries and Wages 5,086,204 4,995,096
Employee Leave Expense 982,019 1,075,787
Superannuation - Defined Contribution Plan Contributions 18 379,042 338,416
Superannuation - Defined Benefit Plan Contributions 18 123,136 139,469
Workers' Compensation Insurance 266,645 267,603
Other 239,856 216,732
Less: Capitalised and Distributed Costs (651,441) (707,429)
Total Operating Employee Costs 6,425,461 6,325,674

Total Number of Employees 74 77
          (Full time equivalent at end of reporting period)

MATERIALS, CONTRACTS & OTHER EXPENSES
Prescribed Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration
     -  Auditing the financial reports 29,600 15,150
Bad and Doubtful Debts 10,338 48,939
Elected members' expenses 242,145 232,189
Operating Lease Rentals - non-cancellable leases 18
     - minimum lease payments 136,509 167,757
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses 418,592 464,035

Other Materials, Contracts & Expenses
Advertising 33,663 60,687
Bank Charges 52,134 61,424
Contractors 2,018,960 2,318,752
Energy 366,983 333,749
Insurance 243,208 257,535
Legal Expenses 84,517 267,126
Levies paid to government - NRM levy 280,506 258,003
     -  Other Levies 18,741 15,954
Maintenance 569,454 682,655
Parts, accessories & consumables 358,117 366,118
Printing & Stationery 66,206 66,126
Professional services 846,098 985,783
Subscriptions/Membership Fees 127,834 137,541
Telephone & Internet 89,324 77,918
Water Charges 303,091 262,858
Sundry 196,774 183,905
Less: Capitalised and distributed costs (139,624) (193,830)
Subtotal - Other Materials, Contracts & Expenses 5,515,987 6,142,305

5,934,579 6,606,340
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LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 3 - EXPENSES (cont)
2014 2013

Notes
DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION & IMPAIRMENT
Depreciation
Buildings & Other Structures 751,585 780,000
Infrastructure
 - Roads, bridges, footpaths 3,583,531 4,637,925
 - CWMS 347,049 350,452
 - Traffic Control 26,635 49,643
Plant & Equipment 351,519 356,665
Furniture & Fittings 123,637 108,955

5,183,956 6,283,640

FINANCE  COSTS
Interest on Loans 548,305 603,851

548,305 603,851
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LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 4 - ASSET  DISPOSAL  &  FAIR  VALUE  ADJUSTMENTS

2014 2013
Notes

INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY,  PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Assets renewed or directly replaced
Proceeds from disposal 221,479 355,264
Less: Carrying amount of assets sold 1,024,937 260,480
Gain (Loss) on disposal (803,458) 94,784

Assets surplus to requirements
Proceeds from disposal 9,673 1,356,860
Less: Carrying amount of assets sold 75,630 2,851,542
Gain (Loss) on disposal (65,957) (1,494,682)

NET GAIN (LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OR REVALUATION 
OF ASSETS         (869,415)      (1,399,898)
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LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 5 - CURRENT ASSETS
2014 2013

CASH  &  EQUIVALENT  ASSETS Notes
Cash on Hand and at Bank 452,338 212,630
Deposits at Call 1,715,412 2,442,100

2,167,750 2,654,730

TRADE  &  OTHER  RECEIVABLES
Rates - General & Other 1,111,541 1,301,956
Accrued Revenues 10,110 14,742
Debtors - general 107,263 126,251
Grants Receivable 1,333,512 36,250
GST Recoupment 2,002 51,328
Prepayments 92,519 92,277
Loans to community organisations 6,584 6,116
Sundry 3,532 -
Total 2,667,063 1,628,920

Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debts 278,639 388,707
2,388,424 1,240,213

INVENTORIES
Stores & Materials 127,583 137,839

127,583 137,839
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LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 6 - NON-CURRENT  ASSETS
2014 2013

FINANCIAL  ASSETS Notes
Receivables
Loans to community organisations 219,416 226,000
TOTAL  FINANCIAL  ASSETS 219,416 226,000

EQUITY  ACCOUNTED  INVESTMENTS  IN  
COUNCIL  BUSINESSES
Gawler River Floodplan Management Authority 19 1,658,655 1,443,693

1,658,655 1,443,693

OTHER  NON-CURRENT  ASSETS
Capital Works-in-Progress 1,190,382 1,092,283

1,190,382 1,092,283
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LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Land 2 19,983,297          276,577        -                           20,259,874 4,369,552            90,977          -                           4,460,529
Land 3 -                           -                    -                           - 15,568,745          221,466        -                           15,790,211
Buildings & Other Structures 2 -                           -                    -                           - 9,934,403            5,174,370     (6,420,970)           8,687,803
Buildings & Other Structures 3 29,043,706          6,291,104     (18,478,039)         16,856,771 19,092,185          1,483,663     (12,795,329)         7,780,519
Infrastructure
  -  Roads, bridges, footpaths 3 153,955,301        4,532,048     (49,209,253)         109,278,096 170,025,746        4,558,833     (48,162,990)         126,421,589
  -  CWMS 3 19,635,118          535,540        (4,907,036)           15,263,622 19,967,133          163,156        (5,259,598)           14,870,691
  -  Traffic Control 3 1,020,764            94,927          (415,630)              700,061 604,386               34,776          (202,272)              436,890
Plant & Equipment 3 2,221,151            1,655,603     (1,377,897)           2,498,857 1,662,666            2,057,680     (1,372,232)           2,348,114
Furniture & Fittings 3 777,620               345,736        (506,264)              617,092 774,620               403,582        (627,749)              550,453
TOTAL  INFRASTRUCTURE, 
PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT          226,636,957     13,731,535          (74,894,119)      165,474,373          241,999,436     14,188,503          (74,841,140)                   181,346,799 

Comparatives         253,447,754    12,849,704         (80,575,187)      185,722,271         226,636,957    13,731,535         (74,894,119)                  165,474,373 
This Note continues on the following pages.

Fair Value 
Level AT  COST ACCUM  DEP'N CARRYING  AMOUNTAT  FAIR  VALUEAT  COST ACCUM  DEP'N CARRYING  

AMOUNTAT  FAIR  VALUE

Note 7 - INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

20142013

Page 21



LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

2013 2014

New/Upgrade Renewals

Land 20,259,874           35,866          -                    (45,000)         -                    -                  -                 -                         20,250,740
Buildings & Other Structures 16,856,771           327,014        39,915          (3,793)           (751,585)       -                  -                 -                         16,468,322
Infrastructure
  -  Roads, bridges, footpaths 109,278,096         2,354,309     2,204,524     (813,788)       (3,583,531)    -                  (18,215)      17,000,194         126,421,589
  -  CWMS 15,263,622           87,223          75,934          (28,052)         (347,049)       -                  18,215       (199,202)            14,870,691
  -  Traffic Control 700,061                19,665          15,111          (4,211)           (26,635)         -                  -                 (267,101)            436,890
Plant & Equipment 2,498,857             54,086          347,991        (204,875)       (351,519)       -                  -                 3,574                  2,348,114
Furniture & Fittings 617,092                57,429          417               (848)              (123,637)       -                  -                 -                         550,453
TOTAL  INFRASTRUCTURE, 
PROPERTY, PLANT & 
EQUIPMENT

         165,474,373      2,935,592      2,683,892     (1,100,567)     (5,183,956)                    -                  -          16,537,465    181,346,799 

Comparatives          185,722,271      4,784,033      2,622,242    (3,112,023)    (6,283,640)                   -                  -        (18,258,510)    165,474,373 
This Note continues on the following pages.

CARRYING  
AMOUNT

CARRYING AMOUNT MOVEMENTS DURING YEAR

CARRYING  
AMOUNT

Additions
Disposals Depreciation Impairment Transfers Net Revaluation

Note 7 - INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
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Valuation of Assets

Plant, Furniture & Equipment

Land

Buildings & Other Structures

Freehold land and land over which Council has control, but does not have title, is recognised on the cost
basis.  No capitalisation threshold is applied to the acquisition of land or interests in land.

At 1 July 2004 upon the transition to AIFRS, Council elected pursuant to AASB 1.19 to retain a previously
established cost under GAAP as its deemed cost. With subsequent additions at cost, this remains as the
basis of recognition of non-material asset classes
Assets being identified that have not been previously recognised are brought to account as at 1 July 2011
through the Asset Revaluation Reserve.

Plant, furniture & equipment assets were valued at market value by Maloney Field Services, 5 Wakefield
Street, Kent Town SA 5067, during the period 30 June 2011. All acquisitions made after the respective date
of valuation are recorded at cost.  

Council being of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value sufficiently reliably to qualify for
recognition, land under roads has not been recognised in these reports. Land acquired for road purposes
during the year is initially recognised at cost, but transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing
off the expenditure.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires disclosure of the valuation principles adopted for all valuations
made on or after 1 July 2013 according to the relevant level in the fair value hierarchy. AASB 13 establishes
a 3-step “fair value hierarchy”. The hierarchy is expressed in terms of “inputs” to the valuation.The fair value
hierarchy levels are outlined below:

Level 1: Measurements are based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

General Valuation Principles

Note 7 - INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (cont)

For the year ending the 30 June 2014
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

Land improvements, including bulk earthworks with an assessed unlimited useful life, are recognised on the 
cost basis.  Additions are recognised at cost.
All land and land improvements were valued by Asset Valuation & Consulting Pty Ltd, 32 Fourth Avenue, St
Peters SA 5069 at market value during the period 30 June 2010. All acquisitions made after the respective
date of valuation are recorded at cost or fair value on acquisition. A sample revaluation of land assets were
undrtaken by council valuer Mr. Chris Chaney of Asset Valuation & Consulting Pty Ltd and concluded that
market value or replacement cost of council Land assets have not changed significantly as at 30 June
2014. The next revaluation of the Council land assets will be carried out in 2014-2015 Financial Year.

Pursuant to Council's election, buildings and other structures are recognised on the cost basis. All building
and other structures were valued by Asset Valuation & Consulting Pty Ltd, 32 Fourth Avenue, St Peters SA
5069 at current replacement cost during the period 30 June 2010. All acquisitions made after the
respective date of valuation are recorded at cost or fair value on acquisition. A sample revaluation of
buildings assets were undrtaken by council valuer Mr. Chris Chaney of Asset Valuation & Consulting Pty
Ltd and concluded that market value or replacement cost of council Building and Other Structures have not
changed significantly as at 30 June 2014. The next revaluation of the Council buildings & other structures
assets will be carried out in 2014-2015 Financial Year. 

Level 3: Measurements are based on unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Level 2: Measurements are based on inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
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Infrastructure

Bridge assets were condition assessed and subsequent useful lives, residual values and remaining useful
lives were all restated by a combination of Council officers and bridge engineers from Aurecon Pty Ltd
during the period ended 30 June 2013. All revised estimates and assumptions were externally validated by
Tonkin Consulting during the reporting period ended 30 June 2013. A desktop revaluation on replacement
cost unit rates was applied to all bridge assets as at 1 July 2013 and verified to be accurate by Tonkin
Consulting. All acquisitions made after the respective dates of valuation are recorded at cost.

Community wastewater management system (CWMS) assets were condition assessed and subsequent
useful lives, residual values and remaining useful lives were all restated by Council officers. All revised
estimates and assumptions were externally validated by Tonkin Consulting during the reporting period
ended 30 June 2009. A desktop revaluation on replacement cost unit rates was applied to all CWMS
assets as at 1 July 2013 and verified to be accurate by Tonkin Consulting. All acquisitions made after the
respective dates of valuation are recorded at cost.

Traffic Control Signage assets were condition assessed and an average useful life by sign group (type)
were all restated by Council officers. All revised estimates and assumptions were externally validated by
Tonkin Consulting during the reporting period ended 30 June 2010. A desktop revaluation on replacement
cost unit rates was applied to all Traffic Control Signage assets as at 1 July 2013 and verified to be
accurate by Tonkin Consulting. All acquisitions made after the respective dates of valuation are recorded
at cost.

Transportation assets were condition assessed and subsequent useful lives, residual values and remaining
useful lives were all restated by Council officers. All revised estimates and assumptions were externally
validated by Tonkin Consulting during the period ended 30 June 2009. A desktop revaluation on
replacement cost unit rates was applied to all infrastructure assets as at 1 July 2013 and verified to be
accurate by Tonkin Consulting. All acquisitions made after the respective dates of valuation are recorded
at cost.

Note 7 - INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (cont)

For the year ending the 30 June 2014
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL
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LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 8 - LIABILITIES
2014 2013

TRADE  &  OTHER  PAYABLES Notes Current Non-current Current Non-current
Goods & Services 749,664     - 907,629     -
Payments received in advance 792,026     - 400,000     -
Accrued expenses - employee entitlements 87,725       - 81,896       -
Accrued expenses - other 144,508     - 340,548     -
Deposits, Retentions & Bonds 72,994       - 77,194       -
Other 2,367         - -                 -

1,849,284  - 1,807,267  -

BORROWINGS
Cash advance debentures 1,160,000  -                - 5,200,000
Loans 1,403,168  6,544,804 1,154,900  3,136,907

2,563,168  6,544,804 1,154,900  8,336,907

PROVISIONS
Employee entitlements (including oncosts) 1,313,030  329,131 1,473,654  131,971
Future landfill closure costs 58,200       117,400 61,700       175,600

1,371,230  446,531 1,535,354  307,571

Amounts included in provisions that are not 
expected to be settled within 12 months of 
reporting date.

1,059,576 1,468,564

Movements in Provisions - 2014 year only
(current & non-current)

Future 
Reinstate-

ment
Opening Balance 237,300

(Less)    Payments (19,755)

               Unused amounts reversed (41,945)

Add (Less) Remeasurement Adjustments
Closing Balance 175,600

All interest bearing liabilities are secured over the future revenues of the Council. 
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LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 9 - RESERVES

ASSET  REVALUATION  RESERVE 1/7/2013 Net Increments 
(Decrements) Transfers, Impairments 30/6/2014

Notes
Land 18,649,823 -                      - 18,649,823
Buildings & Other Structures 10,251,542 -                      - 10,251,542
Infrastructure 0
  -  Roads, bridges, footpaths 107,036,068 17,000,194 - 124,036,262
  -  CWMS 8,286,414 (199,202 ) - 8,087,212
  -  Traffic Control 448,845 (267,101 ) - 181,744
Plant & Equipment 770,870 3,574 - 774,444
Furniture & Fittings 682 - 682
Joint Ventures - Other 
Comprehensive Income 44,219 220,325 - 264,544

TOTAL 145,488,463 16,757,790 - 162,246,253
Comparatives 163,746,973 (18,258,510 ) - 145,488,463

OTHER  RESERVES 1/7/2013 Transfers to 
Reserve

Transfers from 
Reserve 30/6/2014

Hewett Infrastructure 41,585 5,982 (42,245 ) 5,323
Quarry Rehabilitation 258,808 27 - 258,835
Maintenance of Infrastructure 39,019 11 - 39,030
Kapunda CWMS Infrastructure 227,812 307,371 - 535,183
Freeling CWMS Infrastructure 179,341 170,860 (107,798 ) 242,403
Greenock CWMS Infrastructure 424,884 109,171 - 534,055
Roseworthy CWMS Infrastructure 179,183 5 (19,170 ) 160,019
McKinlay Estate Footpaths 303,296 89,588 (152,203 ) 240,681
McKinlay Estate Infrastructure 2,833 93 - 2,926
McKinley Ridge Infrastructure 76,365 71 (14,547 ) 61,889
Hanson Park Footpaths 29,868 979 - 30,847
Bridges 18,081 593 - 18,674
Companion Animals 236 9 - 245
Streetscaping - Hanson Street Freeling 61 1 - 62
Kingsford Industrial Estate 568,245 18,629 - 586,874
Grant Funding 805,357 7,877 (805,000 ) 8,234
Asset Rationalisation 188,395 35 - 188,430
Greenock Land Division Footpaths 64,559 84 - 64,643
Car Parking Fund Reserve 30,505 1,000 - 31,505
Freeling West Residential DPA 6,277 206 - 6,483
Hewett Community Centre 32,258 1,058 - 33,316
Immunisation Fund 13,264 435 - 13,699
Cities & Towns 52,101 1,186 (43,708 ) 9,578
Hewett Open Space Fund 34,177 1,045 (17,050 ) 18,172
The Aviary (Hewett) Footpath Fund 37,083 1,215 - 38,298
Hewett Social Infrastructure Fund 15,034 493 - 15,527
The Aviary (Hewett) Infrastructure Fund 27,334 896 - 28,230
Gawler Water Reuse Fund 82 4 - 86
Mapping Reserve 13,877 146 - 14,023
TOTAL  OTHER  RESERVES 3,669,920 719,071 (1,201,720 ) 3,187,270

Comparatives 3,251,325 1,838,299 (1,419,704 ) 3,669,920
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LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 9 - RESERVES (continued)

PURPOSES OF RESERVES

The Kapunda CWMS Infrastructure reserve is used for maintenance, capital upgrade and replacement of Kapunda CWMS 
infrastructure.
The Freeling CWMS Infrastructure reserve is used for maintenance, capital upgrade and replacement of Freeling CWMS 
infrastructure.
The Greenock CWMS Infrastructure reserve is used for maintenance, capital upgrade and replacement of Greenock CWMS 
infrastructure.
The Roseworthy CWMS Infrastructure reserve is used for maintenance, capital upgrade and replacement of Roseworthy CWMS 
infrastructure.

(Other Reserves)

The Hewett Infrastructure reserve is used for maintenance, capital upgrade and replacement of infrastructure in the Hewett area.
The Quarry Rehabilitation reserve is used for the expenditure involved in rehabilitating quarries used by Light Regional Council.

The Maintenance of Infrastructure reserve is used for maintenance, capital upgrade and replacement works on roads, traffic control
and stormwater in the Light Regional Council area.

Asset Revaluation Reserve
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements arising from changes in fair value of non-current assets
(less any subsequent impairment losses, where applicable).  

The McKinlay Estate Footpaths reserve is used for maintenance, capital upgrade and replacement of footpaths at McKinlay Estate.

The McKinlay Estate Infrastructure reserve is used for maintenance, capital upgrade and replacement of infrastructure at McKinlay 
Estate.
The McKinlay Ridge Infrastructure reserve is used for maintenance, capital upgrade and replacement of infrastructure at McKinlay
Ridge.
The Hanson Park Footpaths reserve is used for maintenance, capital upgrade and replacement of footpaths in Hanson Street.

The Bridges reserve is used for maintenance, capital upgrade and replacement of bridges in the Light Regional Council area.

The Companion Animals reserve is used for expenditure in relation to dog control and management.

The Streetscaping - Hanson Street Freeling reserve is used to hold grant funds received from the State Government to undertake 
streetscaping works on Hanson Street in Freeling.
The Kingsford Industrial Estate reserve is used to hold funds received for the upgrade of roadworks in the Kingsford Industrial
Estate.
The Grant Funding reserve is used to hold Grant funds received but not spent.

The Asset Rationalisation reserve is used to collect proceeds of sale of assets no longer required by Council, for the purpose of 
funding future community projects.
The Greenock Land Division Footpath reserve is used to hold funds received from the developer for the future footpath 
development in the Land Division.
The Car Parking Fund reserve is used to hold funds received from applicants for the future development of car parks in the Light
Regional Council area.
The Freeling West Residential DPA reserve is used to hold funds received from the developer for the preparation of a Development
Plan Amendment (DPA) in relation to this project.
The Hewett Community Centre reserve is used to hold funds received from The Hewett Church for the purpose of buildings works 
and fit out of the Centre.
The Immunisation reserve is used to hold funds received from the Department of Health for future School Immunisation programs.

The Cities & Towns reserve is used to hold funds received from the Federal Government to undertake supplementary water supply 
schemes for the towns of Freeling and Kapunda.
The Hewett Open Space Fund for the purpose of acquiring or developing land as open space at Hewett.

The Aviary (Hewett) Footpath Fund is used for maintenance, capital upgrade and replacement of footpaths in The Aviary at Hewett.

The Mapping Reserve is used for managing funds required to refresh aerial imagery, both town and district, on a two year / four
year rotation.

The Gawler Water Reuse reserve is used to hold funds from the Federal Government for the stormwater harvesting and reuse 
project.

The Aviary (Hewett) Infrastructure Fund  is used for maintenance, capital upgrade and replacement of infrastructure in The Aviary at 
Hewett.

The Hewett Social Infrastructure Fund  is used for maintenance, capital upgrade and replacement of infrastructure at Hewett.

Page 27



LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

2014 2013
CASH  &  FINANCIAL  ASSETS Notes
  Unexpended amounts received from Federal Government 400,000 400,000
  Developer Contribution 501,214 570,681
  CWMS Schemes 1,471,661 1,011,220

2,372,875 1,981,901

INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Museum Storage Sheds 74,200 79,197
Soldiers Memorial Hall - Kapunda 1,522,004 1,568,094
Historical Museum - Kapunda 1,201,154 1,235,114
Mine Chimney Site - Kapunda 61,476 47,669
Cemetery Reserve - Kapunda 83,917 85,996
Dutton Park - Kapunda 3,004,045 3,108,770
Swimming Centre - Kapunda 274,506 280,836
Herald Building - Kapunda 84,809 91,437
Thompson Building - Kapunda 333,156 369,067
Senior Citizens Clubrooms - Kapunda 189,710 86,124
Institute - Freeling 679,209 703,439
Recreation Parklands - Freeling 773,131 826,091
Cemetery Reserve - Freeling 41,539 42,186
Cemetery Reserve - Greenock 180,225 180,500
Institute - Greenock 331,630 342,988
Recreation Parklands - Greenock 553,203 575,292
Adelaide Soaring Club - Buchfelde 1,106,830 1,106,867
Recreation Parklands - Roseworthy 626,445 638,274
Institute - Wasleys 564,163 583,599
Recreation Parklands - Wasleys 356,082 365,720
Hewett Centre - Hewett 4,836,168 4,942,418

16,877,602 17,259,678

TOTAL ASSETS SUBJECT TO EXTERNALLY 
IMPOSED RESTRICTIONS

19,250,477 19,241,579

The following liabilities, included in Note 8, may be discharged from restricted assets in the first instance.

Payables 8 792,026 400,000
792,026 400,000

Note 10 -  ASSETS  SUBJECT  TO  RESTRICTIONS
The uses of the following assets are restricted, wholly or partially, by legislation or other externally imposed 
requirements.  The assets are required to be utilised for the purposes for which control was transferred to Council, or 
for which the revenues were originally obtained. 
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Note 11 - RECONCILIATION TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a)      Reconciliation of Cash

2014 2013
Notes

Total cash & equivalent assets 5 2,167,750 2,654,730
Less: Short-term borrowings 8 (1,160,000) -
Balances per Cash Flow Statement 1,007,750 2,654,730

(b)  Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash 
            from Operating Activities
Net Surplus (Deficit) 425,598 (2,153,098)
Non-cash items in Income Statement
         Depreciation, amortisation & impairment 5,183,956 6,283,640
         Fair value adjustments -
         Equity movements in equity accounted investments
                           (increase) decrease 18,836 2,301

         Net increase (decrease) in unpaid employee benefits 42,365 102,618
         Premiums & discounts recognised & unwound -

Change in allowances for under-recovery (0) 20,537
         Non-cash asset acquisitions (652,119) (1,597,574)
         Grants for capital acquisitions treated as Investing Activity (1,767,256) (147,093)
         Net (Gain) Loss on Disposals 869,415 1,399,898

4,120,795 3,911,229
Add (Less): Changes in Net Current Assets
         Net (increase) decrease in receivables (1,147,743) 230,488
         Net (increase) decrease in inventories 10,256 (114,211)
         Net increase (decrease) in trade & other payables 36,188 361,354
         Net increase (decrease) in other provisions (61,700) -
Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations 2,957,796 4,388,860

(c)      Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities

Acquisition of assets by means of:
   - Physical resources received free of charge 3 652,119 1,597,574

Amounts recognised in Income Statement 652,119 1,597,574
   - Estimated future reinstatement etc. costs (61,700) (14,400)

590,419 1,583,174

(d)      Financing Arrangements

Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following lines of credit:
Bank Overdrafts 20,000 20,000
Corporate Credit Cards 15,000 15,000
LGFA Cash Advance Debenture facility 1,160,000 500,000
Convertible Cash Advance Debenture Facility - Drawn - 5,200,000
Convertible Cash Advance Debenture Facility - Undrawn 5,500,000 3,550,000

Cash Assets comprise highly liquid investments with short periods to maturity subject to 
insignificant risk of changes of value.   Cash at the end of the reporting period as shown in the 
Cash Flow Statement is reconciled to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows: 

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without 
notice.   
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INCOMES, EXPENSES AND ASSETS HAVE BEEN DIRECTLY ATTRIBUTED TO THE FOLLOWING FUNCTIONS & ACTIVITIES

ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Business Undertakings                113,181                282,457       1,326,034       1,070,750     (1,212,853)        (788,293)               -                   -       19,093,849       17,394,490 
Community Services                146,729                129,491          621,994          667,054        (475,265)        (537,563)      22,878          17,806         1,913,795         1,743,467 
Culture                108,660                179,461          865,405       1,298,885        (756,745)     (1,119,424)      94,675        106,555       11,472,422       10,451,372 
Economic Development                  48,544                    3,182          373,661          154,570        (325,117)        (151,388)               -            5,000            402,605            366,773 
Environment                    1,855                169,320       1,064,890       1,691,748     (1,063,035)     (1,522,428)               -                   -         5,917,877         5,391,184 
Recreation                  12,517                  31,900       1,319,042       1,173,987     (1,306,525)     (1,142,087)        3,000          13,330       16,123,617       14,688,609 
Regulatory Services                426,795                405,291       1,549,356       1,427,766     (1,122,561)     (1,022,475)               -                   -              91,955              83,771 
Transport & Communication                628,649             1,533,790       5,078,947       6,786,083     (4,450,298)     (5,252,293)    615,830     1,388,958      126,118,617      114,894,016 
Unclassified Activities                  94,750                271,847          537,249                      -        (442,499)         271,847               -                   -                        -                        - 
Council Administration           15,405,095           14,317,201       5,374,560       5,550,964    10,030,535      8,766,237    256,367        391,847         7,964,272         7,255,449 
TOTALS 16,986,775 17,323,940 18,111,137 19,821,807 (1,124,361) (2,497,867) 992,750 1,923,496 189,099,009 172,269,131

TOTAL ASSETS HELD 
(CURRENT & 

NON-CURRENT)

Note 12 - FUNCTIONS

INCOME EXPENSES OPERATING SURPLUS 
(DEFICIT) GRANTS  INCLUDED 

IN INCOME

Revenues and expenses exclude net gain (loss) on disposal or revaluation of assets, net gain (loss) from joint ventures & ass ociated entities, amounts received specifically for new or upgraded assets and physical 
resources received free of charge. 
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Note 12 - FUNCTIONS (cont)

COMPONENTS OF FUNCTIONS

The activities relating to Council functions are as follows:

Business Undertakings
Caravan Parks, Development of Land for Resale, Private Works, Property Portfolio and CWMS. 

Community Services
Public Order and Safety, Crime Prevention, Emergency Services, Other Fire Protection, Other Public Order and
Safety, Health Services, Pest Control – Health, Immunisation, Preventive Health Services, Other Health Services,
Community Support, Home Assistanc

Culture
Library Services, Static Libraries, Other Library Services, Visitor Information Centre, Cultural Services, Cultural
Venues, Regional Development, Support to Local Businesses, Tourism, Heritage, Museums and Art Galleries
and Other Cultural Services.

Environment
Animal/Plant Boards, Landcare, Other Agricultural Services, Waste Management, Domestic Waste, Green
Waste, Recycling, Recycling Disposal Facility, Other Waste Management, Stormwater and Drainage, Street
Cleaning, Street Lighting, Streetscaping, Natural Re

Recreation
Parks and Gardens, Sports Facilities – Indoor, Sports Facilities – Outdoor, Swimming Centres – Outdoor and
Other Recreation.

Regulatory Services
Dog and Cat Control, Building Control, Town Planning, Clean Air/Pollution Control, Litter Control, Health
Inspection, Parking Control and Other Regulatory Services.

Transport
Aerodrome, Bridges, Footpaths and Kerbing, Roads - sealed, Roads - formed, Roads - unformed, Traffic
Management, LGGC – roads (formula funded) and Other Transport.

Plant Hire & Depot 

Unclassified Activities 
LGGC - General Purpose.

Council Administration
Governance, Administration n.e.c., Elected Members, Organisational, Support Services, Accounting/Finance,
Payroll, Human Resources, Information Technology, Communication, Rates Administration, Records, Contract
Management, Customer Service, Other Support 
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Accounting Policies - Recognised Financial Instruments

Note 13 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Terms & conditions: Deposits are returning fixed interest rates between 2.5% and
2.75% (2013: 0.25% and 2.75%). Short term deposits have an average maturity of 7 days
and an average interest rates of 2.5% (2013: 7 days, 3.1%).

Accounting Policy: Carried at lower of cost and net realisable value; Interest is
recognised when earned.

Bank, Deposits at Call, Short Term
Deposits

Carrying amount: approximates fair value due to the short term to maturity.

All financial instruments are categorised as loans and receivables.

Receivables - Rates & Associated
Charges (including legal & penalties
for late payment)
Note: These receivables do not meet
the definition of "financial instruments"
and have been excluded from the
following disclosures.

Receivables - Fees & other charges

Accounting Policy: Carried at nominal values less any allowance for doubtful debts. An
allowance for doubtful debts is recognised (and re-assessed annually) when collection in
full is no longer probable.

Terms & conditions: Secured over the subject land, arrears attract interest of 0.67%
(2013: 0.77%) Although Council is not materially exposed to any individual debtor, credit
risk exposure is concentrated within the Council's boundaries in the State.

Accounting Policy: Carried at nominal values less any allowance for doubtful debts. An
allowance for doubtful debts is recognised (and re-assessed annually) when collection in
full is no longer probable.

Carrying amount: approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).

Terms & conditions: Unsecured, and do not bear interest. Although Council is not
materially exposed to any individual debtor, credit risk exposure is concentrated within the
Council's boundaries.

Carrying amount: approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).

Carrying amount: approximates fair value.
Terms & conditions: Liabilities are normally settled on 30 day terms.

Accounting Policy: Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for
goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Council.

Liabilities - Creditors and Accruals

Accounting Policy: Carried at the principal amounts. Interest is charged as an expense
as it accrues.
Terms & conditions: secured over future revenues, fixed borrowings are repayable by 6
monthly instalments of principle and interest. Interest is charged at fixed rates between
5.70% and 7.75% (2013: 5.67% and 7.75%) and at variable rate of 4.75% (2013: 5%) as
at 30 June.

Carrying amount: approximates fair value.

Liabilities - Interest Bearing
Borrowings
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Note 13 (cont) - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Liquidity Analysis

Due < 1 year Due > 1 year; 
< 5 years Due > 5 years

Total 
Contractual 
Cash Flows

Carrying 
Values

Financial Assets
Cash & Equivalents 2,167,750       -                     -                     2,167,750       2,167,750
Receivables 120,905          -                     -                     120,905          1,451,325
Other Financial Assets 8,978              35,911            194,889          239,779          226,000

Total 2,297,633       35,911            194,889          2,528,434       3,845,075
Financial Liabilities

Payables 1,617,051       -                     -                     1,617,051       1,617,051
Current Borrowings 3,043,834       -                     -                     3,043,834       2,563,168

Non-Current Borrowings -                     5,038,134       2,982,915       8,021,049       6,544,804
Total 4,660,885       5,038,134       2,982,915       12,681,934     10,725,023

Due < 1 year Due > 1 year; 
< 5 years Due > 5 years

Total 
Contractual 
Cash Flows

Carrying 
Values

Financial Assets

Cash & Equivalents 2,654,730 -                     - 2,654,730          2,654,730
Receivables 140,993 -                         -                         140,993             177,243
Other Financial Assets 9,942                 35,911               202,928             248,781             232,116

Total 2,805,665          35,911               202,928             3,044,504          3,064,089
Financial Liabilities

Payables 1,384,823          -                         -                         1,384,823          1,384,823
Current Borrowings 1,444,944          -                         -                         1,444,944          1,154,900
Non-Current Borrowings -                         8,807,617          -                         8,807,617          8,336,907

Total 2,829,767          8,807,617          -                         11,637,384        10,876,630

The following interest rates were applicable to Council's borrowings at balance date:

 Weighted 
Average Interest 

Rate
 Carrying Value 

 Weighted 
Average Interest 

Rate
 Carrying Value 

% %
Other Variable Rates 5.00 1,160,000 5.40 5,200,000
Fixed Interest Rates 6.72 7,947,972 7.02 4,291,807

9,107,972 9,491,807

Net Fair Value

30 June 2014 30 June 2013

2013

2014

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

LIGHT REGIONAL COUNCIL

All carrying values approximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments.  There is no recognised market 
for the financial assets of the Council.  

Risk Exposures 
Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties fail to perform as contracted.  The
maximum credit risk on financial assets of the Council is the carrying amount, net of any allowance for doubtful
debts.  Council investments are made with the SA Local Government Finance Authority which are guaranteed by
the SA Government and BankSA.  Except as detailed in Notes 5 & 6 in relation to individual classes of receivables,
exposure is concentrated within the Council's boundaries, and there is no material exposure to any individual
debtor.

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.  All of
Council's financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any market, and hence
neither market risk nor currency risk apply. 

Liquidity Risk is the risk that Council will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations with financial liabilities.  In
accordance with the model Treasury Management Policy (LGA Information Paper 15), liabilities have a range of
maturity dates.  Council also has available a range of bank overdraft and standby borrowing facilities that it can
access.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
Council has a balance of both fixed and variable interest rate borrowings and investments.  Cash flow fluctuations
are managed holistically in seeking to minimise interest costs over the longer term in a risk averse manner. 
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2014 2013
Notes

Capital Commitments

Land
Buildings 41,598 30,870
Infrastructure 586,144 1,194,080
Plant & Equipment 40,036 105,041
Information Technology 47,912 107,525

715,690 1,437,516
These expenditures are payable:
Not later than one year 715,690 1,437,516

715,690 1,437,516

Other Expenditure Commitments
Other non-capital expenditure commitments in relation to investment properties:

Kapunda Rail Trail Feasibility Study 5,000 -

Note 14 - COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial 
statements as liabilities: 
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Note 15 - FINANCIAL  INDICATORS

2014 2013 2012

Operating Surplus Ratio
Operating Surplus (8%) (18%) (22%)
Rates - general & other less NRM levy

Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio (5%) (18%) (23%)

Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Net Financial Liabilities 48% 53% 55%
Total Operating Revenue less NRM levy

Asset Sustainability Ratio
Net Asset Renewals 47% 33% 30%
Infrastructure & Asset Management Plan required 
expenditure * *

Amounts shown above an asterisk (*) indicate that depreciation expense has been used as a proxy, 
pending finalisation of the Infrastructure & Asset Management Plan.

Net Financial Liabilities are defined as total liabilities less financial assets (excluding equity accounted 
investments in Council businesses). These are expressed as a percentage of total operating revenue 
(excluding NRM levy). 

Net asset renewals expenditure is defined as net capital expenditure on the renewal and replacement of 
existing assets, and excludes new capital expenditure on the acquisition of additional assets. 

This ratio expresses the operating surplus as a percentage of general and other rates, net of NRM levy. 

These Financial Indicators have been calculated in accordance with Information Paper 9 - Local 
Government Financial Indicators prepared as part of the LGA Financial Sustainability Program for 
the Local Government Association of South Australia.  Detailed methods of calculation are set out 
in the SA Model Statements. 

In recent years the Federal Government has made advance payments prior to 30th June from future year allocations of 
financial assistance grants, as explained in Note 1.  The Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio adjusts for the resulting 
distortion in the disclosed operating result for each year. 
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Income 16,986,775 17,323,940
less  Expenses 18,111,137 19,821,807
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) (1,124,362) (2,497,867)

less Net Outlays on Existing Assets
Capital Expenditure on renewal and replacement of 
Existing Assets 2,160,633 2,435,931

Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment (5,183,956) (6,283,640)
Proceeds from Sale of Replaced Assets (244,594) (355,264)

(3,267,917) (4,202,973)

less Net Outlays on New and Upgraded Assets

Capital Expenditure on New and Upgraded Assets
(including investment property & real estate developments)

2,964,089 3,186,459

Amounts received specifically for New and 
Upgraded Assets (1,815,902) (147,093)

Proceeds from Sale of Surplus Assets
(including investment property and real estate developments)

(10,641) (1,356,860)

1,137,546 1,682,506

Net Lending / (Borrowing) for Financial Year 1,006,009 22,600

Note 16  - UNIFORM  PRESENTATION  OF  FINANCES

2014 2013

The following is a high level summary of both operating and capital investment activities of the Council prepared on 
a simplified Uniform Presentation Framework basis.       

All Councils in South Australia have agreed to summarise annual budgets and long-term financial plans on the same
basis.  

The arrangements ensure that all Councils provide a common 'core' of financial information, which enables
meaningful comparisons of each Council's finances   
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Leases providing revenue to the Council

2014 2013

Not later than one year 72,841 70,834
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 105,057 135,102
Later than 5 years 202,227 200,039

380,125 405,975

Lease payment commitments of Council

2014 2013

Not later than one year 153,312 173,870
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 147,307 271,325
Later than 5 years 12,025 -

312,644 445,195

Note 17  -  OPERATING  LEASES

Council owns various buildings, plant and other facilities that are available for hire or 
lease (on a non-cancellable basis whereever practicable) in accordance with the 
published revenue policy.  Rentals received from such leases are disclosed as rent and 
hire of non-investment property in Note 2.   

Lessees commitments under all non-cancellable lease agreements, including those 
relating to Investment Property, are as follows: 

Council has entered into non-cancellable operating leases for various items of computer 
and other plant and equipment.   
No lease imposes any additional restrictions on Council in relation to additional debt or 
further leasing. 
Leases in relation to computer and office equipment permit Council, at expiry of the 
lease, to elect to re-lease, return or acquire the equipment leased. 
No lease contains any escalation clause. 
Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases that have not been recognised in 
the financial statements are as follows: 
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Note 18 - SUPERANNUATION

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to Statewide
Super (formerly Local Government Superannuation Scheme). There are two types of membership,
each of which is funded differently. Permanent and contract employees of the South Australian Local
Government sector with Salarylink benefits prior to 24 November 2009 have the option to contribute to
Marketlink and/or Salarylink. All other employees (including casuals) have all contributions allocated to
Marketlink.

Marketlink (Accumulation Fund) Members 
Marketlink receives both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer
contributions are based on a fixed percentage of employee earnings in accordance with superannuation
guarantee legislation (9.50% in 2013/14; 9.25% in 2012/13). No further liability accrues to the Council
as the superannuation benefits accruing to employees are represented by their share of the net assets
of the Fund.

Salarylink (Defined Benefit Fund) Members
Salarylink is a defined benefit scheme where the benefit payable is based on a formula determined by
the member’s contribution rate, number of years and level of contribution and final average salary.
Council makes employer contributions to Salarylink as determined by the Trustee based on advice from
the appointed Actuary. The rate is currently 6.3% (6.3% in 2012/13) of “superannuation” salary.

In addition, Council makes a separate contribution of 3% of salary for Salarylink members to their
Marketlink account. Employees also make member contributions to the Fund. As such, assets
accumulate in the Fund to meet the member's benefits, as defined in the Trust Deed, as they accrue.

The Salarylink section is a multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Fund's assets and liabilities are
pooled and are not allocated by each employer, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities,
assets and costs between employers. As provided by AASB 119.32(b), Council does not use defined
benefit accounting for these contributions.

As required by law, an actuarial valuation is conducted for the Local Super Scheme every three years.
The most recent review was conducted for the three years ending 30 June 2011. As a result of the
review the actuary determined that the assets of the Scheme are adequate to meet the value of the
liabilities of the Scheme in respect of Accrued Benefits, and would remain adequate throughout the
three years to 2014. The results of the actuarial review as at 30 June 2014 are not expected to be
available until 31 December 2014. 

Contributions to Other Superannuation Schemes
Council also makes contributions to other superannuation schemes selected by employees under the
“choice of fund” legislation. All such schemes are of the accumulation type, where the superannuation
benefits accruing to the employee are represented by their share of the net assets of the scheme, and
no further liability attaches to the Council.
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2014 2013
Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 
Council's respective interests are:
    - interest in the operating result 9% 9%
    - ownership share of equity 9% 9%
    - the proportion of voting power 17% 17%

Movements in Investment in Joint Operation $'000 $'000
     Opening Balance 1,443,693 1,445,994
     Share in Operating Result (18,836) (16,074)
     Share in other comprehensive income 220,325 -
     Adjustment to Equity Share 13,473 13,773
     Share in Equity of Joint Operation 1,658,655 1,443,693

Expenditure Commitments

Operating Expenditures payable
Not later than one year - -

- -
Contingent Liabilities

Note 19 - EQUITY  ACCOUNTED  COUNCIL  BUSINESSES

Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority (GRFMA) 

The GRFMA was formed as a Regional Subsidiary under Section 43 and Schedule 2 of the Local 
Government Act 1999, by a Charter published in the South Australian Government Gazette on 22 August 
2002.  The Constituent Councils are:  The Adelaide Hills Council, The Barossa Council, The Town of Gawler, 
Light Regional Council, District Council of Mallala and The City of Playford.  

The GRFMA has been established for the following purposes: 
1.  To coordinate the construction, operation and maintenance of flood mitigation infrastructure in the Gawler 
River Area (the Floodplan); 

2.  To raise finance for the purpose of developing, managing, operating and maintaining flood mitigation 
works within the Floodplan; 

3.  To provide a forum for the discussion and consideration of topics relating to the Constituent Council's 
obligations and responsibilities in relation to management of flood mitigation within the Floodplain; 

4.  To enter into agreements with Constituent Councils for the purpose of managing and developing the 
Floodplain. 

Expenditure committed for (excluding inventories) at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial statements as 
liabilities: 

All equity accounted Council businesses are required to prepare Annual Financial Statements that comply 
with the SA Local Government Model Financial Statements. 

In the event of there being an insolvency of the Authority at the time of dissolution, the then Constituent 
Councils will be responsible jointly and severally to pay the liabilities of the Authority, and between 
themselves in the proportion of their interest in the net assets last determined under Clause 15 of the GRFMA 
Charter published in the South Australian Government Gazette, 17 August, 2006 . 
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Note 20 - CONTINGENCIES & ASSETS & LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

CONTINGENT ASSETS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES ARISING FROM PUBLIC LIABILITY

B) CONTINGENT LIABILITY ARISING FROM PROFESSIONAL INDEMNITY

C) OTHER CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

D) BANK GUARANTEES 

IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Balance Sheet but knowledge of those 
items is considered relevant to user of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions about the allocation 
of scarce resources. 

Council has not guaranteed loans and other banking facilities advanced to community organisations and sporting 
bodies at reporting date. 

A) LAND UNDER ROADS 

As reported elsewhere in these Statements, Council is of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value 
sufficiently reliably for these assets to qualify for recognition, and accordingly land under roads has not been 
recognised in these reports.  Land acquired for road purposes during the year is initially recognised at cost, but 
transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing off the expenditure. 

At reporting date, Council controlled 1,458 km of road reserves 

As a local authority with ownership of numerous parks, reserves, roads and other land holdings, the Council is 
regularly met with claims and demands allegedly arising from incidents which occur on land belonging to the 
Council. There are no tstanding claims against the Council in this regard. The Council carries $400 million of 
public liability insurance and the maximum liability of the Council in any single claim is the extent of its excess. 
The primary insurer is Local Government Association Mutual Liability Scheme. There are no claims, which 
Council is aware of which would fall outside the terms of the Council’s policy. 

As a local authority with statutory regulatory responsibilities, including the responsibility of issuing permits and 
approvals, the Council is met with claims and demands for damages allegedly arising from the actions of Council 
or its officers. The Council carries unlimited professional indemnity insurance and the maximum liability of the 
Council in any single claim is the extent of its excess ($3,750). The insurer is The Local Government Association 
Mutual Liability Scheme. There are no instances or claims, which Council is aware of which would fall outside the 
terms of the Council’s policy. 

Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make 
additional contributions  to the scheme to ensure that the liabilities of the fund are covered by the assets of the 
fund. As a result of the increased volatility in financial markets the likelihood of making such contributions in 
future periods has increased. At this point in time it is not known if additional contributions will be required, their 
timing or potential amount 
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Chairman’s Forward 
 
A contract has been let to Australian Water Environments to revisit the hydrology of the 
North para River to determine whether there is a further site which would hold sufficient 
water at a cost effective price to reduce flooding in the Gawler River. Using updated 
technology, it is expected a final report will be received before the end of the year. A positive 
result could reduce the cost of final remedial work in the Gawler River. 
 
I congratulate the Members of the Board for their input to the Authority throughout the year 
and particularly Members who have announced that they will not be contesting Council 
elections in November and thus will not be eligible to continue. 
 
To Executive Officer, Dean Gollan, thanks are due for his counsel and input as is also due to 
appointees to the Technical Assessment Panel and Audit Committee. 
 
We have been fortunate to not have had any serious flooding issues in recent years. 
 
Dr Bruce Eastick AM 
Chairman 
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GRFMA 
The Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority (GRFMA) was formed as a Regional 
Subsidiary under Section 43 and Schedule 2 of the Local Government Act 1999 on 22 
August 2002. The Constituent Councils are the Adelaide Hills Council, The Barossa Council, 
The Town of Gawler, Light Regional Council, District Council of Mallala and the City of 
Playford. 
The Charter provides that a representative of the Adelaide Mount Lofty Ranges Natural 
Resources Management Board (AMLRNRMB) is the Chairperson of the Board of 
Management of the GRFMA. The Charter sets down the powers, functions, safeguards, 
accountabilities and an operational framework and the Business Plan sets down the 
operational plan and financial plan to achieve agreed objectives. 
The GRFMA has been established for the following purposes: 

1. To co-ordinate the construction, operation and maintenance of flood mitigation 
infrastructure in the Gawler River area (the Floodplain); 

2. To raise finance for the purpose of developing, managing and operating and 
maintaining flood mitigation works within the Floodplain; 

3. To provide a forum for the discussion and consideration of topics relating to the 
Constituent Council’s obligations and responsibilities in relation to management of 
flood mitigation within the Floodplain; 

4. To enter into agreements with Constituent Councils for the purpose of managing and 
developing the Floodplain. 

 
 
The Board 
The Members of the Board are: 
 
Authority Board Members Deputy Board Members 
AMLRNRMB Dr Bruce Eastick AM, Chairman  
Adelaide Hills Council Mayor Bill Spragg 

Mr Andrew Aitken, CEO 
Mr Marc Salver 

The Barossa Council Mayor Brian Hurn OAM 
Mr Ian Baldwin 

Cr Dave de Vries 

 
Town of Gawler Cr Brian Thom 

Mr Henry Inat, CEO 
Cr Barry Neylon 

Mr Scott Reid 

Light Regional Council Cr William Close 
Mr Brian Carr, CEO 

Mr Andrew Philpott 
 

District Council of Mallala Cr Ann Picard 

Mr Charles Mansueto, CEO 
Cr Tom Summerton 

 
City of Playford Cr Dino Musolino 

Mr Tim Jackson, CEO 
Mr Harry Pitrans 

Mr Shaun Kennedy 
 

Ordinary meetings of the Board are held bi-monthly on the third Thursday, except 
December, which is held on the second Thursday of the even months commencing at 
9.00am. 
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Meetings are hosted by the Constituent Councils on a rotational roster. Six Board meetings 
were held during the year as follows: 

- Thursday 4 July 2013 Gawler 
- Thursday 15 August 2013 Gawler 
- Wednesday 28 August 2013  Gawler 
- Thursday 17 October 2013 Mallala 
- Thursday 12 December 2013 Elizabeth 
- Thursday 6 March 2014 Gawler 
- Thursday 9 April 2014 Gumeracha 
- Tuesday 29 April Gawler 
- Thursday 19 June Nuriootpa 

 
 
Technical Assessment Panel 
A Technical Assessment Panel has been appointed to support the decision-making 
processes of the Board with delegated powers to provide advice and manage the technical 
aspects of the design, assessment and construction of the various parts of the Scheme. 
The Members of the Panel are: 
 

 Dr Bruce Eastick AM, Chairman 
 Dean Gollan, Executive Officer, GRFMA 
 Bill Lipp, Principal Stormwater Engineer, Department for Transport, Energy and 

Infrastructure 
 Harry Pitrans, Infrastructure Planner, City of Playford 
 Chris Wright, Water Projects Officer, Adelaide Mount Lofty Ranges NRM Board 
 Derek Moore, Principal Engineer Dams, SA Water 

 
The Panel held three meetings during the year: 

- 9 April 2014 
- 17 April 2014 

 
 
Audit Committee 
An Audit Committee has been appointed to review: 

 the annual financial statements to ensure that they present fairly the state of affairs of 
the Board, and  

 the adequacy of the accounting, internal control, reporting and other financial 
management systems and practices of the Board on a regular basis. 

 

The Panel held two meetings during the year: 
- 19 September 2013 
- 13 March 2014  

 
The members of the Committee are: 

 Mr Peter Brass, Independent Member 
 Mr Charles Mansueto, CEO, District Council of Mallala 
 Mr Des Ellis, Councillor, Light Regional Council 



Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority  Annual Report 2013 – 2014 
 

 
Executive Officer Performance Review Committee  
On 15 February, 2013 a review committee was formed to oversight of the Executive Officer 
Services Contract, including the annual contract performance review process. 
The members of the Committee are: 

- Dr Bruce Eastick AM 
- Mr Charles Mansueto, CEO, District Council of Mallala 
- Mr Ian Baldwin, Director, Barossa Council 

 
The Committee held one meeting during the year on 18 November 2013.  
 
Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme 
The ‘Scheme’ is described in the ‘Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme’, published by the 
Northern Adelaide and Barossa Catchment Water Management Board and the Department 
of Water, Land and Biodiversity Conservation, October 2002. Based on the Gawler River 
Flood Management Study - Flood Management Plan prepared for The Gawler River Flood 
Management Working Party, BC Tonkin and Associates, April 1994. 
Following the November 2005 flood, the Australian Government, South Australian 
Government, the six Constituent Councils and the Northern Adelaide Barossa Catchment 
Water Management Board committed to a funding package totalling $20 million to implement 
the Scheme. 
The Scheme comprised three parts as follows: 

 The construction of a flood mitigation dam on the North Para River near Gawler – the 
Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam was completed in December 2007. 

 Modifications to the dam wall and spillway of the South Para Reservoir to provide 
flood mitigation – the modifications reached practical completion in June 2012. 

 Construction of levees including the formalization of a controlled parallel flow path 
together with sensitive vegetation and channel maintenance along the lower reaches 
of the Gawler River - to be later described as Strategy 6d – this part of the Scheme 
was abandoned following the findings of the Gawler River Mapping Study in 2008. 
 

In February 2008, the Gawler River Mapping Study was completed to identify the impact of 
the March 2007 estimates and to identify strategies to mitigate the impact of flooding. 
In June 2009, the Board amended the Business Plan to include the preparation of a Gawler 
River Flood Mitigation Scheme – Mark Two, planned to build on the studies of recent years 
and bring forward strategies that can cost effectively reduce the impact of flooding from the 
Gawler River. The development of the Mark Two Scheme had been delayed by the need to 
provide additional funding to complete the modifications to the South Para Reservoir. 
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Flood Events 
4th and 5th September 2010 
Heavy rains fell across the catchment, up to 70 mm, estimated to be approximately a 1 in 7 
year storm event resulted in strong flows in the North Para River. Water began to rise behind 
the Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam on Saturday and at 10.00am on Sunday, 
reached a maximum height of 70 metres AHD, just below the high-level outlet pipes. Dam 
waters estimated to be 1.2 Gl extended approximately four kilometres upstream, passed 
through the low level outlet pipe at a controlled flow, returning to stream level at midday the 
following day. The real time catchment rainfall, river flow data and height of water in the dam 
were able to be monitored on the Bureau of Meteorology website. 
 
Both the effect of the dam, and filling the South Para Reservoir, mitigated the flow in the 
Gawler River that caused flooding of grazing land just east and west of the new Port 
Wakefield Highway. No property damage was reported. 
 
8th December 2010 
Following intense storms in the early hours where several centres recorded 24 hour falls of 
70 to 80 mm, that gave rise to strong flows in the North Para River that caused the Bruce 
Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam to operate for the second time in four months. 
Water rose to 72.5 m, which caused the two High Level Outlet Pipes to operate for the first 
time. Dam waters estimated to be 1.8 Gl extended over 4 kilometres upstream passed 
through the low level outlet pipe at a controlled flow returning to stream level by late the 
following afternoon. 
 
Had the Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam not been in place it is estimated that 
a breakout just west of Bakers Road to the north would have occurred, flooding a number of 
horticultural properties. 
 
These events confirmed that the dam operated as designed and provided protection by 
mitigating the peak flow to a level that could be passed by the lower Gawler River, without 
overtopping the banks causing flooding as was the case in 2005 and 1992. 
 
Minor Works 
A replacement Turretfield Flow Gauge Weir has been constructed 800 metres downstream 
from the dam on the North Para River. The former flow gauge weir just upstream of the dam 
wall is drowned out in a flood event by the dam waters and has been decommissioned. The 
replacement weir is smaller in design, gauging flows up to approximately 300 cubic metres 
per second. This gauge weir downstream of the junction with Walker Creek provides flow 
data from the western part of the catchment. Data from this flow gauge will be added to the 
online real time data on the Bureau of Meteorology web site. 
 
Two additional survey monuments have been constructed at the dam site, to provide a total 
of four monuments to provide a survey base to monitor the deformation stability of the dam 
wall and spillway. Part of the maintenance program is to periodically survey the structure to 
ensure that there is no movement. In particular this is performed after major flood or seismic 
events. 
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South Para Reservoir Modifications 
To further improve protection of the population at Gawler and the downstream floodplain, 
mitigation works were necessary at South Para Dam. 
 
SA Water was approached by the GRFMA in September 2001, to discuss the 
implementation of flood mitigation works at the South Para Dam as part of their overall flood 
mitigation strategies. 
 
Undertaking the flood mitigation works concurrently with a proposed dam safety upgrade 
was seen as the most economical solution to achieve compliance with ANCOLD guidelines, 
whilst providing considerable additional benefit to the community. The flood mitigation work 
involved modifying the existing spillway crest by raising it by 1.57 m. A 10m central slot 
remained at the original full supply level to provide a 1 in 100 year flood event flood retention 
capacity. The height of the dam embankment crest was raised 2 m by adding 1 m of 
additional fill and installing a concrete parapet wall on top to accommodate the resultant 
increased flood level. 
 
Since that time, SA Water has been working with the GRFMA for the joint development of 
the South Para Reservoir to improve flood mitigation on the Gawler and South Para rivers, 
and dam safety improvements for the reservoir itself. 
 
Detailed design work was completed in September 2010 at a total project cost in excess of 
$7.5 million excluding GST. The GRFMA portion of the project cost is $4,013 million. 
A contract was awarded for the construction of the works on 12 July 2011. Practical 
completion was achieved on 25 June 2012 and the contract was completed without any 
variations and on time. 
 
Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme Mark Two 
The Board considered the best approach to addressing the next stage in its Business Plan, 
which is the Gawler River Flood Mitigation Scheme Mark Two.   
 
The studies into the flood issues in the region had identified that although the construction of 
the Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam and modifications to the South Para 
Reservoir have been most successful, there remains 3750 properties still at risk of 
inundation in a 1 in 100 year flood. Options to rectify this situation include the construction of 
levees at Gawler, Angle Vale, Two Wells and Virginia and the development of additional 
flood mitigation storage on the North Para River.   
 
Decisions in relation to the best option had to take into account a vast range of issues 
including accommodating rail and road corridors, cost effectiveness and the most reliable 
mitigation for these properties. As the variables and consequences of both options are wide-
reaching, the Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority decided to engage 
professionals to investigate the matter further and to provide a Findings Report. The brief for 
the report was based on a methodology supported by the Department of Planning, Transport 
and Infrastructure. 
 
At the beginning of the year tenders were called for appropriate professionals to provide the 
Authority with a Findings Report and in May 2014, Australian Water Environments were 
appointed to this task.  
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Issues to be covered by this report include a review of the Hydrological Study of the Gawler 
River Catchment, the possible construction of a second dam on the North Para River and 
other structural and non-structural options. The report will also determine the optimal level of 
protection for the Gawler River Floodplain. 
 
Any solution to this flood problem needs to be integrated into the overall management of the 
Gawler River and the Open Space Strategies of both the Gawler River and the Barossa 
Region.  The contactor will be working closely with the Adelaide and Mount Lofty Ranges 
Natural Resources Management Board. 
 
The Stormwater Management Authority provided a grant of $50,000 towards the cost of the 
report. The Findings Report should be completed by the end of 2014. 
 
General 
The following Policies have been adopted to provide management guidelines for the day-to-
day business of the GRFMA: 

 Access to Meetings and Documents 
 Consultation 
 Internal Review of Decisions 
 Operations Manual 

 
All meetings of the GRFMA and its committees are open to the public. 
 
 

Forum 
Total 
Resolutions 
for the year 

Resolutions 
to exclude 
the Public - 
Sec 90(3) 

Purpose 

Order for 
documents to 
remain 
confidential - 
Sec 91(7) 
 

Percentage 

Board 54 2 

Possible 
litigation 
Supply of 
services 

    1 5% 

 
Technical 
Assessment 
Panel 
 

8 2 Supply of 
services     2 50% 

Audit 
Committee 
 

5 0     -     - 0% 

Executive 
Officer 
Performance 
Review 
Committee 

1 0     -     - 0% 
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Mr Dean Gollan has been engaged to provide Executive Officer services under a services 
agreement until 31 December 2014. Mr Gollan has extensive experience in the 
administration of Councils and regional subsidiaries under the Local Government Act. 
The GRFMA has no employees and all services are engaged on a contract basis. 



2014 2013
Notes $ $

Income
Subscriptions 3          70,732          69,278
Investment income 1(d)          10,344          13,311
State Government Grants                    -          12,469
Commonwealth Government Grants                    -          78,503

Total Income          81,076        173,561

Expenditure
Contractual Services 5          82,868        140,650
Finance Charges                    -            5,307
Depreciation 1(i), 4        191,510        191,510
Other            8,777          10,241

Total Expenses        283,155        347,708

Surplus / (Deficit) from Operations       (202,079)      (174,147)

Surplus / (Deficit)       (202,079)      (174,147)

Other Comprehensive Income
Changes in asset revaluation reserve - infrastructure & land 2,363,737            -

2,363,737            -

Total Comprehensive Income (Deficit) 2,161,658 (174,147)

The above Comprehensive Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes

GAWLER RIVER FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ending 30th June 2014

1



2014 2013
Notes $ $

Current Assets
Cash at Bank 11,573 48,528
Investments 1(d) 361,201 332,262
Debtors - GST 3,614 497
Debtor 2,318 -
Accrued Grant Income - 90,972

Total Current Assets 378,706 472,259

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 20,348 5,119
Accrued Expenses - 98,213

Total Current Liabilities 20,348 103,332

Net Current Assets 358,358 368,927

Non-current Assets
Infrastructure 4 18,497,000 15,320,793
Less: Depreciation 1(i), 4 (1,387,000) (383,020)
Land 4 326,364 326,364

Total Non-current Assets 17,436,364 15,264,137

Net Assets 17,794,722 15,633,064

Equity
Accumulated Surplus 14,942,912 15,144,991

Asset Revaluation Reserves 1(h),4 2,851,810 488,073

Total Equity 17,794,722 15,633,064

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

GAWLER RIVER FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Balance Sheet as at 30th June 2014

2



2014 2013
Notes $ $

Equity
Accumulated Surplus
Balance at begining of period 15,144,991 15,319,138
Add Net Surplus / (Deficit) (202,079) (174,147)

14,942,912 15,144,991

Balance at end of period 14,942,912 15,144,991

Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at begining of period 488,073 488,073
Add movement increase 2,363,737 -

Balance at end of period 2,851,810 488,073

Total Equity 17,794,722 15,633,064

The above Statement of Change in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

GAWLER RIVER FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

Statement of Change in Equity for the Year Ended 30th June 2014
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Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 30th June 2014

2014 2013
Notes $ $

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts 158,587 609,439
Payments (174,629) (272,496)

Net Cash (Used in) Operating (16,042) 336,943

Cash Flows from Investment Activities
Interest receipts 8,026 13,311

-
Net Cash (Provided by) Investment Activities 8,026 13,311

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held 8.1 (8,016) 350,254

Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of period 380,790 30,536
Cash & cash equivalents at end of period 8.2 372,774 380,790

The above Cashflow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

GAWLER RIVER FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

4



Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June 2014  
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1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies 

a) The Local Government Reporting Entity 
This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards as they apply to not-for-profit entities, other authoritative pronouncements of the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board, Interpretations and relevant South Australian legislation.  
 
The Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority is a Regional Subsidiary under Section 43 and 
Schedule 2 of the Local Government Act 1999. The Constituent Councils are the Adelaide Hills 
Council, The Barossa Council, Town of Gawler, Light Regional Council, District Council of Mallala and 
The City of Playford. 
 
All funds received and expended by the Authority have been included in the financial statements 
forming part of this financial report. 
 

b) Basis of Accounting 
This financial report has been prepared on an accrual basis and is based on historical costs and does 
not take into account changing money values, or except where specifically stated, current valuation 
of non-current assets. 
 

c) Employees 
The Association has no employees. 
 

d) Investments 
Investments are valued at cost. Interest revenues are recognised as they accrue. 
 

e) Cash 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash deposits which are readily 
convertible to cash on hand and which are used in the cash management function on a day to day 
basis, net of outstanding bank overdraft. 
 

f) Infrastructure 
The Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam was constructed in 2007. The valuation includes 
all materials, contractor’s costs plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including engineering design 
and supervision fees and all other costs incurred. 
 

g) Land 
The dam land includes the land on which the dam is constructed, rights of way access to the land 
and ‘right to flood’ easements over the land upstream from the dam that will be inundated by dam 
waters for short periods of time during a flood event. The Board valuation was undertaken at 30th 
June 2011. 
 

h) Revaluation
The Board has sought an independent valuation on the 29th May 2014, to be applied as at 30th June 
2014, of the Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam. The Board recognises that the dam is a 
unique infrastructure. The Board sought the advice of Entura (Hydro Tasmania), who provided a 
replacement cost valuation based on the actual construction contract costs, including some 'owner's 
costs' which would be incurred in the event of a replacement being necessary. The estimate of the 
replacement cost was $18.497 million at June 2014. In accordance with Accounting Standard 
(AASB)13 Fair Value Measurement, it is to be noted that valuation has been under level 3 valuation. 
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Fair value level 3 valuations of buildings, infrastructure and other assets – There is no known market 
for these assets and they are valued at depreciated current replacement cost. The method involves: 

The determination of the cost to construct the asset (or its modern engineering equivalent) using 
current prices for materials and labour, the quantities of each being estimated based on recent 
experience of this or similar Councils, or on industry construction guides where these are more 
appropriate. 
The calculation of the depreciation that would have accumulated since original construction using 
current estimates of residual value and useful life under the prime cost depreciation method 
adopted by Council. 

The method has significant inherent uncertainties, relying on estimates of quantities of materials 
and labour, residual values and useful lives, and the possibility of changes in prices for materials and 
labour, and the potential for development of more efficient construction techniques. 
 
  

i) Depreciation 
Entura advise that the accumulated depreciation should be assessed at $1.387 million as at June 
2014. 
The depreciation period for the Bruce Eastick North Para Flood Mitigation Dam is based on an 
expected life of 80 years.  
 

j) Revenue 
Revenue from the sale of services is recognised upon the delivery of the service to customers. 
 
Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates 
applicable to the financial assets. 
 
Dividend revenue is recognised when the rights to receive a dividend has been established. 
 
All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 
 
2 Functions / Activities of the Association 

a) Revenues and expenses have been attributed to the following functions / activities, 
descriptions of which are set out in Note b. 
 

b) The activities of the Authority are categorised into the following function / activities: 
 
 Administration: The operations of the Authority and its Board 
 
 Other Environment: Flood Mitigation 
 

c)  Functions of the Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority  
           (excluding depreciation) 
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  Revenue Expenses 

  Year Grants Other Total 
Revenue  

Expenses 
Total  

Surplus 
(deficit) 

Administration 2014 $64,215 $64,215 $60,485 $3,730 
2013 $66,045 $66,045 $50,068 $15,977 

Other Environment: 
Flood Mitigation 

2014 $16,861 $16,861 $31,160 ($14,299) 
2013 $90,972 $16,544 $107,516 $106,130 $1,386 

Total 
2014   $81,076 $81,076   $91,645   ($10,569) 
2013 $90,972 $82,589 $173,561 $156,198 $17,363 

 
 
3 Subscriptions 

The following subscriptions were levied on the Constituent Councils in accordance with Clause 10.2 
of the Charter for the year: 
 

  Scheme Works Maintenance Operations TOTALS 
Constituent Council 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 
Adelaide Hills Council $292 $287 $8,974 $8,789 $9,266 $9,077 
The Barossa Council $1,434 $1,434 $9,004 $8,789 $10,438 $10,223 
Town of Gawler $2,929 $2,869 $8,973 $8,789 $11,902 $11,658 
Light Regional Council $1,465 $1,434 $8,973 $8,789 $10,438 $10,223 
District Council of 
Mallala $4,883 $4,781 $8,974 $8,789 $13,857 $13,570 
City of Playford     $5,858 $5,737 $8,973 $8,789 $14,831 $14,526 
TOTAL - - $16,861 $16,543 $53,871 $52,734 $70,732 $69,277 

 
 
 
4 Non-Current Assets Summary 

  2013 2014 

  
Fair 

Value 
Level 

At Fair 
Value 

At 
Cost 

Accum 
Dep'n 

Carrying 
Amount 

At Fair 
Value 

At 
Cost 

Accum 
Dep'n 

Carrying 
Amount 

Land and easements - $326,364   $326,364 $326,364   $326,364 

North Para Dam - $15,320,793 ($383,020) $14,937,773     
North Para Dam 3         $18,497,000   ($1,387,000) $17,110,000 
Total Infrastructure 
and Land  $15,647,157   ($383,020) $15,264,137 $18,823,364   ($1,387,000) $17,436,364 

Comparatives $15,647,157   ($191,510) $15,455,647 $15,647,157   ($383,020) $15,264,137 
 

  

2013 Carrying Amount Movements During Year 2014 

Carrying 
Amount 

Additions 
Disposals Depreciation Impairment Transfers Net 

Valuation 
Carrying 
Amount New 

Upgrade Renewals 

Land and easements $326,364               $326,364 
Infrastructure - 
North Para Dam $14,937,773       ($191,510)     $2,363,737 $17,110,000 

Total Infrastructure, 
Property, Plant & 
Equipment 

$15,264,137       ($191,510)     $2,363,737   

Comparatives $15,455,647       ($191,510)     $15,264,137 
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5 Contractual Services 

Contractual Services involve payments or liabilities for the external provision of services and include 
(net of GST): 
Consultants Operations 2014 2013 
Dean Gollan $44,034 $35,637 
URPS                     - $850 
Enviro Group Pty Ltd $4,000 $4,000 

Maloney Field Services $12,773 
                      
- 

Allen Bolaffi Pty Ltd 
                     
-   $650 

Business Risk A S Solutions $1,300 $1,300 
Entura $9,000       - 
Australian Water Environments $5,286       - 
HLB Mann Judd $6,475       -  

$82,868 $42,437 

Contractors, Consultants Infrastructure 
SA Water $0 $98,213 
  $0 $98,213 
TOTALS $82,868 $140,650 
 
   

 

6 Comparison of Budget and Actual Results (excluding depreciation) 

2014 2013 
Budget Actual Budget Actual 

Revenue 
Administration $64,841 $64,215 $63,734 $66,045 
Other Environment: Flood Mitigation $0 $0 $87,020 $90,972 
Maintenance $16,891 $16,861 $16,544 $16,544 
Other Environment: Flood Mitigation Capital 
Total Revenue $81,732 $81,076 $167,298 $173,561 

Expenditure 
Administration $59,350 $60,485 $64,050 $50,068 
Other Environment: Flood Mitigation $50,000 $27,059 $143,945 $102,029 
Maintenance $10,000 $4,101 $10,000 $4,101 
Other Environment: Flood Mitigation Capital     
Total Expenditure $119,350 $91,645 $217,995 $156,198 
Surplus (deficit) ($37,618) ($10,569) ($50,697) $17,363 
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7 Expenditure Commitment 

i. An agreement has been entered into with Dean Gollan to provide Executive Officer and 
Supervision of Consultants services to 31 December 2014. 

 
 
8 Reconciliation Statement of Cash Flows 

8.1 Reconcile to operating activities 
Net deficit from operations ($202,079) 
Adjust for non-cash items 

Depreciation $191,510 
Reduction Accrued Grant Income $90,972 
Increase in Debtors ($5,435) 
Increase in Accounts Payable $15,229 
Reduction in Accrued Expense  ($98,213) 

Net Cash decrease from operating activities ($8,016) 
8.2 Cash and cash equivalents 

Balance at bank $11,573 
Balance at LGFA $361,201 

Total cash and cash equivalents $372,774 
 



Assets
 $         378,706 
 $    17,110,000 

Land  $         326,364 
 $    17,815,070 
 $                     - 
 $           20,348 

Net Equity  $    17,794,722 

Allocation of Councils Interest in Net Assets

Accumulated 
Subscriptions for 
Operations to 30 

June 2014

Accumulated 
Subscriptions for 

Maintenance to 30 
June 2014

Accumulated 
Subscriptions for 
Scheme Works to 

30 June 2014

All Subscriptions 
to 30 June 2014

Percentage of 
Contributions to 

the Total

Council's 
Interests in Net 

Assets

 $            61,428  $              1,203  $              70,988 133,619$        2.95% 524,690$         
 $            61,428  $              6,019  $            354,951 422,398$        9.32% 1,658,655$      
 $            61,428  $            12,000  $            709,892 783,320$        17.29% 3,075,909$      
 $            61,428  $              6,019  $            354,951 422,398$        9.32% 1,658,655$      
 $            61,428  $            20,074  $         1,183,146 1,264,648$     27.91% 4,965,968$      
 $            61,428  $            24,082  $         1,419,763 1,505,273$     33.22% 5,910,845$      

368,568$        69,397$          4,093,691$       4,531,656$     100.00% 17,794,722$    

Light Regional Council

"The ‘Schedule of Constituent Councils’ Interests in Net Assets’ will reflect the proportionate contribution each Constituent Council has 
made to the growth of the net assets of the Authority having regard to the proportionate contribution to subscriptions. The Schedule 
when updated by the Board at the end of each financial year will reflect the proportionate contribution of each Constituent Council since 
the commencement of the Authority and once accepted by each Constituent Council will be evidence of the agreed proportion of a 
Constituent Council’s interests in the net assets as at 30 June in that year."

Schedule of Constituent Councils’ Interests in Net Assets’ as at the 30th June 2014 adopted by the Board in accordance with Clause 
15.5 of the Charter on 15 September 2014.

Town of Gawler

District Council of Mallala
City of Playford

Less Liabilities
Accounts Payable / Creditors

Constituent Councils

Adelaide Hills Council
The Barossa Council

Gawler River Floodplain Management Authority 
Schedule of Constituent Council's Interests in Net Assets as at 30th June 2014

Prepared to meet the requirements of Clause 15.5 of the Charter

This Schedule has been prepared on the basis that the Authority was 'wound up' on 30th June 2014. The value of infrastructure and 
land as stated in the Audited Financial Statements at 30th June have been included. Grants and contributions from the Commonwealth 
Government, State Government and the Northern Adelaide Barossa Catchment Water Management Board that have contributed to 
these costs have not been deducted.

Calculation of Net Equity

Investments / Debtors

For the purposes of this Clause all subscriptions by Constituent Councils have been included.  

Infrastructure
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Annual Report 
for 2013 – 2014

A regional subsidiary of:

The Barossa Council
District Council of Barunga West
Clare & Gilbert Valleys Council
District Council of The Copper Coast
The Flinders Ranges Council
Regional Council of Goyder
Light Regional Council
District Council of Mallala
District Council of Mount Remarkable
Northern Areas Council
District Council of Orroroo/Carrieton
District Council of Peterborough
Port Pirie Regional Council
Wakefield Regional Council
Yorke Peninsula Council
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Contact Details

Postal Address:
PO Box 168
CRYSTAL BROOK  SA  5523

Telephone:

0409 19 55 44

Email:
ceo@centralregion.sa.gov.au

Website:
www.centralregion.sa.gov.au
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The Central Local Government Region of South Australia

The Central Local Government Region was established in 1998 under Section 200 of the Local 
Government Act 1934 as a controlling authority. It now continues in existence and as a regional 
subsidiary of its member Councils under Part 2 of Schedule 2 of the Local Government Act 1999 
by virtue of the provisions of Section 25 of the Local Government (Implementation) Act 1999.

The Central Region is established to:

undertake co-ordinating, advocacy and representational roles on behalf of  its Constituent 
Councils at a regional level

facilitate and co-ordinate activities of local government at a regional level related to 
community and economic development with the object of achieving improvement for the 
benefit of the communities of its Constituent Councils

develop, encourage, promote, foster and maintain consultation and co-operation and to 
strengthen the representation and status of local government when dealing with other 
governments, private enterprise and the community

develop further co-operation between its Constituent Councils for the benefit of the 
communities of the region

develop and manage policies which guide the conduct of programs and projects in the 
region with the objective of securing the best outcomes for the communities of the region

undertake projects and activities that benefit the region and its communities

associate, collaborate and work in conjunction with other regional local government 
bodies for the advancement of matters of common interest.

The Central Region is a body corporate and is governed by a Board of Management which has 
the responsibility to manage all activities of the Central Region and ensure that the Central 
Region acts in accordance with its Charter. The Board has 15 members, comprising one 
representative elected from each constituent Council:

Barossa Council
District Council of Barunga West
Clare & Gilbert Valleys Council
District Council of The Copper Coast
The Flinders Ranges Council
Regional Council of Goyder
Light Regional Council
District Council of Mallala

District Council of Mount Remarkable
Northern Areas Council
District Council of Orroroo/Carrieton
District Council of Peterborough
Port Pirie Regional Council
Wakefield Regional Council
Yorke Peninsula Council

The Region’s area spans the Barossa through the Clare Valley, Yorke Peninsula, Adelaide Plains, 
Mid and Upper North districts through to the Flinders Ranges, covering 27 per cent of the 
incorporated area of the State and comprises some 27 per cent of the State’s population outside 
Adelaide.
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Office Bearers for 2013/14

Chairman: Mayor Ray Agnew (Yorke Peninsula)

Deputy Chairs: Mayor Allan Aughey (Clare & Gilbert Valleys
Mayor James Maitland (Wakefield)

Executive Members: Mayor Ruth Whittle (Peterborough)
Mayor Denis Clark (Northern Areas)

Delegate to the LGA State 
Executive:

Mayor Ray Agnew (Wakefield)
Mayor Allan Aughey (Clare & Gilbert Valleys)
Mayor Denis Clark (Northern Areas) - proxy

Executive Officer:
Anita Crisp until March 30th 2014
Paul McInerney interim part-time Executive Officer from March 
31st 2014

Auditor: Ian G. McDonald
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Central Local Government Region Board of 
Management

The Central Local Government Region Board of Management comprises an elected delegate 
appointed from each of the 15 member councils. A proxy delegate is also appointed, with policy 
provisions allowing for representation by other elected or endorsed members.

Following the November 2010 Local Government elections, constituent Councils of the Central 
Local Government Region appointed the following Council delegates to the CLGR Board of 
Management for a term to expire at the 2014 Local Government elections, subject to the 
provisions within the Charter or amendment by a constituent Council:

Council Delegate Proxy Delegate 

The Barossa Council Mayor Brian Hurn Cr Scotty Milne (part)
Cr Bob Sloane (continuing)

District Council of Barunga West Mayor Dean Dolling Cr Brian Rooney

District Council of the Copper Coast Mayor Paul Thomas D/Mayor Dean Rodda

Clare & Gilbert Valleys Council Mayor Allan Aughey Cr Elizabeth Calvert

Flinders Ranges Council Mayor Peter Slattery D/Mayor John Shute

Regional Council of Goyder Mayor Peter Mattey D/Mayor Jane Kellock 

Light Regional Council D/Mayor Dean Rohrlach Nil

District Council of Mallala Mayor Duncan Kennington Nil

District Council of Mount Remarkable Mayor Sandra Wauchope D/Mayor Ray Walker 
D/Mayor Peter Jacobs

Northern Areas Council Mayor Denis Clark D/Mayor John Barberien

District Council of Orroroo Carrieton Chair Colin Parkyn D/Chair Malcolm Byerlee

District Council of Peterborough Mayor Ruth Whittle Cr Frank Hardbottle

Port Pirie Regional Council Cr Neville Wilson D/Mayor John Rhode

Wakefield Regional Council Mayor James Maitland D/Mayor Darryl Ottens

District Council of Yorke Peninsula Mayor Ray Agnew Cr John Rich
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Meetings of the Central Region Board of Management

Four meetings of the Central Local Government Region Board of Management were held during 
the 2013/14, each hosted by one of the member Councils. 

The meeting host and location is rotated throughout the region on alphabetical order.

Meetings were held:

Annual General Meeting, Friday 9th August 2013 (hosted by Flinders Ranges)

General Meeting, Friday 8th November 2013 (hosted by Goyder)

General Meeting, Friday 21st February 2014 (hosted by Light)

General Meeting, Friday 16th May 2014 (hosted by Mallala)
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Committee Meetings

In accordance with its Charter, the Central Local Government Region maintains several sub 
committees to assist in effective project implementation and governance. The committees 
generally meet on an as-needs basis and comprise representatives from the various member 
councils along with, in many cases additional delegates from other relevant regional bodies or 
state government agencies:

Committee Members Meeting Dates
Executive 
Committee:

Mayor James Maitland,  Mayor Ray Agnew, Mayor Allan Aughey, 
Mayor Ruth Whittle, Mayor Peter Mattey

5 July 2013
24 October 2013
29 January 2014
21 February 2014
19 March 2013
7 May 2014

Audit Committee: Mayor Ray Agnew (Chair), Cr Kathie Bowman, Dr Andrew Johnson, 
Mr Colin Davies

Exempt

Member Councils 
CEO’s Forums:

Mr Martin McCarthy(Barossa), Mr Peter Ward (A/CEO, Barunga 
West),Mr Andrew Cole (CEO, Barunga West) Mr Roy Blight (Clare &
Gilbert Valleys), Mr Peter Harder (Copper Coast), Mr Colin Davies 
(Flinders Ranges), Mr John Brak (Goyder), Mr Brian Carr (Light), 
Mr Charles Mansueto (Mallala), Mr Wayne Hart  (Mt Remarkable), 
Mr Roger Crowley (Northern Areas), Mr Iian Wilson 
(Orroroo/Carrieton), Mr Peter McGuiness (Peterborough), Dr 
Andrew Johnson (Pirie Regional), Ms Cate Atkinson (Wakefield), Mr 
Andrew Cameron (Yorke Peninsula)

12 July 2013
11 October 2013
13 December 2013
4 April 2014
6 June 2014

Transport 
Infrastructure 
Planning 
Committee:

Mr Iian Wilson - Chair (Orroroo Carrieton), Mr Colin Davies 
(Flinders Ranges), Mr Peter Broughill (Northern Areas), Mr Steve 
Kaesler (Barossa), Mr Fred Linke (Barunga West), Mr Brenton 
Pearce (Mt Remarkable), Ms Joanne Buchanan (Regional 
Development), Mr Bob Bemmerl (DTEI) 

5 November 2013

Regional Climate 
Change Steering 
Committee:

Ms Anita Crisp (CLGR Executive Officer), Ms Kelly-Anne Saffin (RDA 
Y&MN), Mr Jarrod White (N&Y NRM Board)

4 February 2013
29 April 2013
3 June 2013

Coastal Councils 
Network:

Mr Warrick Barnes (Mallala), Ms Lynda Painter (Wakefield), Mr 
Stephen Goldsworthy (Yorke Peninsula), Mr Andy West (Copper 
Coast), Ms Deb Brokenshire (Barunga West), Mr Patrick Clifton 
(Port Pirie), Muriel Scholz (Mt Remarkable). Ms Deborah Allen 
(Coastcare Facilitator) – ex officio

Nil

Regional Waste 
Management 
Committee:

Mayor Ruth Whittle (Chair), Ms Cate Atkinson (Wakefield), Cr Ken 
Anderson (Flinders Ranges), Ms Paula Duncan-Tiver (Northern 
Areas), Mr Roger Crowley (Northern Areas). Ms Vanessa Loechel 
(Waste Coordinator) – ex officio

15 July 2013
23 October 2013

Water Project 
Steering Committee:

Mr Iian Wilson (Orrroroo Carrieton), Cr Denis Clarke (Northern 
Areas), Mr Ian Baldwin. Ms Kelly-Anne Saffin (RDAY&MN), Ms 
Jennifer Munro (Northern & Yorke NRM), Ms Kris Swaffer (DFW), Mr 
Paul Doherty (SA Water)

Nil

Windfarm Project 
Steering Committee:

Mayor Allan Aughey (C&GV), Cr Paul Kretschmer (Mt Remarkable), 
Gabby Swearse/Alan Thomson (NAC), Mr John Brak (Goyder). 
Kelly-Anne Saffin (RDA), Mr Jarrod White. Mr Trevor White 
(Windfarm Liaison Officer) – ex officio

17 July 2013
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Regional Forums and Workshops

In order to progress specific priorities and actions, the Central Local Government Region 
occasionally holds information forums or workshops to allow member councils and other relevant 
stakeholders to come together and discuss or learn about particular initiatives. 

The forums and workshops provide an opportunity for greater awareness, understanding and 
engagement with various Central Local Government Region activities and increases the level of 
active involvement by stakeholders. The following issue-specific forums were held during the 
2013/14 financial year.

9 August 2013 Integrated Transport and Land Use Strategy Forum – Crystal 
Brook

October 2013

Launch of Regional Climate Change Action Plan in October 2013 and 
presentations to various regional, state and national forums
(Greenhouse Oct 2013, SA Climate Change Adaption Showcase 
February 2014) 

28 November 2013 Regional Waste Forum – Port Pirie

21st February 2014 Opportunities for Collaboration and Shared Services Workshop -
Hewett

28th March 2014

Regional Planning Review Forum – Port Pirie – hosted in 
conjunction with the Northern & Yorke Natural Resources 
Management Board and Regional Development Australia Yorke 
and Mid North.
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Achievements for 2013/14

During the 2013/14 year, the Central Region continued to progress a number of priority activities, 
pursued under the three key target areas identified within the strategic and business plan:

1. Board Governance and Operations
The operation of the Central Region subsidiary is in accordance with legislative requirements 
and board policy
CLGR is well regarded by its member councils and stakeholders as a valid and relevant 
organisation

Achievements for 2013/14
CLGR Board meeting agendas & minutes distributed in accordance with policy
Committee operations executed within terms of reference
Interim Executive support review implemented.
Future Direction Review of CLGR developed for LGA R & D Scheme funding.
Review of operation of Standing and other Committees and restructure of activities through the 
CEO’s Forum
CEO’s Forum meetings altered from three monthly to two monthly to allow for Outreach 
Services Project and other committee work to be progressed.

2. Local Government Leadership and Sustainability
The Central Local Government Region Councils supported to collaboratively improve service 
delivery, resourcing & financial capacity
Central Local Government Region Councils well represented & regarded at state and national 
Local Government levels
Improved awareness & understanding of Central Region Council issues and activities by key 
stakeholders & political decision makers

Achievements for 2013/14
Allocation of $320,000 CLGR reserve funds towards Council collaborations and shared services
Funding received for LGA Outreach Officer – additional research and project support for Councils
Developed Central and Eyre Peninsula Region election strategy.
Invited attendance by Local Government Minister to quarterly meetings of Central Region
Attendance by Local Government Association (LGA) and Department of Planning and Local 
Government (DPLG) at Central Region quarterly meetings
Communications with LGA and Office of Local Government staff as required
Convened Council Chief Executive Officer forums
Coordination of Central Zone appointments to LGA State Executive Committee
Regional representation at SA Regional Organisation of Councils (SAROC) and LGA State 
Executive meetings
Attendance at Local Government Association SA general meetings and forums in Adelaide
Attendance at Australian Local Government Association assembly in Canberra
Communication with SAROC Executive Officers on key issues as required
Participation of relevant regional agencies and bodies on Central Region committees and at 
workshops and forums as appropriate
Member of Parliament briefings as required
Relevant ABC local radio and newspaper media coverage of Central Region projects and events
Central Region website updated up to 30 March 2014.

3. Regional and Community Sustainability

The long-term economic, environmental and social sustainability of the Central Local 
Government Region is fostered through pro-active, innovative, efficient and collaborative 
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approaches to issues of priority.

Achievements for 2013/14
Regional Identity, Planning & Cohesion

Regional Strategic Alliance meetings with Northern & Yorke Natural Resources Management Board 
(NRM) and Regional Development Australia Yorke and Mid North (RDA)
Yorke/Mid North Annual Planning Review Forum in Port Pirie with NRM and RDA
Convened workshop with Dept Planning on update of the Mid North and Yorke Peninsula Planning 
Strategy
Participation in Upper Spencer Gulf Working Group
Convened update briefings of RDA and NRM to Central Region meetings
Continued Central Region office co-location with Regional Department of Transport, Crystal Brook

Waste Management 
Funding continued from ZWSA to engage Regional Waste Coordinator for 2 years concluding in 
2014/15
Regional waste management committee operational and linking directly with CEO’s Forum
Convened regional waste management forum
Supported investigation into future options for Everard regional landfill site
Ongoing liaison with national e-waste recycling program, ZWSA, LGA and Councils regarding 
regional e-waste collection
Liaison with EPA regarding Illegal Dumping unit
Support to Councils regarding waste management issues – green and hazardous waste, tyres
Lodged LGA R & D Scheme application for organics project; recruited consultants to undertake cost 
modelling component, training and supply of equipment to trial sites.
Recycling/anti-litter & illegal dumping displays.
Illegal Dumping proposal put for Crime Prevention Grant.
Updates Regional Waste Strategy

Transport
Convened Central Region Transport Committee, including participation by DTEI and RDA
Assessment, inspection and regional submission to Special Local Roads program
Commitment towards development of Regional Transport Strategy with Regional Development 
Australia

Environment and Natural Resources
Local Government representative attendance at Regional NRM Board meetings
Participation in regional Native Vegetation Council forum

Water Resources
Support for development of business cases and funding submissions for water projects

Climate Change and Emergency Management
Funding for regional climate change coordinator to work across local govt, regional development & 
NRM
Launch of Regional Climate Change Action Plan in October 2013 and presentations to various 
regional, state and national forums (Greenhouse Oct 2013, SA Climate Change Adaption Showcase 
February 2014)
Concept and business case for regional sustainability centre completed and “Goyder’s Line 
Sustainability Hub” steering committee formed and launched.
Commenced regional “low carbon” investment strategy, including surveys and community 
workshops.
Liaison with Government for high resolution Digital Elevation Modelling for the regions coastline.
Resilient Australia Awards 2013 – CLGR received “Highly Commended” for the Integrated Climate 
Change Vulnerability Assessment
Submission to the Emissions Reduction Fund review.
Submission to the Premier’s Climate Change Council.
Commenced State Government Climate Change Policy Review
Participation in NRM Plan Review Team.
Funding applications made to “Prospering in a Changing Climate” and Natural Disaster Resilience 
Program” grant programs – successful projects to be delivered in 2014/15.
Regional Forum in March 2014 with sustainability theme. 
Coordinated LG representation to Yorke/Mid North Zone Emergency Management committees 
(ZEMC)
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Windfarm Development

Project completion through LGA Research and Development fund for preparation of local 
government planning guidelines for windfarm development

Community Wellbeing, Health and Prosperity
Liaison with NBN Co and RDA regarding broadband rollout and regional gaps and opportunities for 
network extensions
Mid North University Knowledge Partnerships Steering Committee 
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Audited Financial Statements 2013/14
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2014 2013
Notes $ $

INCOME
Grants, subsidies and contributions 2     852,300   636,060 
Investment income 2       16,070     17,433 
Other income 2     171,950   159,758 
Total Income  1,040,320   813,251 

EXPENSES
Employee costs 3       93,259     57,201 
Materials, contracts & other expenses 3     697,046   749,118 
Depreciation 3        5,101      6,160 
Total Expenses     795,406   812,479 

OPERATING SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)     244,914         772 

Asset disposal & fair value adjustments 4               -     (7,140)
TOTAL  COMPREHENSIVE  INCOME     244,914     (6,368)

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.

Central Local Government Region of SA Inc

STATEMENT  OF  COMPREHENSIVE  INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2014
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2014 2013
ASSETS Notes $ $
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 749,243 601,152 
Trade & other receivables 5 119,804 55,249 

Total Current Assets 869,047 656,401 

Non-current Assets
Property, plant & equipment 7 28,907 34,008 

Total Non-current Assets 28,907 34,008 
Total Assets 897,954 690,409 

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade & other payables 8 23,248 54,838 
Provisions 8 - 5,668 

Total Current Liabilities 23,248 60,506 

Non-current Liabilities
Provisions 8 - 111

Total Non-current Liabilities - 111
Total Liabilities 23,248 60,617 
NET ASSETS 874,706 629,792 

EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus 25,212 3,486 
Other Reserves 9 849,494 626,306 
TOTAL EQUITY 874,706 629,792 

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.

Central Local Government Region of SA Inc

STATEMENT  OF  FINANCIAL  POSITION
as at 30 June 2014
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Central Local Government Region of SA Inc

Accumulated
Surplus

Other 
Reserves

TOTAL 
EQUITY

2014 Notes $ $ $

Balance at end of previous reporting period 3,486 626,306 629,792 
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 244,914 244,914 
Transfers between reserves (223,188) 223,188 -

Balance at end of period 25,212 849,494 874,706 

2013

Balance at end of previous reporting period 303,660 332,500 636,160 
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year (6,368) (6,368)
Transfers between reserves (293,806) 293,806 -
Balance at end of period 3,486 626,306 629,792 

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes

for the year ended 30 June 2014
STATEMENT  OF  CHANGES  IN  EQUITY
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Central Local Government Region of SA Inc

STATEMENT  OF  CASH  FLOWS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Notes $ $
Receipts

Investment receipts 16,474 17,865
Grants & Council Contributions 906,483 654,641
Other revenues 122,464 250,124

Payments
Employee costs (105,421) (45,039)
Materials, contracts & other expenses (791,909) (837,255)
Finance payments - -

Net Cash provided by (or used in) Operating 
Activities 148,091 40,336

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipts

Sale of replaced assets - 10,909
Payments

Expenditure on renewal/replacement of assets - (36,687)
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Investing 
Activities - (25,778)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Financing 
Activities - -

Net Increase (Decrease) in cash held 148,091 14,558

Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of period 11 601,152 586,594
Cash & cash equivalents at end of period 11 749,243 601,152

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes
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Central Local Government Region of SA Inc 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below.  These 
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Preparation
This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards as 
they apply to not-for-profit entities, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards 
Board, Interpretations and relevant South Australian legislation.

The financial report was authorised for issue by certificate under regulation 14 of the Local Government 
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011 dated (9th August 2014)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of 
certain critical accounting estimates, and requires management to exercise its judgement in applying the 
Region’s accounting policies.  The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where 
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are specifically referred to in the relevant 
sections of this Note.

All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar ($).

Historical Cost Convention
Except as stated below, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost 
convention.

1.2 The Local Government Reporting Entity
The Central Local Government Region of South Australia Incorporated (“the Region”) is a regional subsidiary 
under Section 43 and Schedule 2 of the Local Government Act 1999. 

The Constituent Councils are:
1.   The Barossa Council 2.   District Council of Mount Remarkable
3.   District Council of Barunga West 4.   Northern Areas Council
5.   Clare and Gilbert Valleys Council 6.   District Council of Orroroo/Carrieton
7.   District Council of the Copper Coast 8.   District Council of Peterborough
9.   The Flinders Ranges Council 10. Port Pirie Regional Council
11. Regional Council of Goyder 12. Wakefield Regional Council
13. Light Regional Council 14. District Council of the Yorke Peninsula, and
15. District Council of Mallala.

All funds received and expended by the Region have been included in the Financial Statements forming part of 
this Financial Report.

1.3  Income recognition
Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.  Income is recognised when the 
Region obtains control over the assets comprising the income, or when the amount due constitutes an 
enforceable debt, whichever first occurs. 
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Central Local Government Region of SA Inc

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont)

Where grants, contributions and donations recognised as incomes during the reporting period were obtained on 
the condition that they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period, and those conditions 
were undischarged as at the reporting date, the amounts subject to those undischarged conditions are disclosed 
in these notes.  Also disclosed is the amount of grants, contributions and receivables recognised as incomes in a 
previous reporting period which were obtained in respect of the Region’s operations for the current reporting 
period.

1.4  Cash, Cash Equivalents and other Financial Instruments
Cash Assets include all amounts readily convertible to cash on hand at the Region’s option with an insignificant 
risk of changes in value with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Receivables for generally unsecured and do not bear interest. All receivables are reviewed as at the reporting 
date and adequate allowance made for amounts the receipt of which is considered doubtful.

All financial instruments are recognised at fair value at the date of recognition.  A detailed statement of the 
accounting policies applied to financial instruments forms part of Note 13.

1.5  Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
All non-current assets purchased are capitalised as the expenditure is incurred and depreciated as soon as the 
asset is held “ready for use”. All assets are recognised at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets 
given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition.

Assets with an economic life in excess of one year are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition exceeds 
materiality thresholds established by the Region for each type of asset.  In determining (and in annually 
reviewing) such thresholds, regard is had to the nature of the asset and its estimated service life.  Examples of 
capitalisation thresholds applied during the year are as follows: 

Office Furniture & Equipment $1,000
Motor Vehicles, Other Plant & Equipment $1,000

All material asset classes are revalued on a regular basis such that the carrying values are not materially 
different from fair value.  Plant and equipment assets recognised are systematically depreciated over their useful 
lives on a straight-line basis which, in the opinion of the Region, best reflects the consumption of the service 
potential embodied in those assets.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of classes of assets are reviewed annually.

Major depreciation periods for each class of asset are shown in Note 7.  

1.6  Payables
Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the supply of goods and services and are recognised as 
liabilities when the goods and services are received.  Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month of 
invoice.  No interest is payable on these amounts.

Amounts received from external parties in advance of service delivery are recognised as liabilities until the 
service is delivered or damage reinstated, or the amount is refunded as the case may be.

2 Employee Benefits

2.1 Salaries, Wages & Compensated Absences
As at 30th June 2014 the Region does not have any employees and hence there are no employee provisions at 
the reporting date. 
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Central Local Government Region of SA Inc

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont)

2.2 Superannuation
The Region made employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employee to the Statewide 
Superannuation Scheme until the termination date of 31st March 2014.  

3 GST Implications
In accordance with UIG Abstract 1031 “Accounting for the Goods & Services Tax”

Receivables and Creditors include GST receivable and payable.
Except in relation to input taxed activities, revenues and operating expenditures exclude GST receivable and 
payable.
Non-current assets and capital expenditures include GST net of any recoupment.
Amounts included in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis.

4 Pending Accounting Standards
Certain new accounting standards and UIG interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 
30 June 2012 reporting period and have not been used in preparing these reports.

AASB 7Financial Instruments – Disclosures
AASB 9 Financial Instruments
AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
AASB 11 Joint Arrangements
AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements
AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation

Standards containing consequential amendments to other Standards and Interpretations arising from the above -
AASB 2010-7, AASB 2011-7, AASB 2012-2, AASB 2012-3, AASB 2012-5, AASB 2012-6, AASB 2012-10, AASB 
2013-3, AASB 2013-8 and AASB 2013-9.
(Standards not affecting local government have been excluded from the above list.)

The Region is of the view that none of the above new standards or interpretations will affect any of the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements, but that they may impact certain information otherwise disclosed.

The Australian Accounting Standards Board is currently reviewing AASB 1004 Contributions.  It is anticipated 
that the changes resulting from this review may have a material effect on the timing of the recognition of grants 
and contributions, but the financial consequences cannot be estimated until a revised accounting standard is 
issued.
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for the year ended 30 June 2014

2014 2013
Notes $ $

INVESTMENT  INCOME
Interest on investments

Local Government Finance Authority 15,961 17,041
Banks & other 109 392

16,070 17,433

OTHER INCOME
Council Contributions 148,159 145,245
Motor Vehicle Contribution - 5,400
Sundry 23,791 9,113

171,950 159,758

GRANTS, SUBSIDIES, CONTRIBUTIONS
Other grants, subsidies and contributions 852,300 636,060

852,300 636,060
The functions to which these grants relate are shown in Note 2.

Sources of grants
Commonwealth government 376,950 402,636
State government 56,000 135,000
Other (inc NRM) 419,350 98,424

852,300 636,060

Conditions over grants & contributions

Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 285,876 221,816

(9,910 )
(20,010 ) (28,462 )
(69,027 )

(8,918 )
(21,439 )

Subtotal (119,394 ) (38,372 )

18,434 7,890
543 3,493

13,923
34,229
21,439

5,927 21,458
52,667

182,941
30,000
30,000
30,000

Subtotal 350,512 102,432
516,994 285,876

231,118 64,060

Central Local Government Region of SA Inc

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 - INCOME

Grants and contributions which were obtained on the condition that they be expended for 
specified purposes or in a future period, but which are not yet expended in accordance with 
those conditions, are as follows:

Net increase (decrease) in assets subject to 
conditions in the current reporting period

P002-Flood Remediation

Unexpended at the close of this reporting period

P008-Coastal Councils Project
P010-Windfarm Liaison

P009-Climate Change

P003-Waste Management

P019-Coastal Adaptation
P020-Risk Assessment

Plus: amounts recognised as revenues in this reporting period but not yet expended in 
accordance with the conditions

Less: expended during the current period from revenues recognised in previous reporting 
periods 

P022-Roads & Transport
P023-Outreach Collaboration Project

P014-Water Project

P016-Upper Spencer Gulf RSP
P018-Policy Amendment Review

A009-Special Projects
P008-Coastal Councils Project
P009-Climate Change
P014-Water Project
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Central Local Government Region of SA Inc

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 3 - EXPENSES

2014 2013
Notes $ $

EMPLOYEE COSTS
Salaries and Wages 73,877 44,653
Employee leave expense 7,163 5,779
Superannuation - defined contribution plan contributions 18 6,251 4,019
FBT 5,968 -
Other : Career Development - 2,750
Total Operating Employee Costs 93,259 57,201

Total Number of Employees - 1
          (Full time equivalent at end of reporting period)

MATERIALS, CONTRACTS & OTHER EXPENSES
Prescribed Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration
     -  Auditing the financial reports 1,650 1,500
Other Audit/Accounting Fees 486 300
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses 2,136 1,800

Other Materials, Contracts & Expenses
Contractors & Consultants 552,016 513,514
Energy & Fuel 4,383 4,502
Donations - Plants - 10,000
Grants 79,000 175,040
Members Allowances & Support 4,058 3,979
Meetings & Conferences 22,216 4,244
Insurance 8,687 7,346
Professional legal services - 1,800
Sundry 24,550 26,893
Subtotal - Other Materials, Contracts & Expenses 694,910 747,318

697,046 749,118

DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION & IMPAIRMENT
Depreciation
Motor Vehicle 5,101 5,388
Software - 772

5,101 6,160
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Central Local Government Region of SA Inc

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 4 - ASSET  DISPOSAL  &  FAIR  VALUE  ADJUSTMENTS

2014 2013
Notes $ $

INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY,  PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Assets renewed or directly replaced
Proceeds from disposal - 10,909
Less: Carrying amount of assets sold - 18,049
Gain (Loss) on disposal - (7,140)

NET GAIN (LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OR REVALUATION 
OF ASSETS                    -            (7,140)

Note 5 - CURRENT ASSETS
2014 2013

CASH  &  EQUIVALENT  ASSETS Notes $ $
Cash on Hand and at Bank 129,379 2,653
Deposits at Call 619,864 598,499

749,243 601,152

TRADE  &  OTHER  RECEIVABLES
Accrued Revenues 3,543 45,947
Debtors - general 90,000 9,302
GST Recoupment 26,261 -

119,804 55,249
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Central Local Government Region of SA Inc

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 8 - LIABILITIES
2014 2013

$ $
TRADE  &  OTHER  PAYABLES Notes Current Non-current Current Non-current
Goods & Services 8,615 48,455
Accrued expenses - employee entitlements - 6,383
Accrued expenses - Contractors 14,633 -

23,248 - 54,838 -

PROVISIONS
Employee entitlements (including oncosts) - - 5,668 111

- - 5,668 111

Amounts included in provisions that are not 
expected to be settled within 12 months of 
reporting date.

- -
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Central Local Government Region of SA Inc

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 9 - RESERVES

OTHER  RESERVES 1/7/2013
Transfers to 

Reserve
Transfers from 

Reserve
30/6/2014

General Reserve 12,500 12,500
1 P003-Waste Management 13,474 18,434 31,908
2 A009-Special Projects 3,493 543 4,036
3 P009-Climate Change 109,382 (8,918 ) 100,464
4 P010-Wind Farm Liaison 47,603 (20,010 ) 27,593
5 P015-Local Government Reform 320,000 320,000
6 P016-Upper Spencer Gulf RSP - 182,941 182,941
7 P018-Policy Alignment Review - 30,000 30,000
8 P019-Coastal Adaptation - 30,000 30,000
9 P020-Risk Assessment - 30,000 30,000

10 P022-Roads & Transport 21,458 5,927 27,385
11 P023-Outreach Collaboration Project - 52,667 52,667

P008-Coastal Councils 69,027 (69,027 ) 0
P011-Regional Broadband 2,940 (2,940 ) 0
P013-Environment & Roadside Vegetation 4,990 (4,990 ) 0
P014-Regional Water Supply 21,439 (21,439 ) 0
TOTAL  OTHER  RESERVES 626,306 350,512 (127,324 ) 849,494

Comparatives 332,500 293,806 626,306

PURPOSES OF RESERVES

1 P003-Waste Management
State Government funded technical support programme - completion 2014/15

2 A007-Special Projects
LGA funded support programme - expiry 2014/15

3 P009-Climate Change

4 P010-Wind Farm Liaison

5 P015-Local Government Reform

6 P016-Upper Spencer Gulf Regional Sustainability Project

7 P018-Policy Amendement Review

8 P019-Coastal Adaptation

9 P020-Risk Assessment

10 P022-Roads & Transport

11 P023-Outreach Collaboration Project
Federal Government funded programme - completion 2015/16

(Other Reserves)

Regional Partners and State Government funded programme - Project managed by Yorke and Mid North 

LGA funded programme - windfarm planning guide - completion 2014/15

CLGR funded programme - Council Shared Services 

CLGR funded programme - Regional Development Australia Freight Strategy - anticipated 2014/15

State Government funded technical support programme - completion 2015/16

NRM funded project - completion 2014/15

NRM funded project - completion 2014/15

NRM funded project - completion 2014/15
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Central Local Government Region of SA Inc

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 11 - RECONCILIATION TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a)      Reconciliation of Cash

2014 2013
Notes $ $

Total cash & equivalent assets 5 749,243 601,152
Balances per Cash Flow Statement 749,243 601,152

(b)  Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash 
            from Operating Activities
Net Surplus (Deficit) 244,914 (6,368)
Non-cash items in Income Statement
         Depreciation, amortisation & impairment 5,101 6,160
         Net increase (decrease) in unpaid employee benefits (12,162) 12,162
         Net (Gain) Loss on Disposals - 7,140

237,853 19,094
Add (Less): Changes in Net Current Assets
         Net (increase) decrease in receivables (64,555) 30,828
         Net increase (decrease) in trade & other payables (25,207) (9,586)
Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations 148,091 40,336

(c)      Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities
- -

(d)      Financing Arrangements

Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following lines of credit:
Corporate Credit Cards 2,000 2,000

Note 12 - FUNCTIONS

The activities of the Region are categorised into the following programmes

1 A009-Special Projects
2 P003-Waste Management
3 P008-Coastal Councils
4 P009-Climate Change
5 P010-Wind Farm Liaison
6 P011-Regional Broadband
7 P013-Environment & Roadside Vegetation
8 P014-Regional Water Supply
9 P015-Local Government Reform

10 P016-Upper Spencer Gulf RSP
11 P018-Policy Alignment Review
12 P019-Coastal Adaptation
13 P020-Risk Assessment
14 P022-Roads & Transport
15 P023-Outreach Collaboration Project

Income and expenses have been attributed to the above functions/activities throughout the 
financial year.

Cash Assets comprise highly liquid investments with short periods to maturity subject to
insignificant risk of changes of value. Cash at the end of the reporting period as shown in the
Cash Flow Statement is reconciled to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:
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Central Local Government Region of SA Inc

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Accounting Policies - Recognised Financial Instruments

Liquidity Analysis

Due < 1 year
Due > 1 year; 

< 5 years
Due > 5 years

Total 
Contractual 
Cash Flows

Carrying 
Values

Financial Assets $ $ $ $ $
Cash & Equivalents 749,243 749,243 749,243
Receivables 119,804 - - 119,804 119,804

Total 869,047 - - 869,047 869,047
Financial Liabilities

Payables 8,616 8,616 8,615
Total 8,616 - - 8,616 8,615

Due < 1 year
Due > 1 year; 

< 5 years
Due > 5 years

Total 
Contractual 
Cash Flows

Carrying 
Values

Financial Assets $ $ $ $ $
Cash & Equivalents 601,152 601,152 601,152
Receivables 55,249 55,249 55,249

Total 656,401 - - 656,401 656,401
Financial Liabilities

Payables 48,455 48,455 48,455
Total 48,455 - - 48,455 48,455

Net Fair Value

2013

2014

Note 13 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Terms & conditions: Short term deposits are available on 24 hour call w ith the
LGFA and has an interest rate of 2.5% as at 30th June 2014 

Accounting Policy: Carried at low er of cost and net realiseable value; Interest is
recognised w hen earned.

Bank, Deposits at Call, Short
Term Deposits

Carrying amount: approximates fair value due to the short term to maturity.

All financial instruments are categorised as receivables.

Receivables - other levels of
government

Carrying amount: approximates fair value.

Carrying amount: approximates fair value.
Terms & conditions: Liabilities are normally settled on 30 day terms.

Accounting Policy: Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future
for goods and services received, w hether or not billed to the Region.

Liabilities - Creditors and
Accruals

Accounting Policy: Carried at nominal value.
Terms & conditions: Amounts due have been calculated in accordance w ith the
terms and conditions of the respective programs follow ing advice of approvals, and
do not bear interest. All amounts are due by Departments and Agencies of State
and Federal Governments.

All carrying values approximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments. There is no recognised
market for the financial assets of the Region.

Risk Exposures
Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The
maximum credit risk on financial assets of the Region is the carrying amount, net of any allowance for
doubtful debts. All the Region's investments are made with the SA Local Government Finance Authority and
are guaranteed by the SA Government. Except as detailed in Note 5 in relation to individual classes of
receivables, exposure is concentrated within the Region's boundaries, and there is no material exposure to
any individual debtor.

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.
All of the Region's financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any market,
and hence neither market risk nor currency risk apply.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Region will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations with financial liabilities.
In accordance with the model Treasury Management Policy (LGA Information Paper 15), liabilities have a
range of maturity dates.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
Cash flow fluctuations are managed holistically in seeking to minimise interest costs over the longer term in a
risk averse manner.
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Central Local Government Region of SA Inc

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Income 1,040,320 813,251
less  Expenses 795,406 812,479
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 244,914 772

less Net Outlays on Existing Assets
Capital Expenditure on renewal and replacement of 
Existing Assets

- 36,687

Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment (5,101) (6,160)
Proceeds from Sale of Replaced Assets - (10,909)

(5,101) 19,618

less Net Outlays on New and Upgraded Assets
- -

Net Lending / (Borrowing) for Financial Year 250,015 (18,846)

Note 16  - UNIFORM  PRESENTATION  OF  FINANCES

2014
$

2013
$

The following is a high level summary of both operating and capital investment activities of the
Region prepared on a simplified Uniform Presentation Framework basis.

All Councils in South Australia have agreed to summarise annual budgets and long-term financial
plans on the same basis.

The arrangements ensure that all Councils & subsidiaries provide a common 'core' of financial
information, which enables meaningful comparisons of each Council's finances
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Central Local Government Region of SA inc

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 18  – SUPERANNUATION

The Region makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employee to 
Statewide Super (formerly Local Government Superannuation Scheme). There are two types 
of membership, each of which is funded differently. Permanent and contract employees of the 
South Australian Local Government sector with Salarylink benefits prior to 24 November 2009 
have the option to contribute to Marketlink and/or Salarylink. All other employees (including 
casuals) have all contributions allocated to Marketlink.

Marketlink (Accumulation Fund) Members 
Marketlink receives both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis. 
Employer contributions are based on a fixed percentage of employee earnings in accordance 
with superannuation guarantee legislation (9.25% in 2013/14; 9% in 2012/13).  No further 
liability accrues to the Region as the superannuation benefits accruing to employees are 
represented by their share of the net assets of the Fund.

Salarylink (Defined Benefit Fund) Members
Salarylink is a defined benefit scheme where the benefit payable is based on a formula 
determined by the member’s contribution rate, number of years and level of contribution and 
final average salary. The Region does not make employer contributions to Salarylink. 

Note 19  - JOINT VENTURES & ASSOCIATED ENTITIES

An associate is an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership, over which 
the investor has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint 
venture.

A joint venture is a contractual agreement whereby two or more parties undertake an 
economic activity that is subject to joint control

The Region has no interest in Joint Ventures or Associated Entities.

Although the Region itself is a Regional Subsidiary established by the 15 Member Councils (as 
per Note 1), it is not considered to be an associate of any of the individual Councils as no one 
Council has significant influence. As such, equity accounting procedures are not used by the 
individual Councils. It is likely that each Council's interest in the Regional Subsidiary is non-
material and as such, it is appropriate for a Council to write off its annual contribution as an 
expense.
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